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Highlights of the Year 2017

2017 EERNZEAC

May

e The Group obtained certification
from AT&T, an US-based operator,
for SIM7500A;

June

e The Group officially unveiled the
core board (intelligent module)
bespoke for our customers in
Europe and the United States;

July

e The Group successfully marketed
the handset made for specific
customer group of a renowned
Japanese brand into the Japanese
operator market;

August

e Sunrise Simcom scooped the
“Top 100 Private Manufacturing
Enterprises in Shanghai” award in
2017;

e The Group successfully developed
the AQI visual product line, which
we have intellectual property rights,
for handset glass defects;

September

e Bulk shipment of the AR glasses
tailormade for our customers in
the United States. Rarely has such
kind of industrial head-mounted
smart device been available for
mass production globally;

e The Group launched an Internet
of Vehicles product with navigation
feature for French customers;

e SIM7000A obtained the Verizon
certification (conditional approval);

October

e The Group successfully launched
triple encryption handsets for its
ultra-high-end customers in the
Middle East;

e Commencement of delivery of 360
degrees panorama camera phones
designed by the Group for overseas
brands;

e The Group’s automatic vending
machines have been introduced in
smart banking branches of Bank
of Communications and China
Construction Bank etc.;

November

e The Group’'s intelligent
manufacturing factory was
introduced at the 19th China
International Industry Fair as
the demonstration enterprise for
intelligent manufacturing of the
Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the PRC;

e Bulk delivery of the triple protection
(waterproof, dust-proof and shock
resistant) mobile police affairs
terminal (meeting IP68 industrial
protection standard) tailormade
for customers of public security
sector;

December

e Release of a high-end outdoor
triple protection (waterproof,
dust-proof and shock resistant)
handset designed by the Group for
a reputable European automobile
brand;

e Auto robot-testing machine self-
developed by the Group achieved a
record high in sales volume;

e The PCBA production defeat
AQl inspection software suites
developed by the Group’s visual
business department have been
delivered to inspection equipment
customers;
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders, BERE

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of SIM RABREERAREEREGRAG ([ARQF])

Technology Group Limited (“Company”), | am presenting the annual BE([EFDe([E2g )IR2ARE KEM
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the BAR(HE AEEDEBEE_S—tF+=A
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017 (“Year”). =+—HEFE(AXRFE]) 22FEERS

For the Year, the Group achieved a profit attributable to owners of the REE - AEESESAARER AL RF A

Company of HK$111.7 million (2016: HK$77.3 million). The basic 111,700,000 jt ( ==& — /< F : 77,300,000

earnings per share was HK4.36 cents (2016: HK3.02 cents). BIT) o NEEEREARNAA43BIW(ZE
—7NEF D 3.027L)
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board proposed to recommend a final dividend of HK1.6 cents per
ordinary share to shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) for the
Year. Subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, the proposed final dividend will be paid on or
about Thursday, 28 June 2018 to Shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Friday, 15 June 2018. Based
on 2,559,546,300 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at the date
of this report, the total dividend will amount to approximately HK$41.0

million.
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Chairman’s Statement
EREHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s business transformation has started to bear fruit, thanks to
vigorous efforts it has undertaken in the past years. In 2017, affected
by unfavorable factors such as the challenging global economic
environment, large exchange rate fluctuations and intensifying market
competition, nonetheless, the Group achieved revenue of HK$3,258.5
million, representing an increase of 19.6% when compared with last
year. Gross profit decreased by 1.6% year-on-year to HK$395.2 million.
These results were attributable to the growth of wireless communication
modules and the transformation of handsets and internet of things (“IOT”)
terminals business. While the new businesses of I0T system and online-
to-offline (“020”) business and intelligent manufacturing business did
not progress satisfactorily and failed to contribute sufficient revenue and a
reasonable profit to the Group, the Group’s revenue still achieved a solid
rise while gross profit and total profit of the Group basically stayed flat as

compared with that of last year.

Handsets and 10T terminals business

The Group started with the provision of mobile handset original design
manufacturer (“ODM”) services 15 years ago, and had three stages of
development with each stage spanning around five years. During the first
stage, the Group operated in the form of an independent design house
(“IDH") providing research and development (“R&D”) services for small
and medium customers, turnkey solutions for handsets and full set of
raw materials or components of handsets. The IDH operation mode was
not involved in the production of fully-completed mobile handsets, thus
the Group was able to avoid intellectual property disputes. The second
stage was characterised by the operation of its ODM services. During
the second stage, the Group served top-tier customers in domestic and
overseas markets by providing ODM services as well as the delivery of
a full set of products for consumer handsets. During the third stage,
the Group gradually transformed itself to venture into the 10T terminals
business. In the consumer handsets segment, the Group proactively
exited from its low-end to mid-range handsets business, which had high
risk yet low gross profit margin, and focus on the high-end handsets
business only, particularly the high-end handsets with retail prices from
US$1,000 to US$2,000. In 2017, the 10T/industrial application terminals
business contributed a major proportion of the revenue and gross profit

in the handsets and 10T terminals business segment.
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In 2017, the sales volume of this business segment declined by 46.2%
year-on-year and its average selling price escalated by 100% year-on-
year. Revenue dropped by 15.3%. Gross profit margin was 12.7% and
remained at a similar level as last year. The decline in revenue was due
to the great drop in the revenue contribution from consumer handsets,
which largely accounted for last year’s revenue. The revenue for this year
was mainly derived from the 10T/industrial application terminals and
some differentiated high-end handset products, with higher selling prices
and gross profit margins but much lower shipment volumes. Moreover,
many components from the upstream supply chain were in serious
shortage and the price of some components such as memories surged
substantially starting from the second half of the year 2016. Fortunately,
the 10T/industrial application terminals with a higher gross profit margin
offset the effects caused by the above negative factors, so the gross profit

margin was similar to that of last year.

The Group has adhered to its development strategies consistently in
recent years. It has retained the high-end handsets ODM business and
at the same time has vigorously developed the |0T/industrial application
terminals business. With the maturity of the 5G and NB-IOT standards,
the IOT market has huge growth potential, in particular for product areas
such as scan, mobile Point of Sale (“POS”), logistics and Internet of
Vehicles (“IOV”) terminals. Furthermore, products such as dedicated
enterprise intercom network terminals, outdoor waterproof, dust-proof
and shock resistant terminals, vehicle terminals and augmented reality
terminals for industrial enterprises have vast room for development. In
recent years, the Group has continued to invest in those areas and its
products have gained first-mover advantages in terms of shipments.
The 10T terminals and industrial application terminals business had
fast growth in Europe, America and Japan. In light of this, apart from
continuously prospecting for new |OT terminal customers in China, the
Group has also targeted mainly the developed regions such as Europe,
America and Japan as its main overseas expansion directions through its
sales network and agency appointments. As the Group pushes ahead with
developing its I0T terminals business, it has also grasped opportunities to
develop quality high-end consumer ODM handsets in order to maintain
its economies of scale and boost the competitiveness of its supply chain.
With enormous market potential and first-mover advantages, the Group

believes that this business segment should continue to expand.
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Chairman’s Statement
EREHRE

Wireless communication modules business

The wireless communication modules business refers to the R&D and
sales of 2G, 3G and 4G wireless communication modules and Global
Navigation Satellite System (“GNSS”) modules business operated by the

Group’s subsidiary, Shanghai Simcom Wireless Solutions Limited.

In 2017, revenue of this business segment increased by 78.5%. Gross
profit margin dropped to 8.8% when compared with that of last year.
The growth in revenue was attributable to the continued booming
development of the global 10T market and the rising demand for the
Group’s wireless communication modules in domestic and overseas
markets, particularly the significant growth in 2G modules for bike sharing
and smart home applications in People’s Republic of China (“China” or
“PRC”) and the 4G modules for intelligent meter, IOV and intelligent POS
applications. In the bike sharing market, the Group has captured most
of the market share through its strong support to its top three customers
in that sector. This business segment experienced a substantial increase
in revenue, but the gross profit margin was very low due to intensifying
competition among module suppliers in the bike sharing market. As the
bike sharing-related business represented more than half of the shipment
volume of this business segment, the gross profit margin of the whole
business segment showed greater decline. Major reasons for the decline
were the serious shortage and higher prices of some core components
such as memories, printed circuit boards and capacitors starting from the

second half of last year.
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10T system and 020 business

This business sector comprises of two segments: the first segment is the
provision of various types of “cloud” system solutions with a back-end
software system as the core; and the second segment is the provision
of an 020 cloud trading platform to vending machine operators. (This
business segment does not include the IOT terminals business.)

In 2017, the revenue of this business segment increased by 5.5% when
compared with last year. Gross profit margin of this business segment
was 12.6%, which is a significant decline when compared with last year.
Overall profit of this business sector has decreased. The Group has
developed mature system solutions encompassing intelligent elderly care
service systems, health monitoring systems, vending machine operation
services and vehicle anti-theft management systems. However, low sales
revenues were recorded for these solutions in 2017 due to the absence
of marketing and sales strategies.

As for the cloud trading platform, the Group has adjusted the
development strategy from the originally asset-heavy operation mode
of directly managing and operating vending machines and recruiting
businesses for the financing of leasing investments to a one-stop-service
asset-light 020 service platform. In 2017, the Group recorded a growth
in the revenue derived from the provision of beverage wholesale and
delivery services to vending machine operators and upgrade service for
outdated vending machines. The increase in revenue was attributable to
the establishment of a sub-depot by Shanghai Yunhao Trading Limited,
a subsidiary of the Group, in other regions and the addition of business
channels. Meanwhile, the Group eliminated the directly managed and
operated vending machine outlets with poor efficiency and reduced
the amount of financing leasing, that led to a non-operating loss. The
operation of some sub-depots has not reached a break-even point while
the necessary wages, warehousing and logistics expenses were still

incurred, which dragged down the profitability of this business segment.
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Chairman’s Statement
EREHRE

Intelligent manufacturing business

The Group’s intelligent manufacturing segment comprises of three
business units. The first business unit is engaged in producing automated
equipment based on integrated robotic applications, which would be
used to replace operations in the production line that are labour intensive.
This has served as a starting point for the Group to enter the intelligent
manufacturing market and the Group possesses significiant market
shares in the global market. The second business unit is committed to
developing optical system products, which are focusing on machine
vision and artificial intelligence (“Al”) technology intended to replace
a large number of visual inspection workers in the production line.
However, this unit has been unable to secure major orders and continued
investment in R&D resources is still needed. The third business unit aims
to tap the industrial internet intellectual system through the development
of the back-end software to replace or assist simple and straightforward
computer operations for a white-collar worker in manufacturing or supply-
chain management, such as a planner and a warehouse manager.
This business unit has not generated actual revenue as it is still at the

optimisation and marketing stage.

In 2017, turnover in this segment declined by 29.3% compared with
that of the previous year, while its gross profit margin was similar
and overall profit dropped. As the China government implemented a
deleveraging policy in 2017, most manufacturing companies became
more prudent in equipment investments, which suppressed the market
demand. Many traditional mechanical assembly companies in China
rushed to develop intelligent and automated manufacturing, which fueled
competition and triggered a price war. As the Group assigns top priority to
product quality and customer reputation, it has forfeited some business
opportunities that could only be won with low prices. Besides, several
automation companies that the Group acquired two years ago recorded
losses, because they are currently managed by joint venture partners
and operating beyond its effective control. Therefore, the factors above
have contributed to segmental turnover and overall profit falling below
expectation, and to some extent lower than that of last year. Despite the
fierce competition from other players, the Group managed to stabilise
the gross profit margin, capitalising on its technology edge and strong

reputation in the market.
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The Group has continued to develop our intelligent manufacturing
business. To better serve its customers, the Group has established two
automation business bases, one in Qingpu in Eastern China and one in
Songshanhu in Southern China, to form a complete platform for R&D and
sales. The Group is using these bases to optimise corporate structure,
reform the operational model, and reinforce its leading presence in the
3C products testing sector. It is striving to secure large international
EMS providers as customers and extend the applications of its products
to other industries including optical Al, intelligent logistics, intelligent

storage, etc.

Properties development

As at 31 December 2017, “The Riverside Country” (28 o E#iKER)
located at No. 32 Shenbei Road, Shenyang City, the PRC, has a total of
1,842 residential units in all its four phases, of which 1,680 units had
been sold. Total area of approximately 25,000 square meters were not yet
sold or not yet delivered to the buyers. The group has 60% ownership on

this project.

As at 31 December 2017, “Seven River in Sweet” (- 27X ), located at
No. 85 East Jichuan Road, Taizhou City, the PRC, has a total of 779 units,
of which around 96% residential units, 1% shops and 3% commercial
units. 758 units had been sold, of which around 96% residential units,
1% shops and 3% commercial units. Total area of approximately 29,000
square meters were not yet sold or not yet delivered to the buyers. The

group has 100% ownership on this project.

The revenue of properties development for 2017 was amounted to
HK$306.4 million (2016: HK$192.4 million) with gross profit margin of
16.9% (2016: 12.1%).
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Chairman’s Statement
EREHRE

PROSPECTS

In executing its transformation strategy and facilitating the development
of the wireless communication modules business, the Group has
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with ;&3 B & @R HlT
& EBR ARl (Shenzhen Sunsea Telecommunication Co., Ltd.*), to
dispose 100% equity interests in Shanghai Simcom Wireless Solutions
Limited (“Simcom Wireless”), a subsidiary of the Group. Further details
are disclosed in the section of “Material Acquisition and Disposal of

Subsidiaries and Associated Companies” in this announcement.

Prior to this disposal, the Group’s wireless communication modules
business had covered the entire business chain of wireless
communication modules operations, from product development
(including product planning and specifications), procurement of raw
materials, production processing (including logistics and delivery of
finished products) to sales operations. Upon completion of this disposal,
the Group will only be responsible for procurement of raw materials
and production processing (including logistics and delivery of finished
products). The wireless communication modules business is expected
to remain as one of the Group’s business segments subsequent to this
disposal. Its turnover should not drop significantly compared with the
period before this disposal, however its business nature will change from
an original brand manufacturer (“OBM”) to an electronics manufacturing
services (“EMS”) provider. By then, the gross profit margin would drop
notably but the Group would no longer need to bear the huge R&D
expenses and marketing costs of the modules business, nor the inventory

risk of raw materials.

This disposal will not affect the Group’s handsets and 10T terminals
business. In the future, the Group will continue to focus on the 10T/
industrial terminals markets, in order to better understand the demand
and weakness of different business segments. The Group will also
increase the investments in R&D, and actively plan and develop
terminals or specialised modules that suit the markets. Regarding market
development, the Group will focus more on securing new customers in
overseas markets. The proceeds from the above mentioned disposal
will be used to build an operations center in Dongguan and a factory to
upgrade handsets. The Directors believe that the Group can stand out

amidst the keen competition of the IOT terminals market.
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Regarding the 10T system and 020 business, the Group will continue
to bolster the R&D and marketing of 10T back-end software and expand
the cloud computing and big data service platform. The Group will also
further expand the ancillary applications of self-developed IOT terminals
for different industries, so as to bring new business opportunities to the
IOT system and 020 business segment. At the same time, the Group
will retain the service platform model for automatic vending machines,
in order to build an integrated service platform to focus on serving
small-to-medium automatic vending machine operators and beverage
manufacturers. This asset-light operation mode is expected to optimise
the Group’s IT technical strengths and control operational risks while

facilitating overall business operations.

Intelligent manufacturing business is the Group’s latest business pursuit
and has strong potential for development. After years of efforts, out of
three production lines, the automated robotic line has carved out market
share in the handsets manufacturing industry. The performance of the
optical technological products has proven that they can create huge
value for customers. Industrial internet products have been increasingly
deployed at our factories. After several years’ of hard work, the entire
business team has grown into a top unit integrating R&D, manufacturing,
sales and after-sales functions. Transformation to intelligent robotic
manufacturing has become a major trend in manufacturing within China,
thus, there will be a strong demand for intelligent manufacturing and
Al in the future. The competition in the industry among homogeneous
products or for talent is expected to become more intense. Facing a
fiercely competitive market, the Group’s intelligent manufacturing team
has made the necessary full preparation and the Group, for its part,
will nurture their entrepreneurial “can-do” spirit through more effective
solutions. Thus the Group expects the intelligent manufacturing business

will develop rapidly in the next few years.
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Chairman’s Statement
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More than ten years ago, the Group has constructed its headquarters
in Shanghai, namely SIM Technology Building Block A and Block B
located at No. 633 Jinzhong Road, Changning District, Shanghai City,
the PRC, which were intended partly for internal use and partly for
leasing. The property market in China had not surged at that time, so
the leasing area was relatively small and the rent was low. The Group
didn’t launch a dedicated leasing business, rather it was considered as
other income only. However, the property market in China has become
more and more prosperous in recent years with a substantial increase in
rent. Thus, the Group has moved part of the staff to the Qingpu factory
as the rent there is lower, and subsequently enlarged the leasing area at
the Shanghai headquarters. To utilise our resources more effectively, the
Group is developing the property leasing business by leasing out the spare
space at factories and other buildings. As at 31 December 2017, part of
SIM Technology Building is held on medium-term lease as investment
properties for leasing purpose. At the same time, the Group plans to invest
and build a southern base in Dongguan, and parts of the properties are
to be earmarked for the leasing business as well. The Group believes that
the property market in China has passed the stage of explosive growth,
nonetheless will keep growing steadily, rental income will become a stable

growth business of the Group.

Looking ahead, the Group will enhance its business transformation,
develop value-added businesses and refine its business model as
it tightens control and management of costs and expenses. While
transformation can be painful for a fresh start, so every staff should have
the ambition to start a new business, embrace the change and bear
the responsibilities. We firmly believe that the Group will create greater
economies of scale to accommodate the continuous development of its

business.
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The management believes the development in the past year has proved
that the new development directions and strategies of the Group are
correct. The completion of business transformation achieved initial
results that laid the foundation for the sustainable development.
The management expects that new businesses will hurl the Group’s

development to new heights again in the next few years.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my cordial appreciation to
all members of the management and the employees for their efforts and
dedication throughout the Year. Finally, | would like to thank the financial
institutions, Shareholders and investors for their continuous support and

confidence in us.

Yeung Man Ying

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2018
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

\".-.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Year, the revenue from handsets and 10T terminals business,
wireless communication modules business, 0T system and 020
business and intelligent manufacturing business (“Core Business”)
increased by 16.6% to HK$2,952.1 million (2016: HK$2,531.9 million).
The revenue from the sale of residential units in PRC amounted to
HK$306.4 million (2016: HK$192.4 million). The total revenue of the
Group for the Year, included revenue of Core Business and properties
development, amounted to HK$3,258.5 million (2016: HK$2,724.4

million).

The gross profit for Core Business of the Group for the Year decreased by
9.2% year-on-year to HK$343.5 million (2016: HK$378.6 million). The
gross profit margin for Core Business decreased to 11.6% (2016: 15.0%).
The overall gross profit margin of the Group for the Year was 12.1%
(2016: 14.7%).

The Group achieved a profit attributable to owners of the Company which
increased year-on-year by 44.5% to HK$111.7 million (2016: HK$77.3
million) for the Year. The basic earnings per share for the Year was
HK4.36 cents (2016: HK3.02 cents).

B E R W MDA

B EE
RAFE  HEFHRRMBELRER-
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BREGEREEB(ZOLER]D 2 WAL
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ZE =B 2 W A A306,400,000 7T( =
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Research and development expenses

In 2017, the Group mainly focused on the development of intelligent
manufacturing businesses. The number of design and development
team members was 840 (2016: 860) in 2017. Total R&D expenses of the
Group, which amounted to HK$90.6 million (2016: HK$102.2 million),
represented 2.8% (2016: 3.8%) of the Group’s revenue.

Selling and distribution costs

The selling and distribution costs of the Group for the Year increased by
6.3% to HK$144.4 million (2016: HK$135.9 million). The ratio of the
selling and distribution costs over revenue in 2017 was 4.4 % (2016:
5.0%).

Administrative expenses
The Group’s administrative expenses for 2017 decreased by 2.4% to
HK$122.2 million (2016: HK$125.2 million), representing 3.8% (2016:

4.6%) of the revenue.

Management's Discussion and Analysis
ERE RO
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
ERE WO

Segment results of core business

Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-E—tET-A=1+-HLEE

AVE S 3P E S

Year ended 31 December 2016
NETTA=T-BItEE

BE-T—

T=—=
Gross Gross
Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue profit margin Revenue profit margin
WA e ER=E YA =7 ER=
HK$'M HK$'M % HK$'M HK$'M %
BEET BEET % BEST BEBT %
Handsets and 10T FHRIEE
terminals business S 1,076.9 136.4 12.7 1,271.1 158.2 124
Wireless communication
modules business ﬂ%‘?i@%ﬁﬁﬁ%% 1,454.9 127.7 8.8 815.0 1184 145
0T system and 020 business  #IEHE R 5 RiBEER 318.9 40.2 12.6 3023 459 15.2
Intelligent manufacturing
business B aBERT 101.4 39.2 38.7 1435 56.1 39.1
Total w@st 2,952.1 343.5 11.6 2,5319 3786 15.0

\t——l
: S —3
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
ERE RO

Handsets and 10T terminals business

During the Year, since more customers have shifted towards using
|OT/industrial application terminals and some differentiated high-end
handsets products, the Group no longer developed consumer handsets
that are homogeneous and single model with bulk shipment, which
generates narrow gross profit margins. However, the 10T/industrial
application terminals and some differentiated high-end handset products
have higher selling prices and gross profit margins but much lower
shipment volumes. As a result, the revenue of this segment decreased
significantly year-on-year by 15.3% to HK$1,076.9 million (2016:
HK$1,271.1 million) in 2017. Nevertheless, as the application terminals
having higher average selling price and profit margin, the overall gross
profit margin of this business segment increased slightly to 12.7% (2016:
12.4%) for the Year. The revenue of ODM business contributed to
approximately 72% of the revenue of this segment in 2017 (2016: 73%).

Wireless communication modules business

Due to the increasing demand for the Group’s wireless communication
modules from domestic bike sharing industry, revenue of this segment
increased year-to-year by 78.5%. However due to the declining average
selling price of 2G and other low-end modules, the gross profit margin
decreased to 8.8% (2016: 14.5%).

FHR B RBRIGERS
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BAR - ZE—LF DB BARF KRR
B 2 15.3% % 1,076,900,0008 7T ( =& — X
£ :1,271,100,0007 7T ) © 18 52 HHFE A 4%
M FHEEREMERR  ZEBHDHDPARF
MBEEEFREYINE127% (2T — R F
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
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10T system and 020 business

During the Year, the revenue of this segment increased 5.5% to
HK$318.9 million (2016: HK$302.3 million). That was mainly due to the
increase in establishment of a sub-depot by the Group in other regions
and the addition of business channels. Meanwhile, the Group eliminated
the directly managed and operated vending machine outlets with poor
efficiency and reduced the amount of financing leasing, leading to a non-
operating loss. The operation of some sub-depots has not reached a
break-even point while the necessary wages, warehousing and logistics
expenses were still incurred, which dragged down the profitability of
this business segment.The gross profit margin for the Year decreased to
12.6% (2016: 15.2%).

Intelligent manufacturing business

As the China government implemented a deleveraging policy in 2017,
most manufacturing companies became more prudent in equipment
investments, which suppressed the market demand. Besides, several
automation companies that the Group acquired two years ago recorded
losses, because they are currently managed by joint venture partners
and operating beyond its effective control. As a result, the revenue for the
Year of this segment decreased by 29.3% to HK$101.4 million (2016:
HK$ 143.5 million), while gross profit decreased by 30%. The gross profit
margin also decreased to 38.7% (2016: 39.1%).

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Liquidity

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had bank balances and cash of
HK$417.1 million (31 December 2016: HK$249.1 million), among which
88.3% was held in Renminbi, 11.5% was held in US dollars and the
remaining balance was held in Hong Kong dollars. As at 31 December
2017, the Group also had pledged bank deposits of HK$30.1 million (31
December 2016: HK$76.6 million) in Renminbi for the purpose of the
Group’s Renminbi borrowings. The Group intends to finance its working
capital and capital expenditure plans from such bank balances. The
Group has pledged certain of its assets (including property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, land use rights and notes receivables)
to secure the bank borrowings. The total bank borrowings of the Group
amounted to HK$84.1 million as at 31 December 2017 (31 December
2016: HK$300.0 million), all of which HK$62.1 million was denominated
in Renminbi and HK$22.0 million was denominated in US dollars. All of
the bank borrowings were at floating interest rates and repayable within

one year.

Operating Efficiency
The turnover period of the inventory, trade and notes receivables, trade
and notes payables of the Group for the Core Business are presented

below:

Management's Discussion and Analysis
ERE RO
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2017 2016

—E—+tfF —E—REF

Days Days

X PN

Inventory turnover period GFEiREE 105 119
Trade and notes receivables turnover period JEWE 5 BRFN Z2 5 A 3 B 37 40
Trade and notes payables turnover period JERTE SRR R 5B 48 88

In the Year, due to significant increase in sales volume, the purchase and
cost of sales of the Group increased significantly. The inventory turnover

period thus decreased as compared to that of year 2016.

The trade and notes receivable turnover period decreased for the Year as
compared to that of year 2016 due to the significant increase in sales for
the Year.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
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The trade and notes payables turnover period decreased for the Year as
compared to that of year 2016 due to the decrease in average balance of

trade and notes payables for the Year.

As at 31 December 2017, the current ratio, calculated as current assets

over current liabilities, was 1.9 times (31 December 2016: 1.9 times).

The Group reckons that inventory turnover period, trade and notes
receivables turnover period, and trade and notes payables turnover
period help the Group to understand its ability to convert inventory
into cash and sales and cash conversion cycle. Through reviewing the
turnover periods, the Group can improve its operational efficiency. The
current ratio can help the Group to understand its ability to pay short-term

and long-term obligations.

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a prudent approach in its treasury policy. The Group’s
surplus funds are held under fixed and savings deposits in reputable
banks to earn interest income. As at 31 December 2017, the Group
has entrusted a total amount of HK$36.2 million under certain asset
management agreements for an investment period of one year. During the
Year, the Group did not have any other security or capital investments or

derivative investments.

Certain sales and purchases of inventories of the Group are denominated
in US dollars. Furthermore, certain trade receivables, trade payables,
bank balances and bank borrowings are denominated in US dollars,
therefore exposing the Group to the currency risk of US dollars. During
2016, the Group entered into a foreign exchange forward contract of
US$20.0 million to reduce the foreign exchange exposures in US dollars.
The aforementioned foreign exchange forward contract was matured
on 16 November 2017 and there was no outstanding foreign exchange
forward contract as at 31 December 2017. Save as disclosed, as at 31
December 2017, the Group did not use any financial instrument for

hedging purpose.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31 December 2017, the Company had 2,559,546,300 ordinary

shares of HK$0.10 each in issue.

The Company has issued 1,650,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

upon exercise of share options of the Company during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, no shares of the Company has been issued or

repurchased during the Year.

Management's Discussion and Analysis
ERE RO

EXEE
BE-T-+t#+-A=+—R0 AQAEEH
72,559,546,300 i F X E{E 0.10/8 7T 2 & il
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS HERERBE
2017 2016
—=—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’ million HK$’ million
BEET BEBTT
Net cash from operating activities R EKEED) IR FRE 380.2 211.0
Capital expenditure BAAREY (53.5) (59.0)
Development costs B A (201.1) (194.5)
Net decrease in bank borrowings RITEERD F5E (236.6) (18.1)
Net decrease in entrusted loan receivables B Z T E FUR A E R 76.6 35
Proceeds from disposal of equipment HEREATS A 2.4 53
Deposits received for disposal of an associate ~ FHE—FKE S AW Z 5T - 1.2
Bank interest paid SAERITHE (9.0) (10.1)
Dividend paid BEERE (25.6) -
Repayment to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries BB A R FEEARAR R (35.6) (9.4)
Deposits received from disposal of subsidiaries BWHEWB AT 21EE 62.4 =
Consideration received from disposal
of an associate B E—HEBE A 2 RE 10.1 -
Increase in other liabilities Hibh & E8n 141.2 -
Others Hith 9.9 (5.4)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents RekRSEEBEEM CRd)
(including pledged bank deposits) FHE (BEBEMRITEN) 121.4 (75.5)

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2017, the total assets value of the Group was
HK$3,630.4 million (31 December 2016: HK$3,479.8 million) and the
bank borrowings was HK$84.1 million (31 December 2016: HK$300.0
million). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total bank
borrowings over total assets, was 2.3% (31 December 2016: 8.6%).

=i sz

N_ZT—t&E+-f=1+—0 ~EErEE
#{853,630,400,0008 L (Z T — NF+ =
A=+—H8 :3,479,800,000}&7T) ' RITEE
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
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The Group reviews its gearing ratio on a regular basis. According to
the capital plan for the future, the Group tries to maximise revenue
for Shareholders with capital risk awareness in mind. Capital structure
is being constantly adjusted according to changes in the operational

environment.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
On 20 January 2017, SIM Technology Group (BVI) Limited, a wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Company and u-blox AG, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of u-blox Holding AG (a company listed on the SIX Swiss
Exchange), entered into the technology assignment (“Technology
Assignment Contract”) and the asset purchase agreement (“Asset
Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group has agreed to
sell the Group’s 2G, 3G, 4G wireless communication module and
GNSS module business related technology and assets at the aggregate

consideration of US$52.5 million.

On 21 May 2017, the Group and u-blox AG have mutually agreed not to
proceed with the above mentioned proposed disposal. Both parties have
therefore decided to amicably terminate the Technology Assignment

Contract and Asset Purchase Agreement and all ancillary agreements.

Further details of the above mentioned proposed disposal are disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 22 January 2017 and 22 May
2017 and the circular of the Company dated 28 February 2017.

On 22 September 2017, the Company, Simcom International Holdings
Limited (“Simcom International”), F/8% &M ERA A
(Queclink Wireless Solutions Co., Ltd.*) (“Queclink Wireless”), Richjoy
Talent Limited (“Richjoy”), Shanghai Simcom Electronic Limited
(“Simcom Electronic”, together with Simcom Wireless as the “Target
Companies”) and Simcom Wireless entered into a sale and purchase
agreement under which Simcom International has conditionally agreed
to sell, and Queclink Wireless and Richjoy have conditionally agreed to
purchase the equity interest in the Target Companies at the aggregate

consideration of RMB528 million.
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On 7 December 2017, the Company, Simcom International, Queclink
Wireless, Richjoy, the Target Companies, Shenyang SIM Simcom
Technology Limited and Shanghai SIM Technology Limited entered into
a termination agreement for the above mentioned sale and purchase

agreement.
Further details of the above mentioned proposed disposal are disclosed

in the announcements of the Company dated 22 September 2017, 24
November 2017 and 7 December 2017.
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On 21 December 2017, the Company, Simcom International (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), &3l B /@@ M m 5
BR/AT] (Shenzhen Sunsea Communication Technology Co. Limited*)
(“Shenzhen Sunsea”) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange), Simcom Electronic and Simcom Wireless entered into the sale
and purchase agreement (“Sale and Purchase Agreement”) under which
Simcom International has conditionally agreed to sell, and Shenzhen
Sunsea has conditionally agreed to purchase, 100% of the equity interest
of Simcom Wireless (“Disposal”). It is expected that approximately 35% of
the actual net gain from the disposal will be used for payment of a special
interim dividend. Further details of the amount of the special interim
dividend and the record date of the entitlements will be announced by
the Company after completion. Details of the Disposal are disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 21 December 2017 and 13
February 2018 and the circular of the Company dated 18 January 2018.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, the Group did not have any

material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associated companies.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2017, the available-for-sale investment represented
the Group’s investment in 3.41% of the shares in Shanghai Guao
Electronic Technology Co., Ltd (“Shanghai Guao”) (“Investment”) and
the Investment cost was approximately HK$16.9 million. During 2016,
Shanghai Guao became listed on the ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. The fair value, based on the quoted market price, of the
Investment at 31 December 2017 is approximately HK$80.3 million
(31 December 2016: HK$187.4 million). HK$171,000 dividends was
received from Shanghai Guao during the Year. Shanghai Guao specializes
in the research and development, manufacturing, marketing and service
of innovative financial equipment. The Group noted the development
strategy of Shanghai Guao as stated in its annual report for the year 2016
issued on April 2017, that Shanghai Guao will focus on the new financial
products based on its existing production system and technology reserve.
Shanghai Guao will continue to develop its technology so as to improve
its sales and after-sale service. Shanghai Guao will develop projects in

relation to automated cash treatment.
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EMPLOYEES
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had approximately 2,540 (2016:

2,390) employees. The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme for all its employees in Hong Kong, and
provides its PRC employees with welfare schemes as required by
the applicable laws and regulations of the PRC. The Group has a
comprehensive training system in place that establishes a network-based
career path for employees, including position and ability management,
skills enhancement programme, various training opportunities, online
learning programme for staff, internal promotion system, key employees
development programme, succession plans for key positions and
leadership development programme. The Group also offers discretionary
bonuses and may grant share options under the share option scheme
of the Company to its employees by reference to individual performance
and the performance of the Group. Total staff costs incurred by the Group
amounted to HK$308.0 million (2016: HK$387.5 million) during the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
human resources department. The Group seeks to provide remuneration
packages on the basis of the merit, qualifications and competence of the

employees.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Board,
having regard to factors including the Group’s operating results,
responsibilities of the Directors and senior management and comparable

market statistics.

The Company adopted a pre-listing share option scheme to recognise
and reward the contribution of certain Directors and employees of the
Group to the growth and development of the Group. The Company
has adopted share option scheme, the primary purpose of which is to
motivate the eligible persons referred to in the scheme, which include
executive Directors and employees of the Group, to optimise their future
contributions to the Group and to reward them for their efforts. Details of
the share option schemes of the Company are set out in note 36 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
As stated in the circular of the Company dated 18 January 2018, the

Group intends to use part of the net proceeds from the Disposal in the

following manner:

- as to approximately HK$201.5 million for purchase of the land
for the Group’s operations centre in Dongguan, the PRC and the

construction of the operation centre; and

- as to approximately HK$115.1 million for (a) upgrading the
production facilities of the Group in Shanghai and the above
operations centre and development of an automated intelligent
3D-warehouse; (b) further implementation of the digitizating,
networking and intelligent processes by Industry 4.0; and (c)
enhancing the competitiveness of the high-end handsets ODM

(original design manufacturing) and EMS businesses.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any plans for material

investment or capital assets during the Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any material contingent

liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 13 February 2018, the Shareholders approved the Sale and Purchase

Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder. Subsequent
to 31 December 2017, the Disposal has been completed and the Group
is in the process of assessing the relevant financial impact of the Disposal

to the Group.

Details of the Disposal are disclosed in the section of “Material Acquisition
and Disposal of Subsidiaries and Associated Companies” in this report
and the announcements of the Company dated 21 December 2017 and
13 February 2018 and the circular of the Company dated 18 January
2018.

Save as disclosed above, there were no significant events of the Group

occurred since the end of the Year.
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Development Concept of SIM Technology
R ERIES

LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

We will continue to strive to create long-term values for our customers,

shareholders and employees.

TARGETED AT MARKET LEADERS

Our target is to make the Company the leader in global wireless
communication terminals product solutions and services. All employees
of the Group are fully confident in, and are striving for, achieving the

target.

CUSTOMER-ORIENTED WITH CONTINUOUS
INNOVATION

We are customer-oriented. We attend to, in a timely manner, and
continue to satisfy customers’ needs, through continuous innovation in

technology and management.

BUSINESS FIDELITY AND SUSTAINABLE
OPERATION

Fidelity is the Company’s operating principle and standard, thereby we
have won confidence from our investors, customers, suppliers, as well as

employees.
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Care for our Future
28, E F AP R AR 2K

MAKING THE WORLD BETTER BECAUSE OF US

With “making the world better because of us” as our corporate vision, the
Group aims to provide the world with a light of betterment through our
continuous efforts.

Support from the community is vital to corporate development, thus giving
back is undeniably our corporate responsibility. We are aware of our
limited ability, but as long as we do our best in every detail and take up
our responsibility, the world will be better because of us.

SUNRISE PEOPLE CHARITY FUND

An organisation established and funded by the employees of the Group
for charity purpose. Sunrise People (the employees of the Group) should
not only be satisfied with material wealth but should also enrich ourselves
spiritually. The Group wishes that more Sunrise People can share our
charitable culture and carry it out so as to create a better and more
harmonious future together.

FOCUSED ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group initiated campaigns such as the “Green in Action” and started
from every detail to contribute to environmental protection.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EENERERBAER

DIRECTORS

Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong”), aged 73, is the chairman
of the Company and an executive Director and a director of
Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited. Mrs Wong is responsible
for developing direction and strategies of the Group. Mrs Wong
together with her spouse, Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong"),
an executive Director, were the founders of the Company.
QOver the years, Mrs Wong and Mr Wong had established a
number of companies which engaged in the electronics and
telecommunications business including Shanghai Sunrise
Simcom Ltd. (“Shanghai Sunrise Simcom”), one of the
Group’s main operating subsidiary which was established in
November 1993. Mrs Wong has over 20 years of operational
and management experience in the electronics and
telecommunications industry. Mrs Wong lectured at the Electrical
Department of the South China University of Technology in 1977.
Mrs Wong has been a guest professor at Tongji University since
2003. Mrs Wong graduated in 1968 from the Beijing University
of Aeronautics and Astronautics (currently known as Beihang
University), specialising in electrical engineering.

Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong"), aged 73, is an executive
Director and the president of the Group. Mr Wong is responsible
for participating in formulation of the direction, strategies and be
responsible for the development plan of the new business of the
Group. Mr Wong is the chairperson of Shanghai SIM Technology
Limited (“Shanghai SIM Technology”), a director of Shanghai
Sunrise Simcom and SIM Technology HK Limited (“SIM
Technology (HK)”). Mr Wong is also the director of Info Dynasty
Group Limited and Intellipower Investments Limited, both of
which are the substantial Shareholders. Mr Wong together with
his spouse, Mrs Wong, an executive Director, were the founders
of the Company. Mr Wong graduated in 1968 from the Beijing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (currently known as
Beihang University), specialising in electrical engineering. Mr
Wong has decades of experience in the electrical, electronics and
telecommunications industry.
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Ms Tang Rongrong (“Ms Tang”), aged 64, is an executive
Director, vice president of the business operation headquarter
(located in Shanghai, PRC) of the Group and a director of
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom, Shenyang SIM Real Estate Limited,
Shenyang SIM Technology Limited, Shanghai Mobile Phone
Public Testing Platform Co., Ltd. and Shanghai SIM Technology.
Ms Tang has nearly 20 years of experience in human resources
management, administration and corporate operation. Prior to
joining the Group in 1995, Ms Tang was a physician of ;T 754 &%
M5 — AREPR (Jiangxi Ganzhou First People’s Hospital) and
the head of technology and deputy chief physician of @& st
%4 B35 F7 (Nanchang Birth Planning Institute). Since then,
Ms Tang has served as the manager and deputy general manager
of the personnel and administration department of Shanghai
Sunrise Simcom. Ms Tang graduated from 5575 58 25 R £k
(Gannan Medical College) in 1978.

Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard (“Mr Chan”), aged 61, is an
executive Director and the chief finance officer of the Group.
Mr Chan was qualified as a certified general accountant (CGA)
in Canada in 1988. He is a member of the Certified General
Accountants Association of Canada. Mr Chan has more than
25 years of financial management experience and has worked
as, amongst other positions, the chief finance officer of E-Mice
Solutions (HK) Limited and Chinatron Group Holdings Limited,
the financial controller of SmarTone Telecommunications
Holdings Limited and the finance director of EMI (Hong Kong)
Ltd and had also held a financial management position in
Merrell Dow Pharmaceuticals (Canada) Inc. Mr Chan obtained
a bachelor’s degree in arts from York University, Canada in
1979 and a bachelor’'s degree in administrative studies with
honours from the same university in 1982. Mr Chan joined SIM
Technology (HK) in July 2004.
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Mr Liu Jun (“Mr Liu”), aged 45, is an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Group. Mr Liu is fully
responsible for the overall management of the Group. Mr Liu
graduated with a bachelor’s degree in electronic engineering
from X2 A E (Tianjin University) in 1994 and was awarded
a master’s degree in information technology from F R E & &
Bt (unofficial English translation being Nanjing Institute of Post
and Telecommunications) (currently known as R E E A
(Nanjing University of Post and Telecommunications)) in 1997.
Mr Liu has extensive experience in the field of telecommunication
technology and software programmes development. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr Liu has worked for the mobile research
and development centre of Motorola in Beijing and was
responsible for the development of telecommunication software
programmes. Mr Liu has also worked for China Techfaith Wireless
Communication Technology Limited, a company listed on the
NASDAQ of the United States of America (“US”), from August
2002 to March 2007, in various positions including as a director,
chief operating officer and executive senior vice president.
Mr. Liu was appointed as an executive Director in June 2015.

Mr Liu Hing Hung (“Mr HH Liu"), aged 55, is an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee
of the Board and the chairman of the remuneration committee
of the Board. Mr HH Liu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong and also a member of the Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors. Mr HH Liu now runs a professional
accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has over ten years of
experience in accounting, taxation, auditing and corporate
finance. Mr HH Liu is also an independent non-executive director
of Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (stock code: 887), a
company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) from May 2017. Mr
HH Liu was previously an independent non-executive director
of Emperor International Holdings Limited (stock code: 163),
a company listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange from
September 2004 to August 2015. Mr HH Liu was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in September 2008.
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Mr Wang Tianmiao, aged 58, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Wang Tianmiao has been a professor at Beihang
University in the PRC since 1995. Mr Wang Tianmiao was (i) a
member of the Academic Subject Assessment Expert Panel of
the Academic Committee of the State Council of the PRC; (ii) the
expert panel leader of the national “863 Programme” on robotics
technology; (iii) the deputy leader of the Expert Panel Meeting
of the Manufacturing Industry Informatization Project of the
Ministry of Science and Technology of the PRC; (iv) a member of
the Robotics Professional Committee of the Ministry of Science
and Technology of the PRC; (v) the honourary department head
at the Graduate School of Robotics of Beihang University; (vi)
a supervisor of each of the major laboratory of the mechanic
industrial service robot and the artificial intelligence and robotics
engineering technology centre of Beihang University; and (vii)
the deputy councillor of the Academic Committee of Beihang
University. Mr Wang Tianmiao’s research areas mainly focus on
advanced robotics technology, and he has achieved outstanding
results in the research development of medical robots, bionic
mechanical fish and embedded intelligent control. Mr Wang
Tianmiao obtained a bachelor’'s degree from Xi'an Jiaotong
University in 1982, a master’s degree from the Northwestern
Polytechnical University in 1987, and a doctoral degree from the
Northwestern Polytechnical University in 1989 in the PRC. Mr
Wang Tianmiao has been an independent director of Goertek
Inc. (MBI EFRAR]), the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
002241), since April 2016. Mr Wang Tianmiao was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director in April 2017.

Mr Wu Zhe (“Mr Wu"), aged 61, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Wu has been the professor at Beihang University
in the PRC since October 1993 and the deputy principal at
Dongguan University of Technology in the PRC since 2015.
During the period from May 1991 to October 1993, Mr Wu
was the lecturer and the associate professor in aircraft design
of Beihang University. From 1997 to 2004, he was the deputy
principal of Beihang University. He obtained a bachelor’s degree
in Wuhan Institute of Construction* (EZZEME63) (currently
known as Wuhan University of Technology) in 1982, a doctoral
degree from Harbin Institute of Architecture* (MEEZTE
B (currently known as Harbin Institute of Technology) in 1988
and a postdoctoral certificate from Northwestern Polytechnical
University in 1991 in the PRC. Mr Wu was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in April 2017.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Chan Chi Yin (“Ms Chan”), CPA, aged 39, is the company
secretary and finance manager of SIM Technology (HK).
Ms Chan joined SIM Technology (HK) on April 2017 and is
responsible for the financial reporting of the Group. Ms Chan was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) on 28 June 2017. Ms Chan is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 10
years of experience in the field of accounting. Ms Chan obtained
a Bachelor of Business Administration degree with majoring in
Accountancy and a Master of Science Programme in Finance
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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The Directors are pleased to present the Group’s annual report and the

audited consolidated financial statements for the Year (“Report”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss on page 76.

Subject to Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, the Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK1.6 cents per ordinary share to the Shareholders on the register
of members on 15 June 2018, amounting to a total of approximately
HK$40,953,000 (based on 2,559,546,300 ordinary shares of the
Company), and the retention of the remaining profit attributable to owners
of the Company for the Year of HK$70,698,000.

There was no arrangement with any Shareholder under which he/shefit

has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five financial years
ended 31 December 2017 and assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 are set out on page 206 of

the annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND USE RIGHTS

Details of the movements in the investment properties, property, plant
and equipment and land use rights of the Group during the Year are
set out in notes 15, 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year

are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to

the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as
at 31 December 2017 were approximately HK$95,382,000, being the
contributed surplus of approximately HK$193,848,000 and accumulated
losses of approximately HK$98,466,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or
(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the

aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Year and as at the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Ms Yeung Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr Wong Cho Tung (President)
Ms Tang Rongrong
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard
Mr Liu Hong
(resigned with effect from 31 December 2017)
Mr Liu Jun (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Liu Hing Hung
Mr Xie Linzhen
(resigned as Independent non-executive Director with effect from
18 April 2017)
Mr Dong Yunting
(resigned as Independent non-executive Director with effect from
18 April 2017)
Mr Wang Tianmiao
(appointed as Independent non-executive Director with effect from
18 April 2017)
Mr Wu Zhe
(appointed as Independent non-executive Director with effect from
18 April 2017)

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors and

Senior Management Profile” section of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap 571,
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company

Total number of
ordinary shares

of the Company

Name of director Nature of interest NG|
ESpE EatE EBRES
Mr Wong Cho Tung Corporate interest (note 1) 1,209,084,000
THR%E DRl (HiE1)

Personal interest 3,098,000

A AR

Total

By
Ms Yeung Man Ying Corporate interest (note 2) 734,857,000
E)E S AEER (W#2)

Personal interest 3,418,000

EAER

Total

B
Ms Tang Rongrong Personal interest -
ke EAER
Mr Chan Tat Wing Richard Personal interest -
BEskLE VN 34
Mr Liu Jun Personal interest 1,000,000
ERAE AR
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Approximate
percentage of
Underlying interest in
shares of the Company
the Company Total  {EAARER
HER 5 By BAEDH
(note 3)
(B15£3)
1,209,084,000 47.24%
3,098,000 0.12%
1,212,182,000 47.36%
734,857,000 28.71%
3,418,000 0.13%
738,275,000 28.84%
4,446,000 4,446,000 0.17%
5,382,000 5,382,000 0.21%
936,000 1,936,000 0.08%



Notes:

1. Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong”) controls more than one-third of the voting power
of Info Dynasty Group Limited (“Info Dynasty”). Mr Wong is therefore deemed to
be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held by Info Dynasty in the Company
by virtue of Part XV of the SFO. Mr Wong is the sole director of Intellipower
Investments Limited (“Intellipower”) and Simcom Limited (“Simcom (BVI)”") is
wholly-owned by Mr Wong. Therefore, Mr Wong is deemed to be interested in all
the 454,227,000 shares and 20,000,000 shares held by Intellipower and Simcom
(BVI) respectively in the Company by virtue of Part XV of the SFO respectively.

2. Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong”), the spouse of Mr Wong, controls more than
one-third of the voting power of Info Dynasty. Mrs Wong is therefore deemed to
be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held by Info Dynasty by virtue of Part
XV of the SFO.

3. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued share
capital of 2,559,546,300 shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, save as disclosed above, none of the Directors,
chief executives of the Company or their associates had any interests
or short positions, whether beneficial or non-beneficial, in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed below, during the Year, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of
Hong Kong)).

Share option schemes
Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes and details of
movements in the share options are set out in note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Report of the Directors
BEfgwms

o

1. THERSAE ([E%4 ] 2% Info Dynasty Group
Limited ([Info Dynasty]) =5 —LA EZ & 2% -
RIEE SRS EOISEXVED - T LEWR AR
& Info Dynasty FT# 2 3564~ 7 734,857,000 A A%
92 fEzE - R T4 Z Intellipower Investments
Limited ([Intellipower]) H)E—ZE % & Simcom
Limited ([Simcom BV ) ESREFERHE < IR
BEHFREEEOIEXVE - MEREWRAES
Intellipower & Simcom (BVI) Fr#5 224 A 75 B
454,227,000 % & 20,000,000 B f 17 2 ez o

2. BYEZT(EAK])  FhREZERB 56
Info Dynasty =5 — A £ 2 1R 224 » 1B IEEH L H
EIEBIZEXVED » T K AR A A Info Dynasty
FriE 2 E AR E] 734,857,000 &% 15 < #E % o

3. REARTAR-_FT—LF - A=+—HZE#
1TP& 7N 2,559,546,300 A fn st B AL A R A
el

RZZE—+F+A=+—RH " R EXAEE
EFO - WEES  ARFZEFETHRABRE
FZBEANTRAR B S EATMAEREE 2 i
0 - HERDRESFT - BETAREZESR
HIE R P13 352 (RSN AR R AT R ZE
FCfteh - SRBIRZEST RIZA RS AR A R B
Pz BEmsk FEmmERZORA -

AR SR 9 175 R

BEBIT - EAFERN - ARATRATLE
AREHIGE HERETSERE62D%
(AR (EFHRE) RODHE6 ) -

BT 8l
AR EIRRER 812 8 RIBRE B BRS
BRRA B RKN 36 -

BRANREBRERAR —F+FFH

43



44

Report of the Directors
Efgwms

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the Year nor at the
end of the Year was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,

or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement nor contract of significance (as defined in
the Listing Rules), to which the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company and the Group was

entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries with the controlling Shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and there is no contract of
significance in relation to provision of services to the Company or any of

its subsidiaries by the controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

No Directors nor the controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business apart from the Company’s business,
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with

the business of the Company during the Year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’
Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong) was and is
being in force for the benefit of the Directors.

The Company has also arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of
corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of substantial
Shareholders and other persons (other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Info Dynasty and Mrs Wong is disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ and
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3. The relationship between Intellipower and Mr Wong is disclosed under the section
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in Shares”

above.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, there is no other
substantial Shareholders or persons who had any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded

in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent

non-executive Directors to be independent.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set out in

note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this Report, based on
information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company has

maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the five largest customers accounted for 30.07% of the
Group’s total sales and the largest customer accounted for 9.41% of the

Group’s total sales.

For the Year, the five largest suppliers accounted for 29.94% of the

Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the Year did any Director, any close associate of a
Director or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had an interest in any of

the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who are due to retire and, being eligible, shall
offer themselves for re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The fair review, financial key performance indicators and indication
of future development of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
and “Management’s Discussion & Analysis” in this annual report. That
discussion forms part of this Report of the Directors.

Principal risks and uncertainties
A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of the
Group. Major risks are summarized below.

We adapt to the national plan “Made in China 2025” and extend
automated manufacturing services based on our experience in
traditional telecommunications and terminal manufacturing businesses.
Manufacturing pipeline transformation services of our competitors in the
past are developed as our new business to alleviate risks raising from
slow-down in economy in the PRC.

1.  Handset manufacturing overcapacity results in the trend of
moving towards the downstream of the industry:
In recent years, growth of handset industry in the PRC has
been declining with the economic slowdown and diminishing
demographic dividend. Therefore, handset market turns from the
increment market to the existing market in a short while. Besides,
handsets have become more homogeneous than ever, and few
customers feel the need to get the latest model. Thus, the handset
market recorded a decrease in 2017, leading to merger, winding
up, bankruptcy and transfer occurring from time to time among
companies in the upstream and downstream of the industry chain.
Overcapacity occurs immediately, which means there is too much
supply in relative to demand. Meanwhile, production capacity
adjustment will inevitably lead to certain risks such as diluted
profits, and increase in marketing and channel’s cost. People that
previously engaged in ODM are moving towards the downstream
of the industry, resulting in a more competitive downstream and a
lower profit margin.
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The Group has accelerated the transformation with more
involvement in developing industrial application terminals.
Currently, products applied in industry contribute more than a half
of the whole telecommunications and terminal segment. We strive

for first-mover advantage and a bigger market share.

Risks related to the expansion of automated intelligent
manufacturing business:

In terms of the automated intelligent manufacturing business,
we focus on the automatization of the production line of
communication terminals. The Group is familiar with such
modification. However, given that more enterprises are equipping
themselves with auto test, our modification business is shrinking
accordingly. For those manufacturers that do not have auto test,
they do not feel the need to modify their production lines as their
handset business is also going downhill. The risk of a shrinking
business volume emerges. Meanwhile, lots of mechanical
instrument manufacturers are participating in manufacturing
automated intelligent products. Thus, we are expanding our
business towards both the upstream and the downstream
of the supply chain of communication terminals. By offering
automatization services to component suppliers, we are expanding
our business and diversify the product line of our automated

products.

Risks related to management of receivables from the 10T
operation service

In terms of the I0T operation service, we are engaged in the
wholesale and logistics services of beverages and food. Currently
we offer credit for payments for goods to small and medium
automated vending machine operators in general, and there are
risks that we are unable to collect payments for goods from such
small operators. Fast payments are expected when sales are robust
in peak seasons, however, payments can be slow or are even
delayed when sales are sluggish in off seasons. We have a relatively
large number of small and medium operators as our customers,

which causes risks related to receivables.
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In respect of controlling receivables of 10T, we adopt quota
management system and warning management system, and
require responsible divisions to maintain responding invoices

properly to control risks to the reasonable limit.

Key Relationships
The Group’s success also depends on the support from key relationships

with employees, suppliers and customers.

1. Employees
The Company is committed to value every talent and emphasizes
that excellent employees are valuable assets for the Company. We
pay attention to self-improvement of staff and give them a working
environment full of fairness, openness, sincerity, warmth and
opportunities. Our competitive remuneration system brings long-
term and stable return for staff and also takes into account the
long-term and stable development of the Company. We determine
staffs’ remuneration and promotion based on their capacity and
contribution to the Group. The Company recognizes staff with
outstanding performance and the same values with the Company
as valuable assets. We keep trying our best to provide promising
career prospect and a platform for them to display their talents
fully. Therefore, the Company not only helps our employees to
improve their knowledge, skills and experience through performing
their own duties, but also creates good conditions in facilities and
environment suitable for their development. To facilitate the proper
allocation and development of high caliber talents, the Company
has set up an employee career development system which focuses
on both management and technical skills. Through this system,
each outperforming key member can seize the opportunity to
improve overall abilities by various ways. The Company aims to
create conducive conditions for talents to demonstrate themselves

and grow through career, and also build solid team with talents.
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Suppliers

The Company selects and enters into strategic cooperation with
suppliers with good reputation in accordance with the principle
of mutually beneficial cooperation and international standards
such as 1IS09001, 1S014001 and OHSAS18001. We use a strict
social responsibility management system to manage our suppliers,
ensure that the quality of materials provided by the suppliers meets
our requirements and their production management systems also
comply with requirements on environment, occupational health
and safety management system as stated in relevant laws and
regulations. We also make cost and delivery plans in advance to
meet delivery demand.

Customers

We establish complete management systems in compliance
with national standards and abroad, as well as well-known
clients’ requirements, which cover product quality, environment,
occupational health and safety, information security and product
safety management. Through survey on clients’ satisfaction we
conduct every year, our clients express their positive feedback on
quality, logistics, cost and service. Among our clients all over the
world, both new and old well-known clients supervise and inspect
each management system of the Company every year. Apart from
this, our Company also implements Key Performance Indicator
(KPI), internal control scheme, management appraisal program
in every aspect. In order to continuously enhance management
systems of the Company, we set up a specific department to
supervise operation and pass the results to the management on a
regular basis to review.

The major customers of the Group include handset manufacturers
for famous domestic and overseas brands, high-end domestic
brands in security, protection and monitoring, and walkie-talkie
industry, domestic bike-sharing branded companies, etc. The
length of relationship with the major customers of the Group are
from 3 years to over 10 years. The credit terms granted by the
Group to major customers are in line with those granted to other
customers and the normal credit period taken on sales of goods
is 0-90 days. Almost all trade receivables with major customers at
31 December 2017 were settled up to date of this report and no
specific provisions are necessary for the major customers.
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Environmental policies

Environmental protection is not only the responsibility of our business, but
also the responsibility of each of us. We initiate and strive to minimize our
environmental impact by using water saving facilities, saving electricity
and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. We also
operate in strict compliance with the relevant environmental regulations
and rules and possess all necessary permission and approval from the
PRC regulators. The Group also has environmental policies to reduce

emission, raise efficiency use of resources and reduce pollution.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC while the Company itself is listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Our operations are regulated by Hong Kong and PRC laws.
During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this
report, we have complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have

significant impact to the Group in the PRC and Hong Kong.

In particular, as the Group’s business involves manufacturing, the
Group’s operation is regulated by environmental protection laws and
regulations in the PRC. During the year under review, the Group did not

have any material non-compliance with such laws and regulations.

Events after the reporting period

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Events after the
Reporting Period” in the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis”
section, the discussion of which forms part of this Report of the Directors,

there were no significant events after the reporting period of the Group.
On behalf of the Board

Yeung Man Ying

Chairman

Hong Kong

22 March 2018
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The Company’s goal is to continue to increase its transparency to the
Shareholders and the public and to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance. The principles of corporate governance adopted by the
Group emphasise a Board with high quality, sound internal control,
transparency, accountability and independence.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Save as mentioned below, the Company has complied with the code
provisions laid down in the Corporate Governance Code (“Corporate
Governance Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during
the Year.

Code Provision of A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code requires the
chairman of the Board to hold meetings at least annually with the non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)

without the executive Directors present.

As Ms Yeung Man Ying, the chairman of the Board, is also an executive
Director, the Company has deviated from this code provision as it is not
applicable. Currently, the chairman of the Board may communicate with
the non-executive Directors on a one-to-one or group basis periodically to
understand their concerns, to discuss pertinent issues and to ensure that

there is access to adequate and complete information.

In respect of code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Company does not have a nomination committee. At present,
the Company does not consider it necessary to have a nomination
committee as the full Board is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the appointment of new Directors
from time to time to ensure that it has a balanced composition of skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the businesses of the
Company, and the Board as a whole is also responsible for assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and reviewing
the succession plan for the Directors, in particular the chairman of the
Board.

According to the code provision E.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the chairman of the Board shall attend the annual general meeting of
the Company and arrange for the chairmen of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees (as appropriate) or in the absence of the
chairman of such committees, another member of the committee
or failing this, his duly appointed delegate, to be available to answer
questions at the annual general meeting.
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At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 8 June 2017
(“2017 AGM”), Ms Yeung Man Ying, the chairman of the Board, was
unable to attend due to an unexpected business engagement. Mr Chan
Tat Wing, Richard, an executive Director and the chief finance officer of
the Group, chaired the 2017 AGM on behalf of the chairman of the Board
pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company and was available to answer
questions. Mr Liu Hing Hung, an independent non-executive Director and
the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Board and the audit
committee of the Board (“Audit Committee”), was also available at the
2017 AGM to answer questions from Shareholders.

THE BOARD

Board functions

The Board is responsible for the promotion of the success of the Company
by directing and guiding its affairs in an accountable and effective
manner. Board members acknowledge their duty to act in good faith, with
due diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company and its

Shareholders.

The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board include:

1. setting the Company’s mission and values;

2. formulating strategic directions of the Company;

3. reviewing and guiding corporate strategy; setting performance
objectives and monitoring implementation and corporate

performance;

4. monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of

management, Board members; and

5. ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting systems, including the independent audit, and that
appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems

for monitoring risk, financial control, and compliance with the law.
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Board composition and practices
As at 31 December 2017 and the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised five executive Directors and three independent non-executive

Directors:

Executive Directors:

Ms Yeung Man Ying (Chairman)

Mr Wong Cho Tung (President)

Ms Tang Rongrong

Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard (Chief Finance Officer)
Mr Liu Jun (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Wang Tianmiao

Mr Wu Zhe

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among them
are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management Profile” section on
pages 34 to 38 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors has any
connection (including financial, business or family relationship) with each
other as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing

Rules.

During the Year, the roles of the chairman, president and the chief
executive officer were separated in order to reinforce their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility in compliance with the
requirement under Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code. During the Year, the role of the chairman was performed by Ms
Yeung Man Ying who was responsible for developing direction and
strategies of the Group. During the Year, the role of the president was
performed by Mr Wong Cho Tung who was responsible for formulating
the direction, strategies and the development plan of the new business of
the Group. During the Year, the chief executive officer of the Group was
performed by Mr Liu Jun, during his tenure, he took up the responsibility
of the overall management of the Group’s product and business planning,
including management of product definition, sales, procurement,

production and delivery.
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The independent non-executive Directors contribute to the Company
with diversified industry expertise, advise the management on strategy
development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards of
financial and other mandatory reporting as well as provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and

the Company as a whole.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has given a written
confirmation to the Company confirming that he has met the criteria
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules regarding the guidelines for the

assessment of independence of non-executive Directors.

The Board delegates specific tasks to the Group’s management including
the implementation of strategies and decisions approved by the Board
and the preparation of accounts for approval by the Board before public
reporting.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to give all Directors
an opportunity to attend. Directors may attend meetings in person or
through other means of electronic communication in accordance with
the Bye-laws. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant rules
and regulations. Directors shall have full access to information on the
Group and are able to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. No request was made by any Director
for such independent professional advice during the year. The Company
Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep records of matters discussed
and decisions resolved at all Board meetings, which will be available for

inspection by Directors upon request.

Corporate Governance ReporT
ﬁ;% EP) ¥|)71¢

B IFMTESIRBEERAARTIRERT
EZBEEFRAEEEREES  BRES
SRERREZEREMBBIERS - AR
RREBRERRADT 2 BENSRE R ZE
1l R 1] 7 o

RATREWEGAE L FFRITES R EERR
Al B R EEER  BRBEEFE L
MHRRIE 313 AR TEFTE 2 1R - NARARIE
WMITEE 2B 1 2 FTEES -

EReRBARREEEZFNEBRERT
EEQHEZRIEIORE - URBREERE - U
RAMAFESESHE -

ARRERHHEE 2 BEERE - UHEZLS
BITBRABASEEEEEEL 2 ATRIRE
BRE - ZERREFETR

EFECEHERF AL AHER - LUEM
BEEHAEREHT - REQFMAR - ER7]
BERBREMETBAINELEER - 1A
EEORBENEREAEEXE cEXE
3 BIEEERAERD 2 EE) - EEEAE
SERAREZER WA EERSVREE
BB EEERE - RAFE - SIEIFESR
HERZEBIERER 2B - RAAWER
BERMEEEEERRRELE  YREFE

LRI FEMFHIRE Z fC8 - RF LK
AHESBERER -

BRANREBRERAR —F+FFH

55



Corporate Governance Report
EE RS

The Board held four meetings and the Company held two general

meetings in 2017. The following is the attendance record of each Director

at the Board meetings and the general meeting of the Company for the

Year:

Number of general

meeting attended/

Number of general
Name of Director meeting held
Ms Yeung Man Ying 0/2
Mr Wong Cho Tung 0/2
Ms Tang Rongrong 0/2
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard 212
Mr Liu Hong 02

(Resigned with effect from 31 December 2017)

Mr Liu Jun 0/2
Mr Liu Hing Hung 1/2
Mr Xie Linzhen 01

(Resigned with effect from 18 April 2017)

Mr Wang Tianmiao 01
(Appointed with effect from 18 April 2017)

Mr Dong Yunting 01
(Resigned with effect from 18 April 2017)

Mr Wu Zhe 0/1
(Appointed with effect from 18 April 2017)
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a nomination committee. The Board is
responsible for nominating appropriate person, either to fill in casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors for election by

Shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.

As and when circumstances required, the Board will meet to discuss
nomination of new Directors. In considering the suitability of a candidate
for directorship, the Board will base on objective criteria, with due regard
to the benefits of diversity, as set out in the board diversity policy of the
Company (“Board Diversity Policy”) as well as the requirements under the

Listing Rules.

The re-election procedure set out in the Bye-laws provides that one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years at each annual general meeting
of the Company. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he
retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those who have been
longest in office since their last re-election or appointment but as between
persons who become or were last re-elected Directors on the same day
those retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be

determined by lot.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board. During
the Year, the Board had in place the Board Diversity Policy in accordance

with the Corporate Governance Code.

According to the diversity policy of the Board adopted by the Company,
the Board takes into account various elements of diversity including
but not limited to age, gender, cultural and educational background,
skills, professional knowledge, and industry experience in determining
the appointment and reappointment of the Directors and proposed
candidates. All Directors appointments are based on meritocracy and due
regard is given to the Board’s diversity to ensure the Company can obtain

the benefits of such diversity.
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During the Year, the Board was satisfied with the diversity of the existing
Board composition and did not, for the time being, set up any measurable

objective regarding board diversity.

The composition, experience and balance of skills on the Board are
regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of members
with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside new Director(s)
appointed from time to time who bring fresh perspectives and diverse
experiences to the Board. Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis. The Board will review the Board Diversity Policy on a

regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions in accordance with code provision D.3.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code. During the Year, the Board has reviewed the
policies and practices and compliance by the Company and has reviewed
and monitored the training and continuous professional development of

the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows
for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimation that are prudent, fair and reasonable,
ensured all applicable accounting standards are followed and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are also
responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and which enable the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards and regulatory

requirements.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the Company has provided regular updates to the
Directors on material changes to regulatory requirements applicable
to the Directors and the Company on a timely basis and on the latest
business development of the Company. The Directors confirmed that they
have complied with code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code on directors’ training. During the Year, all Directors namely, Ms
Yeung Man Ying, Mr Wong Cho Tung, Ms Tang Rongrong, Mr Chan
Tat Wing, Richard, Mr Liu Hong (resigned on 31 December 2017),
Mr Liu Jun, Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Wang Tianmiao and Mr Wu Zhe,
have participated in continuous professional development by attending
seminars/in-house briefing/reading materials to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills in areas related to their roles, functions and duties
of Directors such as corporate governance, regulatory updates and topics

related to telecommunications industry.

During the Year, the company secretary of the Company has fully
complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15

hours of relevant professional training.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for
the Year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee in compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code. The Remuneration Committee
is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its goals of providing
packages which can attract, retain and motivate Directors with required

qualities for running the Company successfully.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include: (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for all remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policies on such remuneration; (ii) determining the terms of the
specific remuneration package of each executive Director and senior
management; and (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time. Terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee which have been adopted by the Board are available on the

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee had one meeting in 2017 and
had reviewed the remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management of the Group. The members and attendance of the meeting

are as follows:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 1/1
Mr Wang Tianmiao 1/1
Mr Wu Zhe 1/1
Mr Wong Cho Tung 1/1

No Directors took part in any discussion about his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, three of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, being Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr
Wang Tianmiao and Mr Wu Zhe, and one executive Director being Mr
Wong Cho Tung. They have substantial experience in human resources
management. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr Liu Hing

Hung.
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Executive Directors, assisted by the Group’s human resources
department, are responsible for reviewing all relevant remuneration
information and obtaining market conditions in addition to considering
the performance of individuals and the profitability of the Group, and
proposing to the Remuneration Committee for consideration and
approval, remuneration packages for Directors and senior management.
Executive Directors, however, do not participate in the determination of

their own remuneration.

The primary objective of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration package is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executives in promoting the success of the Group. The remuneration
package comprises basic salary, and may include discretionary bonus

and/or share options.

Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is
subject to review by the Remuneration Committee after such executive

Directors has completed 12 months of services.

Subject to the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the
Company may, at its sole discretion, grant share options to executive
Directors in accordance with the share option schemes adopted by the

Company.

Each of the executive Directors (except Ms Yeung Man Ying and Mr
Wong Cho Tung) is entitled to a discretionary bonus as determined by the
Remuneration Committee by reference to the performance of the Group

and the Director.

Each of Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Wang Tianmiao and Mr Wu Zhe entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company to serve as an independent
non-executive Director for one year commencing on the date of
appointment and subject to the right of the independent non-executive
Director or the Company to terminate the appointment of the independent
non-executive Director at any time by giving at least one month’s notice

in writing.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with the written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and code
provision of the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to assist the Board to provide an independent review
of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control and
risk management system of the Group and oversee the audit process and

other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee members met twice in 2017 to review with senior

management and the Company’s external auditors the internal and
external audit findings, the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, and Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and discussed
auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial reporting
matters (including the 2016 annual financial statements and 2017
interim financial statements before recommending them to the Board for

approval).

The following is the attendance record of each member at the Audit

Committee meetings during the Year:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 2/2

Mr Xie Linzhen 1/1
(Resigned with effect from 18 April 2017)

Mr Wang Tianmiao 1/1
(Appointed with effect from 18 April 2017)

Mr Dong Yunting 1/1
(Resigned with effect from 18 April 2017)

Mr Wu Zhe 1/1

(Appointed with effect from 18 April 2017)

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Wang Tianmiao and Mr Wu
Zhe. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr Liu Hing Hung who has
professional qualifications in accountancy.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2017.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has reviewed a service plan from Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu regarding their independence and objectivity and had a
meeting with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the

Company, to discuss the scope of their audit and approve the scope.

The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of the external auditors. For the Year, the
Company paid Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the
Company, HK$1.9 million as audit fees and HK$0.3 million as non-audit
fees for reviewing the interim financial report of 2017.

The auditors’ reporting responsibility is set out on pages 69 to 75 of this

annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Directors acknowledges that it is their responsibility to maintain
effective risk management and internal control system and to review them

at regular intervals.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is designed
to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s assets, prevent and detect fraud
and protect Shareholders’ investment as well as to ensure that proper
accounting records are maintained and applicable legislation and
regulations are complied with. During the year under review, through
discussions with the management and external auditors the Board has
conducted assessments and reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system in various perspectives,
including, among others, financial control, operational and compliance
controls and risk management. The risk management and internal control
systems are reviewed by the Board annually and each review covers a

whole financial year.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a holistic risk
management process. The bottom-up approach is supported by key
business units to identify and prioritise risks while the topdown approach
reviews and assesses if risks are comprehensively identified, prioritised,
and properly addressed by key business units to accomplish the Group’s

objectives.
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The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to the
Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based on the
strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk assessment
and performance evaluation and the self-inspection mechanism
with comprehensive risk management functions under the authority
of the Board and the guidance of the Audit Committee. It regularly
reports to the Audit Committee and the Board for its audit findings and

recommendations on internal control.

During the year under review, the internal audit unit of the Company
continuously optimised job responsibilities and functions of different
departments according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board.
Such audit work covered financial, operation, statutory compliance and
risk management of the Group at all levels and functions, taking into
account of the manpower cost-effectiveness. During the year under
review, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and material internal controls system and is of the opinion
that the resources for and qualifications of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function are adequate and sufficient.
Based on information furnished to it and on its own observations, the
Board is satisfied with the present risk management and internal control
system of the Group and considers them effective and adequate. During
the year under review and up to the date of this annual report, nothing has
been found which requires substantial improvement.

The Company has formulated policies on information disclosure and
regularly reminded Directors and employees to properly comply with
relevant policies on inside information while notifying the Directors
(who are also the senior management of the Group) and employees the
latest guidance announced by the regulatory body on such information
disclosure from time to time to keep all of them abreast of the latest
information.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit department of the Group was responsible for
conducting internal audits of the Group. Internal audits are designed to
provide the Board with reasonable assurance that the internal control
systems of the Group are effective and the risks associated with the
achievement of business objectives are being managed properly. The
department also conducts other projects and investigation work as
required. The Directors were satisfied that an effective control system
had been in operation having reviewed the material controls and all other
major components of the internal control system of the Group for the
Year.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
COMMUNICATIONS

The Group promotes investor relations and communications by setting
up meetings with the investment community. The Group also responds to
requests for information and queries from the investment community by

the investor relations personnel.

The Board is committed to provide clear and full information of the Group
to Shareholders through sending the Shareholders the Company’s interim
and annual reports, circulars, notices, financial reports as and when
appropriate and providing additional information to Shareholders in the

“Investor Relations” section of the Company’s website.

Annual general meeting of the Company (“Annual General Meeting”)
provides a good opportunity for communications between the Board
and Shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Annual
General Meeting. Notice of the Annual General Meeting and related
papers are sent to the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting and the said notice is also published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and of the Company. The Chairman and Directors will
answer questions on the Group’s business at the Annual General Meeting.

External auditors will also attend the Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. Therefore, all the resolutions

put to the vote at the Annual General Meeting will be taken by way of poll.

The poll is conducted by the Company’s registrars and the results of
the poll will be published on websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. Financial and other information is made available on the
Company’s website and updated regularly. Specific enquiries and
suggestions by Shareholders can be sent in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Unit 2908, 29th Floor, 248 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE A GENERAL MEETING/PUT FORWARD
PROPOSALS

A.
1.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a general meeting

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition sent to the Company’s
head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Unit 2908, 29th Floor, 248 Queen‘s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, for the attention to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of

such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
those Shareholder(s).

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the statutory requirements and the Listing Rules
to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
has been verified as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a special general

meeting will not be convened as requested.
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The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders
for consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholder(s)
concerned at a special general meeting varies according to the

nature of the proposal as follows:

- at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than
ten (10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company,
which cannot be amended other than to a mere clerical

amendment to correct a patent error; and

- at lease fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten
(10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal

constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to make proposals at general

meeting other than a proposal of a person for election as Director

The Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of those Shareholders having the right to vote at
such meeting or not less than one hundred Shareholders, at the
expenses of the Shareholder(s) concerned, can submit a written

requisition to move a resolution at a general meeting.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution, signed by all the
Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form (which between them contain the signatures of all the

Shareholder(s) concerned).

The written requisition must be deposited at Unit 2908, 29th Floor,
248 Queen‘s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, the head office
and principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong,
for the attention of the Company Secretary not less than six weeks
before the meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution and not less than one week in the case of any other

requisition.
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4. The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
Proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to (i) include the resolution in the agenda for the Annual General
Meeting; or (ii) convene a special general meeting by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements and
the Listing Rules to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary,
if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the Shareholders
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, (i)
the proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for the
Annual General Meeting; or (ii) a special general meeting will not

be convened as requested.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company had not amended its constitutional

documents.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board confirms that the related party transactions during the Year
as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements did not
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” nor “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has, where
applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF SIM TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
EAMERERRAH

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SIM Technology
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 76 to 205, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,

were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
Valuation of inventories

We identified the valuation of inventories as
a key audit matter because of the significant
judgement exercised by management
in determining the appropriate levels of
allowance.

The carrying amount of inventories is
approximately HK$758,531,000 as at 31
December 2017. The management of
the Group reviews an ageing analysis of
inventories at the end of the reporting period
and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items identified that are
no longer suitable for use in production or
sale. The management estimates the net
realisable value for such finished goods and
raw materials based primarily on the latest
selling and purchase prices and current
market conditions. The Group carries out an
inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of the reporting period and
makes allowance for obsolete items.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our audit procedures to assess the
valuation of inventories included the
following:

o Obtaining an understanding of
how allowance for inventories is
estimated by the management;

o Testing the ageing analysis of
inventory, on a sample basis, to
goods receipt notes;

o Discussing with the management
and evaluating the basis of obsolete
inventories identified by the
management, based on the current
market conditions, product life cycle
and marketing and promation plans;

o Assessing the reasonableness
of allowance for inventories with
reference to historical sales records,
current market conditions, product
life cycle, ageing analysis and
subsequent selling and purchase
prices of the inventories; and

o Tracing a selection of inventories
with subsequent selling prices to
sales invoices.
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Key audit matter
Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter because
of the significant judgements are required
to determine the fair value of investment
properties.

As disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group’s
investment properties amounted to
HK$384,949,000 as at 31 December 2017.
Gain on changes in fair value of investment
properties of HK$9,565,000 was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for
the year then ended.

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties was determined by adopting
the valuation techniques with significant
unobservable inputs, assumptions of
market conditions and judgements based
on the valuation performed by independent
qualified professional valuers. Details of the
valuation techniques and key inputs used in
the valuations are disclosed in note 15 in the
consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our audit procedures to assess the
valuation of investment properties included
the following:

J Obtaining the valuation report from
independent qualified professional
valuers and discussing with
management and independent
qualified valuers to understand
the valuation basis, methodology
used and underlying assumptions
applied;

o Evaluating management's process
in respect of reviewing the valuation
performed by independent
qualified professional valuers;

° Evaluating the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of
independent qualified professional
valuers;

o Challenging the valuation
techniques and reasonableness
of the significant inputs adopted
by the management of the Group
and the independent qualified
professional valuers based on our
knowledge of the property industry;
and

o Performing market research and
analysis to assess whether the
changes in fair value of investment
properties resulted from the
valuation was reasonable and
consistent with market trends to our
knowledge.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
of the Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,

or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis

of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors of the Company.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of

the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent

auditor’s report is Wan Chi Lap.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEEmEK

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-T—tF+-A=+—ALFE

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kiat FET FAET
Revenue WA 5 3,258,517 2,724,390
Cost of sales SHE A (2,863,306) (2,322,609)
Gross profit EF 395,211 401,781
Other income E A 7 73,736 71,002
Other gains and losses Heblas & &8 8 37,678 (1,306)
Research and development expenses MERFHEER (90,641) (102,196)
Selling and distribution costs SHE K SHRK AR (144,433) (135,938)
Administrative expenses ITHRAX (122,238) (125,170)
Share of results of associates PaK(a)i /NG 22 (1,527) (1,533)
Finance costs A R A 9 (8,990) (10,140)
Profit before taxation B F54 Al S A 138,796 96,500
Taxation A 11 (36,190) (22,067)
Profit for the year AR Z 5 A 12 102,606 74,433
Profit for the year attributable to: T F A EF] -

Owners of the Company i N/NET S 111,651 77,278
Non-controlling interests Eealiig (9,045) (2,845)
102,606 74,433

Earnings per share (HK cents) Bix&H GBIL) 14
Basic HAR 4.36 3.02
Diluted #a 4.36 3.02
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (expense) income

Items that may be subsequently reclassified

to profit or loss during the year:

Fair value change on available-for-sale
investment

Deferred tax arising from fair value
change on available-for-sale
investment

Item that may not be subsequently

reclassified to profit or loss

during the year:

Exchange difference arising on
translation to presentation currency

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income (expense)
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

=
54
REZ @A
Hab2m (k) ke
HigsmoEs
RNFEEB=2IER -

A E 2 R AT EE

A 2 RA AT ERE
A AEERA

HERTesHnEs
REEBm AR -

AREERHE N EEH

TP B IRFENL 2 Wt
(FA) 487
ZA/NGIE 2N
SRl g 3

B M H A 2 E W

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—_Z—+F+-A=t—HIFE

2017 2016
—g—tF —TAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THR
102,606 74,433
(107,195) 170,573
26,799 (42,643)
93,628 (80,699)
13,232 47,231
115,838 121,664
118,777 128,063
(2,939) (6,399)
115,838 121,664
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iR E BISANRZR
At 31 December 2017
R=Z—+F+_A=+—8H

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Finance lease receivables
Interests in associates
Available-for-sale investment
Consideration receivable

Current assets

Inventories

Finance lease receivables

Properties under development for sale

Properties held for sale

Trade and notes receivables

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Consideration receivable

Amount due from an associate

Amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Entrusted loan receivables

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Assets classified as held for sale
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Notes
Bzt

15
16
17
19
20
18
22
23
38

24
18
25
26
27

27
38
27

27
21
28
28

22

2017 2016
—E—+tE —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
384,949 350,779
399,258 376,914
86,793 84,185
188,765 148,405
47,339 43,719
705 637
2,274 3,800
80,253 187,448
1,733 1,621
1,192,069 1,197,508
758,531 737,417
2,097 6,085

- 359,130
502,998 167,355
344,208 258,321
331,579 275,090
723 676
3,200 2,000
11,633 11,633
36,150 112,700
30,125 76,636
417,092 249,132
2,438,336 2,256,175
- 26,117
2,438,336 2,282,292




Current liabilities

Trade and notes payables

Other payables, deposits received
and accruals

Other liabilities

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Bank borrowings

Tax payable

Liabilities associated with asset
classified as held for sale

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Capital and reserves

Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Notes

Hiet

29

29
29

29
30

22

31
32

FEMBIRR R
At 31 December 2017
RZF—+F+=ZA=1+—H

2017 2016
8-t - RH
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHT
393,750 374,218
599,012 423,995
141,154 =

— 35,613

84,104 299,991
37,992 23,138
1,256,012 1,156,955
= 24,794
1,256,012 1,181,749
1,182,324 1,100,543
2,374,393 2,298,051
255,955 255,790
1,865,855 1,770,956
2,121,810 2,026,746
101,481 105,801
2,223,291 2,132,547
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
hRE BISHROR &R

At 31 December 2017
R-T—tF+=-A=+—H

Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBRE
Deferred income FEIELA

The consolidated financial statements on pages 76 to 205 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2018 and are
signed on its behalf by:

WONG CHO TUNG
FHE

DIRECTOR

EZ
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2017 2016
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Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FET FHTT
20 99,151 111,638
29 51,951 53,866
151,102 165,504

2,374,393 2,298,051

CHAN TAT WING, RICHARD
DIRECTOR
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

e N\ /4
/\ ¢ /MwmmEbEE
™

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-T—t#+-A=+-ALFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ROAERARL
Statutory Share  Properties Bsses Capital Non-
Share Share surplus Other optin ~ revaluation revaluation redemption  Translation  Accumulated controling
capital -~ premium Tesene Tesene Tesene Tesene fesere feserve Tesere profits Tofal  interests Total
i K Vi &k 08 iR
BE  BBEE  EHRE  AHEE B EMRE EfGR BERE ABRE  EM &if B &if
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'O000  HKSO000  HK$'000
fan T TR TR Thr R TR TR TR TR TR TR TEm
(Notea) ~ (Noteb)
(Wita) (i)
At 1 January 2016 NENE-R-B 200 813%3 40623 97001 388 102827 - 208 o H13 18571 102605 1998384
Prot o) forte year TEREA (5E) - - - - - - - - - TR TR g Ay
Othercomprebenshieincome AR EH
(expense) for e year REME(RR) - - - - - VI - (W) - 0% G a4l
Toilcompehensheincome.~ AEE2ENE
(expense) o the year (B 48 - - - - - - I 1A T I 1 < N I A
Stere opons psed B - - - - - - - - 4w - - -
Captalveductonof on-wholy— 3E2 4B
Onne Subsidry Bikels - - - - - - - - - - - Q3 (239
Incomporaioncfnonholy — F3ERE
uned subsidres i/ - - - - - - - - - - - 190 1
Tanstrositioy supls— BEZHEE
TESeNe - - 1416 - - - - - - (7416) - - -
Recogriton ofequty setled
Share-nased payments - - - - 2904 - - - - - 290 - 2904
At31 December 2016 REE
228 B0 818 803 97001 0512 102827 127930 208 10048 1484 200676 105801 2157
Protloss) for theyear REEEH(ER) - - - - - - - - - LAl 1S (0045 102606
Ot comprehenshe (expense) - AR
income for the year AM(ER ) - - - - - - (8039%) - - 7126 6106 13232
Totacompreiensive (expense) - REE 2 (3
income forthe year YitE - - - - - - (803%) S A7/ V V) RV N (2939) 115838
Tensfrpmereckeel.  RGEERGES
shae optios £ - 27 - - (297) - - - - - - - -
Isteoinensharesupon R EERIER
eeckeolshareoptons K175 165 406 - - - - - - - - 571 - 51
Stere options apsed ERiEx - - - - (1) - - - - 751 - - -
Dispose ofsubsidres ﬁﬁ T‘ BN - - - - - - - - - - - 1) 025
Requistion of acitonal interests AEEIER 7
In SUosidaries - - - 13 - - - - - - 3 (129) (116)
Transfer o satutory surplus
TESENe - - 2045 - - - - - - (20 - - -
Recognition o equly setted
Share-nased payments ) - - - - 1,82 - - - - - 1282 - 1282
Diidend paid EifRE - - - - - - - - - (B9 (25579) - (B
At31 Decemter 2017 RoE-tF
TRZT-0 0 25595 832,066 50,084 97,104 2,746 102827 47534 2080 187950 516200 2121810 101481 2203291
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HILFE

Notes:

(a)

(b)

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), before distribution of the net profit each
year, the subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of
their net profit after taxation for the statutory surplus reserve fund
(except where the reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’
registered capital). The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval
by the board of directors of the relevant subsidiaries and by the
relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.

Other reserve is arisen from the reorganisation in preparation for
the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and the difference between the
considerations paid and the relevant non-controlling interests upon
the acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2017

Hrez:

(a)

(b)

AR E ARKME ([H B ) AR RERZHAE - R
PR FY B A B B R RN IR 3% AT 2 B Bt B AR A% A
10% EREEBHREES (FEEZIE A R EAR50% 15
TSN - ZERBSETAREHERFBRIGEMER -
HRESHENBRARESE MAAMEERE 21 -

REBARBABEOREBBARXZMARABER L mE
TEAEEZEMEE  RENKEERKENE A RNE
SME R RO MERASFIE R R E 2 MM ER -



OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Gain on disposal of an associate
Dividend income
Share-based payments expense
Net reversal of allowance
for bad and doubtful debts
Share of results of associates
Reversal of allowance of inventories
Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in respect of property,
plant and equipment
Changes in fair values of investment properties
Interest income

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Decrease in properties under
development for sales and properties
held for sales
(Increase) decrease in trade and notes receivables
Increase in other receivables, deposits
and prepayments
Decrease in finance lease receivables
Decrease in trade and notes payables
Increase in other payables, deposits received
and accruals and deferred income

Cash generated from operations
Interest received

PRC tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REEE

BRI AL A

FLTFRE (AR -
BAMKA
e T 5
HEME - BEX
Rz ER
HEM B ARz s
HE—REE ARz e
REHA
B R F X
REEFRB AR CIFE

LA UNSIE S

FEEFERED

IE -~ B MR AEHER
BIEEERD

REMEATEY
FIBMA

EERSEIH
KERENE

FERD (Em)

BERPMHENER
BELENERD

FEWE % IR R B E (S h0) Al
HitERERR B2 R
BRI FIRE M
kR ERERD
BB ZRF R
HigEMER 24z
FERT R FRIEAR ASE A

REREZRE
B E
B ERE

REREEFHHEFE

=AN AN AN A=
,Z“, BIRE //HJii‘%
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—_Z—+F+-_A=t—HIEFE

2017 2016
—E—iE —T—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET
138,796 96,500
8,990 10,140
231,161 227,691
1,836 885
(118) -
(8,736) =
(171) -
1,282 2,904
(854) (3,324)
1,527 1,538
(11,706) (2,898)
- (6,304)
(9,565) (12,348)
(11,714) (11,513)
340,728 303,266
28,669 (98,420)
86,191 13,876
(72,845) 23,284
(76,390) (32,643)
4,385 6,416
(2,717) (223,931)
71,360 220,424
379,381 212,272
12,061 11,513
(11,217) (12,758)
380,225 211,027

RANKEBERAR —F +FFH

83



84

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEREnEX

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+F+-A=+—HIFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Development costs paid
Placement of pledged bank deposits
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits
Investment in entrusted loan receivables
Receipt of entrusted loan receivables
Dividend received
Injection from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries
Deposits received for disposal of an associate
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries
Consideration received from the disposal of
an associate
Deposits received for disposal of subsidiaries
Advance to an associate

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank borrowings raised

Repayment of bank borrowings

Increase in other liabilities

Interest paid

Dividend paid

Repayment to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries

Net proceeds from issue of shares upon
exercise of shares options

Cash used in acquisitions of additional
interests of subsidiaries

Repayment to an associate

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash
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ARRERB 2R SR

RERREEEER
8 (i) 4

FIRERREEERA

Exgn o 28

FRREERREEERE
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2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
(53,544) (58,997)
2,398 5,275
(201,056) (194,485)
(85,535) (136,224)
132,046 158,236
(36,150) (69,960)
112,700 73,458
171 -

- 6,466

- 1,224

2,577 -
10,059 -
62,419 -
(1,200) (2,000)
(55,115) (217,007)
232,465 557,146
(469,114) (575,223)
141,154 -
(8,990) (10,140)
(25,579) =
(35,613) (9,352)
571 -
(116) -

= (3,501)
(165,222) (41,070)
159,888 (47,050)
249,132 298,386
8,072 (2,204)
417,092 249,132




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) with limited liability. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section of
the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB™). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), as the Directors
consider that it is a more appropriate presentation for a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) and for the convenience of the
shareholders.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are disclosed in note 42.

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs for
the first time in the current year:

Amendments to IAS 7

BIFR & ST 2ERIZE 7 5% 2 85T
Amendments to IAS 12

BIFR & 5 T2ERISE 1257 2 18R]
Amendments to IFRS 12

B B B 75 i 5 HE RIS 12 5% 2 18T

BKEtEl

A ERR B T
Z— 8

e ME RN
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+F+-A=1t—HLFE

RRBIRBARE-NN—FRADE(EE
FRBREZIMRLAERRERAQE - K
RAZEMPER LT BEEMHEFRZIA
AER —EARE -

ARBZNEEERARE (AR ) - AR
BMBHRRIAETES NREERRIER—
MEBMARXZABR AR (B K LR
RAMTERRRBIR  MEHRRAETZS
FRIRE -

RAR B —RREZEBR AR - ENEAF
DRI FE42 155 -

el

Zx

TR £ B 56 1) 4 Sz B R B B S 5 2 R 2 8 T

REEENAREE S REAA TERE SRS
B 2T -

Disclosure initiative

Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses
ARSI EIREREEN IR EE

As part of the annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 cycle
EREA T -FE T FRARZFESE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hRE BTG RaR M R
For the year ended 31 December 2017

HEZ

B EtF+-A=+—HALFE

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (CONTINUED)

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the
amendments also require disclosures on changes in financial
assets if cash flows from those financial assets were, or future
cash flows will be, included in cash flows from financing
activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange
rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of relevant items is provided in note 39. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 39, the application
of these amendments has had no impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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New and revised IFRSs in issue but not effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hrE PR RER M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+F1+-A=1+—HIFE

© BR 5 {8 1o AR A B2 $T AT R ARME AT B R B A 3R
HEA
AEEHARFERA T EBEMERRERZ

IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective: #a] RIS AT BIR B 75 S o5 22 R

IFRS 9 Financial instruments!

I A B 75 i 5 ME B S8 O 51 TRITA!

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers and the related amendments!
B B B 75 5 2RI 28 15558 BPEa R RAEREET !

IFRS 16 Leases?

B PR B 7 3 5 2 RIS 16577 Gizh =1

IFRS 17 Insurance contracts*

I A B 75 5 E R EE 17 5% REREHK

IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration!

IFRIC 23
BERSmEREZEREE 235
Amendments to IFRS 2

B B B 7 R 5 MR R B8 2 5% 2 18R T
Amendments to IFRS 4

BIR B 75 i 2E RIS 4 5% 2 (85T

Amendments to IFRS 9
BIPR B TS s S 2RISR O SR 2 85T
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

B B s i 2E B 5 10 5% %
BIFR &5 4ERI 2 28 5% 2 A& AT

Amendments to IAS 19

BUFR & 5T ERIZE 1957 2 85T
Amendments to IAS 28

BFR & 5T 4ERI S 28 5% 2 1S E]
Amendments to IAS 28

BIRR @5+ 4RI 28 5% 2 & R]
Amendments to IAS 40

PR & ST RIS 40 5% 2 18R]
Amendments to IFRSs

B B B 75 i 5 MR B 2 1B /T

HNER 5 RIERRE!

Uncertainty over income tax treatments?

FRASHUEREE 2 T 1 2

Classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions!

AR D RER 2 XN RGN D KRR

Applying IFRS 9 Financial instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance contracts!

FEFRBIRRB R S 2ERIE Ok [ @R T A | R BURR B 5 & 22 R
F45% [REEEH ]!

Prepayment features with negative compensation?

BE BB ENFIER

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture?

KREELEBENARAECERCEEREIIAS

Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement?

Bl ZIER] ~ HIAEAEE 2

Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures?

REE R R REERFE KRR

As part of the annual improvements to IFRS 2014-2016 cycle!
AEEMEREEN T -—NFE T "NFRACFEREZ —HH!
Transfers of investment property!

REWFE B!

Annual improvements to IFRS 2015-2017 cycle?

BRI mE R —E - FE T+ F R FEBE?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hRE BTG RaR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HIFE

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not effective (conTinuED)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned
below, the Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to IFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

IFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general
hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial
assets.
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IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (coNTINUED)
Key requirements of IFRS 9 relevant to the Group are
described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of IAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement” are subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All other
financial assets are measured at their fair value at
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before credit losses are recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hRE BTG RaR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+F+-A=+—HIFE

IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (coNTINUED)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the Directors
of the Company anticipate the following potential impact on
initial application of IFRS 9.

Classification and measurement:

Debt instruments classified as loan receivables carried at
amortised cost: these are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding. Accordingly, these financial assets will continue
to be subsequently measured at amortised cost upon the
application of IFRS 9;

Listed equity securities classified as available-for-sale
investments carried at fair value: these securities qualified
for designation as measured at FVTOCI under IFRS 9 and
the Directors have elected to present subsequent changes in
fair value in other comprehensive income, however, the fair
value gains or losses accumulated in the assets revaluation
reserve amounting to HK$47,534,000 as at 1 January 2018
will no longer be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
under IFRS 9, which is different from the current treatment.
This will affect the amounts recognised in the Group’s profit or
loss and other comprehensive income but will not affect total
comprehensive income;

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will continue
to be measured on the same bases as are currently measured
under IAS 39.
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IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (coNTINUED)

Impairment

In general, the Directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the expected credit loss model of IFRS
9 will result in earlier provision of credit losses which are
not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets
measured at amortised costs and other items that subject to
the impairment provisions upon application of IFRS 9 by the
Group.

Based on the assessment by the Directors of the Company,
if the expected credit loss model were to be applied by
the Group, the accumulated amount of impairment loss to
be recognised by the Group as at 1 January 2018 would
be increased as compared to the accumulated amount
recognised under IAS 39 mainly attributable to expected
credit losses provision on trade receivables. Such further
impairment recognised under expected credit loss model
would reduce the opening accumulated profits at 1 January
2018.

IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18
“Revenue”, IAS 11 “Construction contracts” and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+F+-A=+—HIFE

IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(CONTINUED)

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with
specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by IFRS 15.

In 2016, Clarifications to IFRS 15 in relation to the
identification of performance obligations, principal versus
agent considerations, as well as licensing application
guidance has been issued.
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IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(CONTINUED)

The Directors anticipate that the application of IFRS 15 in
the future may result in more disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements, however, the Directors of the Company
do not anticipate that the application of IFRS 15 will have
a material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised in the respective reporting periods.

IFRS 16 “Leases”

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 will
supersede IAS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified assets is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lease accounting, and is replaced a single model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets.
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IFRS 16 “Leases” (CONTINUED)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash
flows in relation to investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of IFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease
liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion
which will be presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Under IAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the group is a
lessee. The application of IFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.
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IFRS 16 “Leases” (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitment of HK$13,061,000 as disclosed
in note 33. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of IFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.
In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid and refundable rental deposits received as
rights and obligations under leases to which IAS 17 applies.
Based on the definition of lease payments under IFRS 16,
such deposits are not payments relating to the right to use
the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of
such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and such
adjustments are considered as additional lease payments.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be
included in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received would be
considered as advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above.
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Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture”

The amendments to IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial
statements” and IAS 28 “Investments in associates and
joint ventures” deal with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains
or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary
that does not contain a business in a transaction with an
associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the
equity method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting
from the remeasurement of investments retained in any
former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair
value are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only
to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new
associate or joint venture.

The Directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 may have an impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in future
periods should such transactions arise.
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Amendments to IAS 40 “Transfers of investment property”
The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from, investment
property necessitates an assessment of whether a property
meets, or has ceased to meet, the definition of investment
property, supported by observable evidence that a change
in use has occurred. The amendments further clarify that
situations other than the ones listed in IAS 40 may evidence
a change in use, and that a change in use is possible for
properties under construction. For example, change in use
for transfer from properties under development for sale in the
ordinary course of business to investment properties could be
evidenced by inception of an operating lease to another party.
Currently, the Group accounts for such transfer only upon
commencement of an operating lease.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these amendments will result in early recognition of such
transfers on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in
future periods should there be a change in use of any of its
properties.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting periods as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.
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Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17 “Leases”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS
2 “Inventories” or value in use in IAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by
the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

° has power over the investee;

. has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect
its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hrE PR RER M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_T—+tF+-A=+—HLFE

BEoh - MEIISSREM S - AFEFERBEATF
BErfEMABASE TBEREEREBEA
HEHEEASNEZRSBEE LR - F
ZARRISE=RR - Flan T

s F-HNBABERERRNFERNA
ABSHAERIEER B ENERMSZ
HECRERE) -

s FEMNBABEBERREEXABER
SRR A B 2 AR (F—RBIA
BIRENRERR) + R

F=RBNBARBBEEERBENTA
BB ARUR

ZRFHREEIIMT -

SO EE

FEMBRREBERNRRRARAREMB R

BIFTEHI BB 2 M EHmE - ARANTIER
ER{S Il

o AIHRIRENTTERES

. AR ARG E S 2 ] 0 HR
[RE RAES - K

e AERMHEHBRRETZENAZERE

%&o

)

ﬁﬁ%§&1ﬁ@mikfﬁ%%%£§ﬁ—
Hek A FHIRES)  AEESEHTHEE
WA B T A R HIAE

RANKEBERAR —F +FFH

99



100

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hRE BTG RER M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+F+-A=+—HIFE

Basis of consolidation (coNTINUED)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components of
equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Basis of consolidation (conTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (cONTINUED)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable IFRSs).

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting except when the investment
is classified as held for sale, in which case it is account for
in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations.” The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.
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Interests in associates (CONTINUED)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date of which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS
36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment is classified as held for sale.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon
disposal of the relevant associate.
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Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal
of an investment in an associate, the investment that will be
disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, and the Group discontinues the use
of the equity method in relation to the portion that is classified
as held for sale. The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method at the time of disposal when the disposal results in the
Group losing significant influence over the associate.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for discounts and
sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course
of business is recognised when the respective properties
have been completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits
and instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting
to meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition are
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
under current liabilities.
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Revenue recognition (CONTINUED)
Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for
leasing below.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit of loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of the translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable and deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Taxation (coNTINUED)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.
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Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
where primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
and rational basis in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.
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Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure, except for those transferred
from property, plant and equipment and land use rights which
are measured at fair value at date of transferred. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair value using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the item is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of each element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire property is accounted as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When the
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold
land and building elements, the entire property is generally
classified as if the leasehold land is under finance lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Intangible assets

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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Intangible assets (coNTINUED)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(CONTINUED)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.
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Provisions (CONTINUED)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are stated at lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises both the
land use rights and development cost of the property. Net
realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion.

Development cost of property comprises the related land cost,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised according to
the Group’s accounting policy and directly attributable costs
incurred during the development period. On completion, the
properties are transferred to properties held for sales.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes the costs of land, development
expenditure incurred and, where appropriate, borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value is determined based on
price ultimately expected to be realised less applicable selling
expenses.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
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Financial instruments (conTINUED)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified to financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), available-for-
sale investments and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the other gains and losses. Fair value
is determined in the manner described in note 41.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (conTINUED)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or are not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investment.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of assets
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the assets revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established.
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Financial instruments (conTINUED)

Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including amounts due from non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate,
trade and notes receivables, entrusted loan receivables, other
receivables, consideration receivable, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Obijective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments and an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 90
days.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (conTINUED)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of assets revaluation reserve.
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Financial instruments (conTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is held for trading.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (conTiNnUuED)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any interest paid on the financial liabilities and is
included in other gains and losses.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and notes payables,
other payables and accruals, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, other liabilities and
bank borrowings) are initially measured at fair values and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognised financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
or payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees and other providing
similar services as employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the Directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
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The following are critical judgements involving estimations,
the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis
at the end of the reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that
are no longer suitable for use in production or sale. The
management estimates the net realisable value for such
finished goods and raw materials based primarily on the latest
selling and purchase prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-
product basis at the end of the reporting period and makes
allowance for obsolete items If the market condition was to
deteriorate, resulting in a lower net realisable value for such
finished goods and raw materials, additional allowances may
be required. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount
of inventories is approximately HK$758,531,000 (2016:
HK$737,417,000). During the year ended 31 December
2017, reversal of allowance of inventories of HK$11,706,000
(2016: HK$2,898,000) was credited to profit or loss.

Collectability of entrusted loan receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss on
entrusted loan receivables, the Group estimates the future
cash flows of entrusted loan receivables for impairment
testing purpose. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the entrusted loan
receivable’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise in future financial periods. The aggregate carrying
value of entrusted loan receivables at 31 December 2017 was
HK$36,150,000 (2016: HK$112,700,000).
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Impairment of trade receivables

In estimating whether allowance for bad and doubtful
debts is required, the Group takes into consideration the
ageing status and the likelihood of collection. When there
is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2017, the
net carrying amounts of trade receivables are approximately
HK$302,581,000 (2016: HK$234,477,000). During the year
ended 31 December 2017, net reversal of allowance for bad
and doubtful debts of HK$854,000 (2016: HK$3,324,000)
is credited to profit or loss. Details of trade receivables are
disclosed in note 27.

Estimated impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether development costs included in
intangible assets are individually impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use calculation by reference to
the cash flow projections prepared in accordance with the
signed sales contracts of respective projects. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, an impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount
of development costs is approximately HK$183,872,000
(2016: HK$147,486,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation of development costs are disclosed in note 19.
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Land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of the tax varies amongst
different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC and
certain projects of the Group have not yet finalised their land
appreciation tax calculations and payments with any local tax
authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of land appreciation
and its related income tax provisions. The Group recognised
the LAT based on management’s best estimates. The final
tax outcome could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
income tax expense and the related income tax provisions
in the periods in which such tax is finalised with local tax
authorities.

Estimated fair value of investment properties

Investment properties were revalued at the end of the
reporting period using income capitalisation approach by
independent qualified professional valuer. Such valuation
was based on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results.
In making the valuation, the Group’s management has made
estimates concerning rental yield for rental income to be
generated by the investment properties. The assumptions
used are intended to reflect conditions existing at the end
of the reporting period. Where there are any changes in
the assumptions due to the market conditions in the PRC,
the estimate of fair value of investment properties may be
significantly affected. As at 31 December 2017, investment
properties of approximately HK$384,949,000 (2016:
HK$350,779,000) were revalued.
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Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties,
the Directors have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation
to the Group’s investment properties has been measured in
accordance with the general principles set out in IAS 12.

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold net of discounts and sales related taxes, interest
income generated from equipment financial leasing to
outsiders and service income generated from service provided
to outsiders.

Information reported to the executive Directors, being the
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods delivered.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016,
the Group was organised into five reportable and operating
segments, being Handsets and internet of things terminals
business (“Handsets and |OT terminals business”), Wireless
communication modules business, Internet of things system
and online-to-offline business (“IOT system and 020
business”), Intelligent manufacturing business and Property
development.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HIFE

The Group has changed its segment names from “sales of
handsets, solutions and intelligent terminals” to “Handsets
and |IOT terminals business”; from “sales of wireless
communication modules” to “Wireless communication
modules business”; and from “internet of things business”
to “IOT system and 020 business” during the year ended
31 December 2017. However, the underlying businesses of
these segments are same as prior year.

These reportable and operating segments are the basis
of the internal reports about components of the Group
that are regularly reviewed by the executive Directors in
order to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance.

Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

by reportable and operating segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2017

RZE—+F+_A=1+—HILEFE ~5E
FREIEEE AT BRI RNEEE
R SHE | B [ FHR B R mER ]
m [ EEAURAMRIR | 25 [BARBHIERE
1 R R 5ETS | DUs [ B R g
BEBE] AT ZFENBIABERBERBE
FEMAR -

ZEAERREEDRANTESE RN
BRAASEANKE D 2 NERHREERE - AN
DEERTHBELFEREA

DEBAREE
TRAAKEZAZHBREEDRIWMARE
B

BE_—FE—tHF1-A=1+—HAIUFE

Handsets
and 0T Wireless
terminals communication 10T system Intelligent
business modules and 020 manufacturing
FHRR business business business Property
L BEER  NBEZSR B8 development  Consolidated
RITER BREE  REEEEK BEEK NERE &e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx Thx Thn Thx Thx Thx
(Note)
()
Revenue WA
External sales HONEE 1,076,853 1,454,923 318,942 101,428 306,371 3,258,517
Segment profit (loss) AR (ER) 26,394 57,478 (9,188) (12,453) 34,543 96,774
Other income and other i AR E o
gains and losses RER 78,646
Share of results of associates MEBENREE (1,527)
Corporate expenses RERY (26,107)
Finance costs BARKA (8,990)
Profit before taxation BHATRT 138,796
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Segment revenue and results (cONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Revenue
External sales

Segment profit

QOther income and other
gains and losses

Share of results of associates

Corporate expenses

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

BA
e

GEll

EftlARE ke

RER
DEBEATIRE
RARR

FRATE R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e WIS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+F1+-A=1+—HIFE

DEBMAREE ()
BE T NF+—A=+—HIFEF
Handsets
and [OT Wireless
terminals - communication 0T system Intelligent
business modules and 020  manufacturing
FHR business business business Property
] BEER NBEER B development  Consolidated
S BRER  REEEH R NEER A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
(Note)
(i)
1,271,117 815,016 302,354 143 454 192,449 2,724,390
22,831 63,974 13 6,283 3678 9,779
39,815
(1,533)
(28,421)
(10,140)
96,500
Biet - DEMERSREEEBDERERER - X9

Note: The 10T system and 020 business is still in a developing stage.

The revenue of this segment represents the income generated from

equipment finance lease service, sale of goods to vending machine

customers and franchisees and provision of procurement agency

service.

M AR ERERERE R AETERES R
AHSERHE R M - A REHEBRIE RS AE
ERHA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+F+-A=+—HIFE

Segment revenue and results (coNTINUED)

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment result represents the profit
earned or loss incurred by each segment without allocation
of gain from changes in fair values of investment properties,
rental income, interest income, unallocated exchange gain
or loss, loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
gain on disposal of an associate, fair value change on
derivative financial instruments, certain other income,
corporate expenses, share of results of associates, finance
costs and taxation. This is the measure reported to the
executive Directors for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales were charged at mutually agreed terms.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable and operating segment:

At 31 December 2017

Segment assets PEREE
Investment properties REME
Property, plantand equipment  ¥1% - BE Rk fE
Land use rights TibfERE
Deferred tax assets EREHEAE
Entrusted loan receivables ERZTER
Interests in associates N AN 5
Available-for-sale investment MR ERE
Consideration receivable FERKE

Amounts due from non-controlling FEYZHE A FI3ERAR
shareholders of subsidiaries e
Amount due from an associate  E—TEEEE A RIFIE

Other receivables, deposits and

B
EtEIRET - KR

prepayments BB
Pledged bank deposits BEBROEH
Bank balances and cash BOfEBRERE
Consolidated assets LREE
Segment liabilities HERRE
Other payables, deposits RN Bl
received and accruals e RERHE
Bank borrowings RITRE
Tax payable FERHIR
Deferred tax liabilities ERREEE
Consolidated labilties raRfE

Handsets
and 0T
terminals
business
FHE
ki
RinEH
HK$'000
TERL

891,788

506,278

Wireless
communication
modules
business
BEE
BRER
HK$'000
TERL

653,297

174,713

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+F1+-A=1+—HIFE

PHEERGEE
TREFIAEFBRAIZHRLEESHENNE
ERBENN

R-F—tF+=HA=1+—H

10T system Intelligent
and 020 manufacturing
business business Property
NERREG BHEE  development  Consolidated
REEXH % NERR )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn

153,196 214,891 554,350 2,467,522
384,949
102,230

44,543
47,339
36,150

2,274
80,253

2,456

11,633
3,200

639
30,125

417,092

3,630,405

15,699 84,328 397,630 1,178,648
7,219
84,104
37,992

99,151

1,407,114

RANKEBERAR —F +FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HIFE

Segment assets and liabilities (coNTINUED) PEEEREE (H)
At 31 December 2016 R-E—NF+—H=+—H
Handsets
and 0T Wireles
terminals - communication 10T system Intelligent
business modules and 020  manufacturing
FhK business business business Property
byl mEEA MBEZER B4  development  Consolidated
Binsis BREH  RESEER BUEET NEEE e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
THL THL THL THL TEL TEL

Segment assets PEEE 859,359 494,816 185,400 232,582 597,743 2,369,900
Investment properties REME 350,779
Property, plantand equipment  #1% ~ BE k& 25,563
Land use rights TifERE 15,560
Deferred tax assets EEREEE 43719
Entrusted loan receivables BRETER 112,700
Interests in associates NN 5 3,800
Available-for-sale investment i ERE 187,448
Consideration receivable KB 2,297
Amounts due from non-controlling FEYU B2 RI3EHRAR

shareholders of subsidiaries RRFE 11,633
Amount due from an associate  JEIR—TEEEE A AIFIE 2,000
Other receivables, depositsand ~ E-fEUERFT - &R

prepayments R 2516
Pledged bank deposits BEARTER 76,636
Bank balances and cash ROEBRLAS 249132
Asset classified as held for sale ~ DEEARHEHEZERE 26,117
Consolidated assets GREE 3,479,800
Segment liabilities PEARE 384,528 111910 11,011 67,822 299,548 874,819
Other payables, deposits EtERER - Bl

received and accruals ke LEE 12873
Bank borrowings ROEE 299,991
Tax payable e HE 23138
Deferred tax liabilities ERXREAE 111,638
Liability associated with asset ~~ EAEARBENLE

classified as held for sale ZEERBERE 24,794
Consolidated liabilities TRAE 1,347,253
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Segment assets and liabilities (coNTINUED)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than investment properties, certain
property, plant and equipment, certain land use rights,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
entrusted loan receivables, interests in associates,
available-for-sale investment, consideration receivable,
deferred tax assets, certain other receivables, deposits
and prepayments, amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate and
asset classified as held for sale. Assets used jointly by
operating segments are allocated on the basis of the
revenues earned by individual operating segments; and

° other than liabilities specifically identified for reportable
and operating segments on 10T system and 020
business, intelligent manufacturing business and
property development, the remaining liabilities are
allocated between payables jointly consumed by
reportable and operating segments on Handsets and
IOT terminals business and Wireless communication
modules business and corporate liabilities. Corporate
liabilities include certain other payables, deposits
received and accruals, tax payable, bank borrowings,
deferred tax liabilities and liability associated with asset
classified as held for sale.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hrE PR RER M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+F1+-A=1+—HIFE

PREEREE(H)
JEe

EDRERBENERE D BEIEER

BEREME ETUE - BERRE -
ETLHHERE EEBRITER
RITHEBREA S BERZFEER - R
BRB 2R AHESERE - BRAK
B EEHREE & TEMEKK
B HERBEMNRIE - EBKRKER A
Ko — B 8 2 R FEFE AR SR GRIA A B 9
BRRIFLEEEIN  MABEBNER
ERNEHRMEENE - EEDBEHARARE
ROEERS EED BAMREAKAD
i Ko

BRABEERVBERRLEEET
BHREXBRNERRZAI2HLE
BOEAEIN ERBEESEEH
T e B AR A S B AR AR R TS
2RI 2| N EEN BHEHEFEZ AR
FoUAREERAEE  EXARBEET
HEA R - EWIRE KB FOA
FERBIE - SRITEE  BEEHBAERER
EOBRFELEEERBZAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HIFE

Other segment information
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit
orloss or segment assefs:

Additions of property, plant
and equipment
Additions of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of land use rights
Net reversal of allowance for bad
and doubtful debts
Reversal of allowance of inventories
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

EEnRRRINE

EESRNEE:

RENE BER
R

RERVEE

0z BEkiRlz
il
EVAERS

b RER

SRERRRDRE

FERRRE
HENE - B Rk
LB
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Handsets
and 0T
terminals
business
FHR
]
RinE
HK$'000
T

40437
85,313

28,938
90,497
924

(854)
(11,706)

1,035

Wireless
communication
modules
business
EREH
AR
HK$'000
TEn

9,239
78,408

9,487

42,034
914

32

Hibn HEH

BE_FE—tHF1-A=1+—HIUFE

10T system Intelligent
and 020  manufacturing
business business
NHEZG 4
REEEH HEREY
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEn
1,170 2,142

803 41,410

3,829 2,391
4134 39,677

152 34

642 121

Property
development
IEE
HK$'000
TR

Unallocated
AR
HK$'000
TER

46

6,900

1,087

Consolidated
&e
HK$'000
Tién

53,034
205,934

51,708
176,342
3,111

(854)
(11,706)

1,836




Other segment information (coNTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit
orloss or segment assefs:

Addttions of property, plant
and equipment

Additions of intangible assets

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of land use rights

Net reversal of allowance for bad
and doubtful debts

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment

Reversal of allowance of inventories

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

e i s
BENBBRANE

BESRNEE:

RENE BRER
Rl
REEVEE

0% HEkRle
i

BlAERH

HbERER

SRERRRDEE

#%  HERRE
ALAERR
i
FERAERD
HENR - BEkRE
pa )

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hrE PR RER M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+F1+-A=1+—HIFE

B2 AR ()
BE-F—AF+-A=+—AILEE

Handsets

and 0T Wireless

terminals -~ communication 0T system Intelligent

business modules and 020 manufacturing

FHR business business business Property

)l BREH  RRZS 28 development  Unallocated  Consolidated
ST BRER  REELH SEEH NEER AR )

HK$1000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$1000 HK$000
ThL ThL AL TAL TAL AL TAL

11,440 10,003 3161 34386 I = 58,997
118,063 39411 3317 33,704 - - 194,485
44511 8890 4834 8,091 329 1,740 68,3%
95,864 35,007 1112 24199 = = 156,182
1,738 454 117 390 = 415 3114
(3,324) = = - = = (3,324)
(6,304) = = - = = (6,304)
(2,898) = - - = = (28%)
885 = = = = = 885
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HIFE

Revenue from major products/services

Sale of handsets and IOT terminals

Sale of wireless communication
modules

Sale of goods to vending machine
customers and franchisees

Finance lease of equipment

Procurement agency service

Sale of intelligent manufacturing
products

Sale of residential properties

Geographical information

REEEERREHUYA
2017 2016
k- El o -3 —T—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAET
SHES T S W AR Ak 1,076,853 1,271,117
SHE AR AN R R
1,454,923 815,016
MEBREPE RIFTCERHEEER
299,749 272,490
HERERE 1,965 3,720
RERIZRS 17,228 26,144
HEBRERIEEM
101,428 143,454
SHEEEWE 306,371 192,449
3,258,517 2,724,390

The Group’s revenue and non-current assets are substantially
generated from and located in the PRC, the country of
domicile from which the group entities derive revenue and
hold assets. Accordingly, no further analysis is presented.
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Refund of Value Added Tax
(“VAT") (Note 1)

Government grants (Note 2)

Interest income earned on bank
balances

Interest income earned on entrusted
loan receivables

Rental income (Less: outgoings
of HK$2,661,000
(2016: HK$2,967,000))

Dividend income from available-
for-sale investment

Others

ER ([EERD
BB (A1)
BB B YA Bzt 2)
HRITAREERERER
Z R BHA
e EE SR 2 KB YA

AW A GF - 32H 2,661,000 7T
(ZZ—75F 1 2,967,0007T))

BRI ERE 2 BREBHWA

Hit

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e WIS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+F1+-A=1+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E2—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
9,652 10,876
22,863 20,034
4,693 2,575
7,021 8,938
25,526 28,464
171 =
3,810 115
73,736 71,002

RANKEBERAR —F +FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HIFE

Notes:

Shanghai Simcom Limited (“Shanghai Simcom”) and Shanghai
Simcom Wireless Solutions Limited (“Simcom Wireless”) are
engaged in the business of distribution of self-developed and
produced software and the development of automated test
equipment and software. Under the current PRC tax regulation,
they are entitled to a refund of VAT paid for sales of self-developed
and produced software and the development of automated test
software in the PRC.

The amount includes HK$4,262,000 (2016: HK$2,487,000)
unconditional government grants received during the year ended
31 December 2017, which was granted to encourage the Group’s

research and development activities in the PRC.

In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group also received government grants of HK$13,143,000
(2016: HK$19,591,000) towards the cost of development of
Wireless communication modules business and Handsets and
10T terminals business in Shanghai and Shenyang. The amount
received is deferred and is transferred to other income to match
actual expenditure used in research and development activities
and HK$18,601,000 (2016: HK$17,547,000) was recognised in
the profit or loss during the year. As at 31 December 2017, an
amount of HK$55,445,000 (2016: HK$57,134,000) remained to
be amortised and is included in other payables (for current portion)
and deferred income (for non-current portion) (Note 29).
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Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Net foreign exchange gain (loss)
Changes in fair values of
investment properties
Net reversal of allowance
for bad and doubtful debts
Reversal of impairment loss
recognised
in respect of property, plant
and equipment
Gain from disposal of subsidiaries
Fair value change on derivative
financial instruments
— forward contracts
Gain on disposal of an associate

Interests on bank borrowings

HEWE - BEN&RiE2ER

S Wees (518 R
BREWMENTERE)

ERER B E TR
MAE - WS MR TR
ZR(ERERE

BB A2 s
PTESBTAMATES
—EHAK

RITEEF S

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e WIS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+F1+-A=1+—HIFE

2017 2016
—g—t& -F5E
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TR
(1,836) (885)
30,223 (22,397)
9,565 12,348
854 3,324

— 6,304

118 =
(9,982) -
8,736 =
37,678 (1,306)
2017 2016
=gt T AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiHn T
8,990 10,140

RANKEBERAR —F +FFH

137



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hRE BTG RaR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HIFE

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

ESREFYITEME

REBER EMRAERBRARUEPIFTKE 2R
FEANABREEREFRATEENIENZ

&

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-E—t5+-A=t-HALFE

Retirement
benefits
scheme
Directors’  Salaries and Share-based contributions Total
fees allowances Bonus  payments BB emoluments
EEHE Hek=RH L URGBHER STEIMR Bme
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TERT
(Note 1)
(1)
Executive Directors BTES
Ms Yeung Man Ying BXEZ L = = = = = =
Mr Wong Cho Tung THERLE - - - - - -
Ms Tang Rongrong ERRLt - 489 350 - - 839
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard  [RIEZE& %4 = 1,560 = = 72 1,632
Mr Liu Hong (Note 2) BIBhE A (hiE2) = 839 186 = 102 1,127
Mr Liu Jun* B|E A4 - 839 326 = 121 1,286
Sub-total et - 3,727 862 - 295 4,884

The executive Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments
shown above were mainly for the management of the affairs of

the Company and the Group.

Independent BUFHITES
non-executive Directors

FRATEEREAFEATENE ERZANE AR
RRARAREEHCER -

Mr Dong Yunting (Note 3) ~ BZFEL4E (#7:23) 47 - - - - 47
Mr Liu Hing Hung BEETE 156 - - - = 156
Mr Xie Linzhen (Note 3)  @BRRSE A (F77£3) 47 - - - - 47
Mr Wu Zhe (Note 4) B &4 (ffit4) 110 - - - - 110
Mr Wang Tianmiao (Note 4) EME L4 (#174) 110 - - - = 110
Sub-total et 470 . . . - 470

The independent non-executive Directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as Directors of the

Company.

Total B

BB TER M T 2N REEE
RARESE -

5,354
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Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e WIS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+F1+-A=1+—HIFE

ESRERIITEME (H)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F AFt-A=+-AIEE

Directors’  Salaries and
fees  allowances

EEe  HEREH

Bonus
TEAT

Retirement

benefits

scheme
Share-based  contributions Total
payments  R{K4EF]  emoluments
PARRIA (57 ARl Fati

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT THET THET THET THET

(Note 1)

(Hi1)

Executive Directors BTES

Ms Yeung Man Ying Xzt = = = = = =
Mr Wong Cho Tung TEREE - - - - - -
Ms Tang Rongrong ERpzt = 490 350 - - 840
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard BRI &£ = 1,560 = = 72 1,632
Mr Liu Hong (Note 2) ZIRMT A (W52 2) - 840 186 - 97 1,123
Mr Liu Jun* AE A - 840 326 - 114 1,280
Sub-total Nt - 3730 862 - 283 4,875

The executive Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
shown above were mainly for the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

* Being the chief executive officer of the Company

* AARBERENTE

FRATEEREFATEME ERENE AR
ARAMAREEHZERE -

Independent BIUEHTES

non-executive Directors
Mr Dong Yunting (Note 3) ~ EEFESRAE (H7£3) 156 - - - - 156
Mr Liu Hing Hung BREESSE 156 = - - - 156
Mr Xie Linzhen (Note 3) BRI E (H23) 156 = = = - 156
Sub-total N 468 = = = - 468

The independent non-executive Directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as Directors of the
Company.

Total e

B ERTEE M T BN KEEE
RABEE -

3

5,343
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HIFE

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (CONTINUED) EEREREYTEME (F)
Notes: it -
(1) Incentive performance bonus for the year was determined by the (1) FRERABETARHTINEEGLERES

remuneration committee having regard to the performance and

duties of Directors and the Group’s operating results.

REARBBEIARAEE 2 KEREMETE

2) Mr Liu Hong resigned on 31 December 2017. (2) BRAVEER T —+F+-_A=1+—HEHT -
(3) Mr Dong Yunting and Mr Xie Linzhen resigned on 18 April 2017. 3) EEEAENHBIREER =T —CtFOA+N
B EHE °
(4) Mr Wu Zhe and Mr Wang Tianmiao were appointed on 18 April (4) REXERTHEEEYR=_Z—tFOA+N
2017. AREEZRE -
Employees’ emoluments EEME

The five highest paid individuals included three (2016: three)
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2017, whose

emoluments are included in the above. The emoluments of )

the remaining two (2016: two) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and allowances

Bonus

Share-based payments

Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2017

o Kok

TEAT

LARRAD A 3%
IRURRERIFT B R

T T E 1,000,000 % 7T
1,000,001 % 7T 2 1,500,000 % 7T
1,500,001 % 7T E 2,000,000/8 7T

BE_T—tF+-_A=+—HILFE  BH
ReFMALRE=2(ZF—XF: =5)
CHMECREXEE - S TIME (=T
—RNFmB)ALZMEMT

2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET
1,643 1,679
460 198

25 609

153 194
2,281 2,680

HE ST FRFIEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —TREF
Number of Number of
employees employees

BE A" EEAH
1
- 1




Employees’ emoluments (CONTINUED)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the Directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments for both years.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")
LAT in the PRC
Overprovisions on PRC EIT in

FR B 4 S (E R

previous years

B RS ([REMEH])

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hrE PR RER M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+F1+-A=1+—HIFE

EEME (B

AEE  AEBEYRAEMNESETKARRH
A X EABE - (ERFBEBEMARSE
B9 SHES PN SR S A R A R G
B SMEREBAE RRMEFEHEEEN
ERRERRTMHE -

BEFETECEMSHERRSE

Deferred tax expense for current year — AFEELEFEF X (A/7720)

(note 20)

Taxation for the year REEHIE

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for
both years as the Group has no assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong.

EIT is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant
districts of the PRC and taking relevant tax incentives into
account. Simcom Wireless, Shanghai Sunrise Simcom
Limited (“Shanghai Sunrise Simcom”), Shanghai Simcom
and Shenyang SIM Simcom Technology Limited (“Shenyang
SIM Simcom”) are classified as New and High Technology
Enterprise and is entitled to adopt a tax rate of 15% (2016:
15%). The relevant annual tax rate used for PRC EIT for the
Group’s subsidiaries ranged from 15% to 25% (2016: 15% to
25%).

2017 2016
et  —FAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FHIT
(18,673) (16,892)
(5,797) (3,801)

- 7,447
(24,470) (13,246)
(11,720) (8,821)
(36,190) (22,067)

HRAKEETEY BELERTULR - WE
SRR ESEIEL BB NIST R -

EMBHRTRIABHEESRR  BhEE
AR 2RI R E - BRBES - B8R
BERBETRRABRAR( LERERH
Bl bEFEBBENRLGEAFIBEREER
AR([EEARR D WA [t ]
WHHERA15% MR (ZZ—7F : 16%) °
AEEHBARERBZHREEMSHIEH
FEHERNTF15% 2 25% 2 E( —F—/N4F -
15% Z 25%) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+F+-A=+—HIFE

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant tax laws and regulations
of the PRC, which is charged at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% (2016: 30% to 60%) of the appreciation value,
with certain allowable deductions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as follows:

Profit before taxation Fr A

Taxation at the PRC income tax rate
of 25% (2016: 25%)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible

BB R 25%

ARz A 2 s 2
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable BARMZ WA Z B E
for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously

RERR BB R E
BRBERER ZHEEE

not recognised

(ZF—R%F : 25%)FHHEZBIR

b 3B (E B B A TOAR IR B A R RO B A A 2 A
EIMFTE MR E [GEHEDL - BRETERISE S
DIREER R 30% £ 60% (= F— N4 : 30%
£60%)TE  WAJEETHIR

ANEEHBENG ELR A BZER PPN 2B EAT
AR ¢

2017 2016

—E—iE —E—REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHT TET

138,796 96,500

Overprovisions on PRC EIT in
previous years

Income tax on concessionary rate

LAT

Income tax effect on LAT

Tax charge for the year
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BEFETECEMASHBREE
BEEREFEZAER

TR ER
THRERZAEHEE

REERHIANER

(34,699) (24,125)
(1,349) (7,234)
26,735 14,387
(32,415) (24,717)
6,102 9,841
- 7,447
3,784 5,185
(5,797) (3,801)
1,449 950
(36,190) (22,067)




Profit for the year is arrived at
after charging (crediting):

Auditor’'s remuneration

Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in cost of sales)
Less: Amount capitalised in
development costs
Less: Amount capitalised
in inventories

Amortisation of land use rights
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Less: Amount capitalised in
development costs
Less: Amount capitalised
in inventories

Reversal of allowance of inventories
(included in cost of sales)
Cost of inventories recognised as an
expense (included in cost of sales)
Cost of properties sold
(included in cost of sales)
Staff costs:
Directors’ emoluments (note 10)
Other staff costs
— Salaries and other benefits
— Retirement benefits scheme
contributions
— Share-based payments

Less: Amount capitalised in
development costs
Less: Amount capitalised
in inventories

AERZHEME R GEA) -

Gl

B EERH
(FEASHERA)
B EENMERFIERAR

B BEEAMENER

b {5 PR A 55
W% - BB RRIEITE

B BEEMERFEKA

B DERMENER

FERER D
(FrASHERA)
HRBAX 2 FERA
(FrASHERA)

B EMEAKAE
(B ASHERKAN)
BT :
EE]E (B2 10)
HME TRA
—TE&RHMER
—RIRIEFIEH B

—BARRA 3R

B EEMERFEA

" BEMENEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MIEHRARME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+F+-A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
HK$'000 HK$000
FE7 FET
2,200 2,160
176,342 156,182
(1,085) (4,307)
(175,257) (151,875)
3,111 3,114
51,708 68,395
(3,279) (2,864)
(29,769) (37,528)
18,660 28,003
(11,706) (2,898)
2,621,764 2,149,914
241,542 172,695
5,354 5,343
252,206 317,352
49,172 61,914
1,282 2,904
308,014 387,513
(119,998) (146,920)
(29,621) (17,105)
158,395 223,488

BRANREBERAR —F+FFH

143



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hRE BTG RaR M R
For the year ended 31 December 2017

HEZ

B EtF+-A=+—HALFE

A final dividend of HK1 cent (2016: Nil) per share amounting
to HK$25,579,000 (2016: Nil) was paid to the ordinary
shareholders during the year.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK$40,953,000 (HK1.6 cents per share) (2016:
HK$25,579,000 (HK 1 cent per share)) for the year ended
31 December 2017 which is subject to approval by the
shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

FR - BREBEERESMNRAREER 1B
(ZZ— & &) H25579,0008 T(=F
—NEE ) o

EEREREE T tE+-_A=+—AHL
iJﬁff&ﬁ?ﬁHﬁHﬁ 5.40,953,000 8 7T (A% 1.6
i) (ZZ—7x4% : 25,579,000/87T) (B 14
i) EBEFRAATREREERREFRS
ki

AR A AR 5 AR A B R T
TR

following data:

Earnings

Earnings for the purposes of basic
and diluted earnings per share
(profit for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company)

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
shares-share option

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose
of diluted earnings per share

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2017

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
B
SAEEREAREERT
LB (ERAREBA
FEMEAREF A1)
111,651 77,278
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
'000 '000
i i
BRBEE
AR ESRERRZHN®
T ntE 928
2,558,338 2,557,896
BEEA T ER e e — BRE
4,756 -
AR EZREE R AR
TR NE 988
2,563,094 2,557,896




For the year ended 31 December 2016, the computation of
diluted earnings per share did not assume the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding share options because the exercise
prices of these share options were higher than the average
market price for shares for the year.

FAIR VALUE AFE
At 1 January 2016 RZFE—RF—H—H
Increase in fair value recognised RiBaER < A EE N

in profit or loss
Exchange differences ER=H
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"FE+=A=+—H
Increase in fair value recognised i Bt AN T B I

in profit or loss
Exchange differences PEXRER
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+=-A=+—H
Unrealised gain on property ST A= 2 RE R EEE R =

valuation included in profit or loss

The Group’s investment properties are held under medium-
term leases in the PRC.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2017 and 2016 have been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on that date by Vigers Appraisal
& Consulting Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers not related to the Group.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hrE PR RER M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_T—+tF+-A=+—HLFE

BE_T-RF+_A=1t—RHLFE &
FREERNY BERRDITERR BN HRT
2 BRE - ARREBEENTRESNA
FEBRMHFIGMHE -

HK$’000

TR

355,981

12,348

(17,550)

350,779

9,565
24,605

384,949

9,565

REBAIAH B 2 R EWETHIRIE T IR OR
5o

AEBREMENR _—_FT—tFR-_F—RF
+—)E]:+—E!ZL\IFTE : BLAE@$§%@§E$§%
ME 2 B R A BRI EMERETE ERT
BRERDRNZAETZHER/KESE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HIFE

The fair value was determined based on the income
capitalisation approach, where the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties are assessed and discounted
at the market yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The market rentals are assessed based on
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of
existing lease and reasonable and supportable assumptions
that represent what knowledgeable willing parties would
assume about rental income for future leases in the light of
current conditions. The rate is determined by reference to
the yields derived from analysing the sales transactions of
similar commercial properties in Shanghai. There has been no
change from the valuation technique used in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use. At the end of the
reporting period, the chief financial officer of the Group works
closely with the independent qualified professional valuer to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair value
of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to
the management of the Group.
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DFETIRBBABRNMOZEE @ Bt - &5F
EMENENEAEML 2 THES - WiEK
BEHIEYEMAZ T5LHREFEIIR - |
SHE HRBEF AR DR - WARE
HErAERENZBZR(AAMEERETE
BITHER THREKBEE M 2 RR) 1FXH
Wk 2EDT LERBRENEHERS
Bz RRET - AERGEBEFEMR
REHR -

Mt 2 R THER - W32 &im R&I1ER
BAHEBAAR - NMEMR - AEEUKE
EEBVAEREXMAEMELIAE - AL
REERENGERTDRBARE - WEEZ
RNFELREREE)  BRAAEEEEEER
HEKE 2 REA -



Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable input

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in
the determination of fair values for investment properties and

unobservable inputs used in the valuation models.

As at 31 December 2017

Fair value
hierarchy

DTPERE

Level 3
F=/

Valuation
techniques

HERD

Income
capitalisation
approach

WAER L%

Fair value

AFE
HK$'000
T

384,949

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e WIS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+HF1+-A=1+—HIFE

EREATNTERBABBETAVETEZ
'x
TRETEEREMERHEMAZAERT
KALEELTRZ TR E ABE -

R=ZE—tH+=A=1+—H

Unobservable inputs

FABERAHE

(i) Capitalisation rate

(i) EAe=

(i) Market rent
(i 5L

(iii) Growth rate
(iil) R

Range of
unobservable inputs

FaEE
BAREEE

5.5%-7.0%

RMB3.7-RMB8.2
per month
per square meter
BAGTHA
ARMB3TE
ARS8 27T

2.5%

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
TUERE
BARESE
AFEZBR

A significant increase
in the capitalisation
rate would result in
a significant decrease
in fair value, and vice
Versa.

B ENERLES -
SEHNTENEN
B - R TR °

A significant increase
in the market rent
would result in a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.

mHHENEALS
SBRYATENER
B RZIA

A'significant increase
in the growth rate
would resultin a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.

BEENEALE
SRYNTENEX
e R2IA
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+F+-A=+—HIFE

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (continued)
As at 31 December 2016

FREATTEERARBETAFENEZ
&P (&)
RZE—R"F+ZA=+—H

Relationship of

unobservable
Range of inputs to fair value
Fair value Valuation unobservable inputs N[ ERER
hierarchy techniques Fair value Unobservable inputs TAHR BAHES
NYERE HERD ATE TABRGAZE BAHEEE NYEZ EF
HK$'000
THT
Level 3 Income 350,779 (i) Capitalisation rate 5.5%-7.3% A significant increase in
F=8 capitalisation (i) AL & the capitalisation
approach rate would result in
WAB AL a significant

(i) Market rent
(i) T35S

(iii) Growth rate
(iif) &R &

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has pledged
investment properties having a fair value of approximately
HK$112,658,000 (2016: HK$103,507,000) to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.
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decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.
BAMEENERES
SEYATENER
B R 2R o
RMB3.6-RMB7.8 A significant increase in

per month the market rent would
per square meter result in a significant
BABERXK increase in fair value,
ARE36TE and vice versa.
AREET 87T miEREMEALS
RPN TEMNEX
B RZIMA
2.5% A significant increase in
the growth rate would

result in a significant
increase in fair value,
and vice versa.
BREMEALS
b UNEETOEYN
BE  RZIRK -

BE ZT—+&N"FT—XRF+_-_A=+—H
WEFE - EEE S SRS = -

AEBEMRBRBEEEHESRA L IERIRES K
BEARRERZNYFEED  HRAAFERN
SAEERN BRI SRENDE -

RZB—+F+-A=+—H FEERAFE
#1112,658,000/7T(=F—7<4F : 103,507,000
BIL) ZIREMRE TER - (ERAKBAER
—RIRTTREE 2 FEIR ©



cosT

At 1 January 2016
Exchange differences
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2016
Exchange differences
Additions

Disposals

Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2017

DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2016

Exchange differences

Charge for the year

Eliminated on disposals

Reversal of impairment loss

upon disposal

At 31 December 2016
Exchange differences
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals
Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2017

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2016

A
RZE—~E-A—H
ExZE

RE

e

RZB—E+-A=+-R

Exzs
AE

i
HEMBAR

TOFF DFF
el

R-Z2—tF+-A=1+-H

FERAE

RZE—~E—A—H
ExZE
RERMG

R E RT3
HERERERE

R=ZB—E+=A=1+—H

EXZR

AERIR
RHER S
HENBAR

RZE—F+-A=+-R

REE

RZE—F+-A=+-R

RZE—E+-A=1—H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hrE PR RER M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+HF1+-A=1+—HIFE

Equipment,
furniture
Leasehold and Plant and

improvements fixtures machinery Motor Total

Buildings HENE  RE GR BER vehicles
BF &8 R%E W HE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR T
452 546 5825 257,890 240,118 13,077 969,456
(21,787) (272) (12,910) (11,559) (602) (47,130)
- - 11,297 47.3% 304 58997
- - (8442) (45,941) (839) (55,222)
430,759 5553 247,835 230,014 11,940 926,101
29813 373 17,079 15921 783 63,974
869 - 15,362 36,216 587 53,034
= = (5,010) (11,176) (365) (16,551)
= = (376) = = (376)
461,441 5926 274,890 270975 12950 1,026,182
155,604 4776 228178 165,844 9,078 563,480
(8,249) (227) (11,277) (7,164) (405) (27,322)
22,613 149 9,751 34.8% 97 68,3%
- - (7,241) (41,028) (793) (49,062)
= = = (6,304) = (6,304)
169,968 4,698 219411 146,243 8867 549,187
12407 314 15,083 10,164 601 38,569
18762 - 11,562 20,444 950 51,708
- - (2,710) (9497) (110) (12,317)
= = (223) = = (223)
201,127 5012 243123 167,354 10,308 626,924
260,314 914 31,767 103,621 2,642 399,268
260,791 855 28424 83,771 3073 376,914
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HIFE

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on its cost less
their residual values on a straight-line basis at the following
rates per annum:

Buildings 1B
Leasehold improvements HEMHREE

Equipment, furniture and fixtures — &f&E ~ RMNLEE
Plant and machinery BB K ikas
Motor vehicles B

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has pledged buildings
having a carrying value of approximately HK$128,762,000
(2016: HK$229,049,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.
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ME - BERRETIZERAARERIGEE
WIAB ARE R T HIFRITE

5%

The shorter of the lease terms and 5 years
HERRRSFrBEE

20%-25%

10%-20%

20%

R-B—+E+-A=+—B AEBEDIK
B T {8 49 128,762,000 7T ( = & — /K4
229,049,000/ 7T ) Z1EF - tERARNSEMES
—RRIRITREE 2 HEIR o



COST Jo %N

At 1 January 2016 R-ZZE—X"F—H—H
Exchange differences fER=2

At 31 December 2016 RZFB—RF+ZA=+—H
Exchange differences ERZER

At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+tF+=-A=+—H
AMORTISATION e

At 1 January 2016 RZZE—XF—H—H
Charge for the year ANEFEH0RR

Exchange differences EXRER

At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"FE+=A=+—H
Charge for the year ANEFE B

Exchange differences ExxR

At 31 December 2017 RZF—tF+=—A=+—H
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE

At 31 December 2017 W—_ZE—tF+=-_F=+—H
At 31 December 2016 RZF—RF+ZA=+—H

The land use rights of the Group are held under medium-term
lease in the PRC and amortised over the term of the lease of
50 years.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has no pledged land
use rights (2016: HK$1,795,000) to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_T—+tF+-A=+—HLFE

HK$'000
TR

109,389
(5,2606)

104,123
7,206

111,329

17,784
3,114
(960)

19,938
3,111
1,487

24,536

86,793

84,185

AEER P B2 T 3(E AR E BB
B WIRS0FHAFHEH -

R-ZT—+E+-_F=+—0H A=EHE
R (ZF— 734 ¢ 1,795,000/8 7T ) +HhfE
E 1%2%%%%%—%&%?@%32%1% o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HIFE

2017 2016
—ET—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current finance lease receivables RERETE 2 W FIE 2,097 6,085
Non-current finance lease receivables  JERBIa & & 2 FEUFATE 705 637
2,802 6,722
Leasing arrangements HEZH
Certain of the Group’s storage equipment are leased out NEBE TEFEEENEERERELHE - T
under finance leases. All leases are denominated in RMB. EHENUARE:E  tEHEcTHFEEA
The average term of finance leases entered into is 3 years 3F(ZE—JRF 45%F) -
(2016: 4.5 years).
Amounts receivable under finance leases BERE 2 EWFIE
Present
Minimum value of
lease payments lease payments
BEHETR HENRERE
2017 2016 2017 2016

—E—+tF —T-RF ZB—tF —=T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHIT T FHTT

Not later than one year —F AR 2,340 6,930 2,097 6,085
Later than one year and

not later than five years —F U ERFUAN 824 803 705 637

3,164 7,733 2,802 6,722

Less: unearned finance W AR RE A W

income (362) (1,011) n/a n/a
Present value of minimum EUHRAEFIERE

lease payments receivable 2,802 6,722 2,802 6,722
Unguaranteed residual values of assets leased under finance RBEHR  REREANERECEECEE
leases at the end of the reporting period are estimated at REIHEBEM A2,802,0008 L (=ZF—~
HK$2,802,000 (2016: HK$6,722,000). F 1 6,722,000/87T) °
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The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the contract
date for the entire lease term. The average effective interest
rate is approximately 19% (2016: 26%) per annum.

The finance lease receivables at the end of the reporting
period are neither past due nor impaired.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+HF1+-A=1+—HIFE

HERBEBAHZASHEREGHBEHE AR
ERF - FHEBRFEFERLE19% (ZF—K
F 1 26%) °

RBEMR 2 KRB ERE W A HARE -

Licence  Development Technical Customer
fee Costs know-how contracts Total
TUEE R A 2ER XEAH 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT TAT TAT FAT
COST BA
At 1 January 2016 R-T—"%—f—H 79,145 857,208 71,339 27,514 1,035,206
Additions NE 604 193,881 - - 194,485
Exchange differences ExzR (7,221) (60,175) - - (67,396)
At 31 December 2016 R-Z—"&+-A=1—H 72,528 990,914 71,339 27,514 1,162,295
Additions NE 4,866 201,068 - - 205,934
Exchange differences ExzR 5,187 74770 - - 79,957
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - (5,714) - - (5,714)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+tF+=A=1—H 82,581 1,261,038 71,339 27,514 1,442,472
AMORTISATION AND BHERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2016 RZE—~F—A—H 77,278 742,058 71,339 27,514 918,189
Charge for the year KEEMK 1,491 154,691 - = 156,182
Exchange differences ExzE (7,160) (53,321) - - (60,481)
At 31 December 2016 R-Z—~F+-A=1—H 71,609 843,428 71,339 27,514 1,013,890
Charge for the year KEEMK 1,085 175,257 = = 176,342
Exchange differences EkzE 4,994 64,195 = = 69,189
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - (5,714) - - (5,714)
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+&F+-A=+—H 77,688 1,077,166 71,339 27,514 1,253,707
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+F+-A=+—H 4893 183,872 - - 188,765
At 31 December 2016 RZE—"F+_A=+—A 919 147,486 - - 148,405
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hRE BTG RaR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HIFE

Licence fee, technical know-how and customer contracts of
the Group were acquired from third parties.

AEBEZHAIFEE
BE=FIE -

BEERMEEFAHER

The intangible assets have finite useful lives. Intangible

assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following

period:

Licence fee 1-5 years
Development costs 9 months-2 years
Technical know-how 5-8 years
Customer contracts 3 years

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised by the Group and the movement thereon, during

the current and prior years.

BVEAEERFNAER - BEENERZE

AT HAR# Y

BRI 1&=5%
FEERAR IfEAE2%F
HERIM 5ZE8%F
BEFAH 3%

N TERAEERBEFE - NEBFHERZ

REEHRR(AB) BERBHESD -

Revaluation of Write-down of - Impairment of
available-  Development inventories property, Revaluation of
for-sale cost and trade plantand  investment
investment  capitalised  receivables  equipment properties
e 2EA  FERER ¥ -BER  RENE Total
REEff  REAE E2BTME  RERE Bft @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~5-A-A = (9,830) 28333 17,154 (53,698) (18,041)
Exchange differences ExzZE = 612 (966) (748) 2638 1,586
(Charge) creditto profitorloss  FMBE (H1%)5HA - (4,149) 702 (2.287) (3087) (8821)
Charge to other REBZERET Mk
comprehensive income (42,643) = = = = (42,643)
At 31 December 2016 RZF—ETZA=1-H (42,643) (13,367) 28,069 14119 (54,097) (67,919)
Exchange differences EEZE 292 (1,197) 2425 250 (742) 1028
Charge to profit or loss BRI - (5,417) (827) - (5,476) (11,720)
Creditto other REM2ERERTA
comprehensive income 26,799 - - - - 26,799
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tETZA=T-R (15,552) (19,981) 29,667 14,369 (60,315) (51,812)
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The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets FRIEFIIAE BE
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEE E

At 31 December 2017, other than the deferred tax assets
and liabilities mentioned above, subsidiaries of the Group
had unused tax losses of approximately HK$446,760,000
(2016: HK$341,508,000) available for offset against future
profit. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams of those subsidiaries.
Included in unused tax losses was HK$129,660,000 (2016:
HK$98,871,000) that will expire by 2022 (2016: 2021). Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$1,127,909,000 (2016: HK$976,399,000) as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hrE PR RER M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+HF1+-A=1+—HIFE

AT IOt A 16 S P Ve 2 IBIE B AR AT

2017 2016
—g—tFE —T-AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
47,339 43,719
(99,151) (111,638)
(51,812) (67,919)

RZB—tF+-A=+—H0 BRI
HEBRERAEIN  AEEHBRRAE RS
I EHE 4446,760,0008 T (=T — X
4F : 341,508,0007% 7T ) A #45 #5 R A 7l o
RARZENME QB ARIEF R TATER - &
WEERELEHAEE - ABAHBBEETE
129,660,000 7T (= — 754 : 98,871,000
BTN T _F (ZF—"F: ZF=—
F)ER - AthEEAERAES

BEFRBRCERERRE  UHRBRRBARN =
T )N\F— A —BEABIENE RO EA
BRIBIF - AU HREANRE BN E
AE BRI /B R AE%1,127,909,000 7% 7T
(=ZF—7% : 976,399,000 7T ) 1 H IR IE R
BEE  REARNSEREHZSEREEEN
BEHE  UARZETREEENRAOBRT
RAREfRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hRE BTG RaR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HIFE

Carrying amount receivable based BIEE R ErE s

on maturity set out in the loan AN
agreements FEW R IERRE(E
Within one year —FR

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s wholly
owned subsidiary, Shanghai Suncom Logistics (“Suncom
Logistics”) had an entrusted loan agreement with Bank
of Communications. Pursuant to the agreement, Suncom
Logistics entrusted an aggregated amount of RMB30,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$36,150,000)
(2016: RMB30,000,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$33,810,000) to a specific corporate borrower at an
interest rate of 10% per annum. Bank of Communications
acted as the trustee of this entrusted loan. Trustee fee of 0.1%
per month is charged. This entrusted loan will be matured in
March 2018 (2016: matured in April 2017).

As at 31 December 2016, Suncom Logistics also had
an entrusted loan agreement with Shanghai Pudong
Development Bank. Pursuant to the agreement, Suncom
Logistics entrusted an aggregated amount of RMB30,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$33,810,000) to a specific
corporate borrower at an interest rate of 8.6% per annum.
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank acted as the trustee of
the entrusted loan for a trustee fee of 0.1% per month. This
entrusted loan matured in August 2017.
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2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHIT
36,150 112,700

REZB—+tFR=_FT—X"F+=-A=+—8"
AEE2EWNBAR LESERINBASETERA
A ([ B FEHTh ) BABIRITIRTTRI L — D & 5T
BEXihE o BiR%ing - BREinal —S8%8
AR 30,000,000 7T (#5557 49 36,150,000 7%
7o) (ZZF—7"4F + AR¥ 30,000,000 7T (FH%
M #4933,810,0007T) ) 2 RIEZRE T —HRIETE
NENERA - BRAFIERFENEI0EFE - £
HHRERBITIEAZEER X AT AN
O.1%EEE - TR EFENR =T —N\F=A
(=T RZT—+FmARH) -

RZE—A"F+_A=1+—0 ' #REina/hHm
EERRBERRITIIL - NETER GBS
RiEZ G BERETEK -—FHEBARE
30,000,000 7t (125449 33,810,000 8 7T ) Z K
BRAT—BEERAMERA - AEFRIRF
MEBEERTE - LBHRERRITEAERE
BN ZFEAG ABER0.I%TEEE - ZEER
R —T—tF AR -



As at 31 December 2016, Suncom Logistics had two
entrusted loan agreements with China Fortune Securities Co.
Ltd. (“China Fortune”) and China Minsheng Banking Corp.,
Ltd. Shanghai Branch (“Minsheng Bank”). Pursuant to these
agreements, Suncom Logistics entrusted an aggregated
amount of RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$45,080,000) to a specific corporate borrower at an
interest rate of 9.25% per annum. China Fortune acted as a
manager to manage the entrusted loan for a management fee
of 1.2% per annum and Minsheng Bank acted as the trustee
of the entrusted loan for a trustee fee of 0.05% per month.
These entrusted loans matured in April 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, interest income generated from
entrusted loans amounting approximately HK$7,021,000
(2016: HK$8,938,000) and recognised as other income.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, no entrusted loan
receivables have been past due or impaired.

All the Group’s entrusted loan receivables are denominated in
RMB, which is the functional currency of the respective group
companies.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hrE PR RER M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_T—+tF+-A=+—HLFE

R=ZZB—R"E+=-—A=+—8  EREiiajrs
ESHFEREFEAR([EE]) RFERAER
TRMDAERAR(EEDTT) [RERITDET
SN RNETER R o REBEZEhE - BRED
IR 2B EF KM —BIEERAERAZR
~—%@5E A AR 40,000,000 7T (FBER L
45,080,000 70) 2B - EBERBTEA -
HETEREERIL 2% EEE  MEAR
TEAZAERZZEA A UE0.05% 5E
B RETHEEFN -_Z—LENARIE -

MW-Z—+t&+-_A=+—08  A&EEZ KT
2%%m%?$ﬂ§WAm7w1mm%ﬂ:

— 7N 18,938,000/ ) - Wi HERAEE
mu&/\

R-B—tER-_F-—AE+-A=t—R"
PR Z S E B R S AR E -

$%Fﬁﬁﬁ§4&§%§%ﬁ’ﬂ%)\ﬁ’¥§+ﬁ ]
ARERHEBSE AR 2SN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hRE BTG RaR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HIFE

2017 2016
—Z2—+t5F —ERE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Costs of investments in unlisted RIELMEE QT2
associates & Z AR 6,595 33,744
Share of post-acquisition losses UL B8 (4,321) (3,827)
Less: Asset classified as held for sale ¥ : DIEARFEHE 2 BE - (26,117)
2,274 3,800
The Group had interests in the following associates: REERTYEEARPHEBER
Form of Principal Proportion of Proportion
business Country of place of Class of registered capital of voting
Name of entity structure incorporation  operation share held held by the Group power held Principal activities
AZEfE
BB ERERYA AMAVER FEEEME  FRROE HfEALH FisRERLA TR
% %
217 216 2017 216
ZE-tE EF 8-t ZRF
Xian Helicopter Co. Incorporated The PRC The PRC Registered - - - - Provision of industrial
Limited capttal (Note i) (Note ) (Note i) (Note i) use helicopter services
(“¥ian Helicopter’) FiiA hE m iHhER - - - - RETEREARRS
BREREERAT W& wE) mED) W)
([EREA#])
Beijing Yunyifangyu 10T Incorporated The PRC The PRC Registered 45 4 45 4 Software development
Limited (*Beijing Yunyi") capttal
IREGHTIER R e e AR 45 4 45 4 bl
BRAD(HES))
LERSEENR Incorporated The PRC The PRC Registered 40 40 40 40 Software development
ERAR(LERS]) capital (Noteii)  (Noteil) — (Nofedi)  (Noteii)
Bl e E &R 40 40 40 0 bl

(i) (i) (D (W)
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Notes:

()

(ii)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (“Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with the existing major shareholder of Xian Helicopter
(the “Acquirer”), to dispose of the Group’s entire 30% equity
interest in Xian Helicopter for a consideration of RMB26,160,000
(or equivalent to approximately HK$32,831,000) which will be
settled by three instalments. As at 31 December 2016, part of
the consideration amounting to RMB22,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$24,794,000) had been received by the Group
and the remaining RMB4,160,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$8,037,000) had not been settled. The transaction will be
completed upon the receipt of the full consideration by the Group.
As at 31 December 2016, the interest in Xian Helicopter had been
classified as asset classified as held for sale and the consideration
received of HK$24,794,000 had been classified as liability
associated with asset classified as held for sale.

The sale proceeds exceed the carrying amount of the interest in
Xian Helicopter and, accordingly, no impairment loss had been
recognised. The remaining consideration has been fully settled
during the year ended 31 December 2017 and the disposal
has been completed with gain on disposal of an associate of
HK$8,736,000 recognised in current year.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group incorporated
/8185 with registered capital of RMB20,000,000. Initial
capital injection of RMB4,000,000 was made by the Group
upon incorporation. As at 31 December 2017, the Group and
other investors had capital commitment of RMB4,000,000
(equivalent to HK$4,820,000) (2016: RMB4,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$4,508,000)) and RMB 12,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$14,460,000) (2016: RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$13,524,000)). The Group’s capital commitment is set out in
note 34.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the
associates to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash
dividends, or to repay loans or advance made by the Group.

Summarised financial information of each reporting period is
not disclosed as it is not material to the Group.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hrE PR RER M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+HF1+-A=1+—HIFE

Bt -

(i)

(ii)

B

HE-_ZT-—NFE+-_A=1+—HILEE ' ~5&H
HEZEARBREEFERR(ESDIZER

R ((EEHE])  HEAEEREZEAK Y
2 E30% ki - RERARY 26,160,0007T (k
BEM432,831,000/87T) * #H5 == fF - R

T—RE+ZA=+—08 ' X&EECKREIBS
1&%/\&%22,000,00075(@%5@%@ 24,794,000
BIL) 8T AR %4,160,0007T (8 % R4
8,037,000/ 7T ) MR © #2322 Z R AE B
REERERETK RZT—A"F+A=1+—
B RAREAKZEZEDERRFIELESR
B - M RRIEA 24,794,000/ T2 2 B A8
EHEZ EERBZ AR -

HEMBSFRBANARE E 2 S ZRE
TE + B S S SRR B S R o ﬁ‘]‘:Tﬁ{“Eﬁﬂ\Eﬁii

—tF+ A=+ —HIFEREES
ﬁ%*&ﬁ@ﬁ%@ﬂﬁfcﬁk g E’:‘Zliifsiﬁ%%hlﬁlﬁﬁ
8,736,000/ T °

HE_T-—RAF+-A=+—HBLEFE ' &
x@%fﬂﬂﬁkij:>%ﬁ% CHMBERAEARE
20,000,000 7T ° 7 & B i 5% i Bk 32 B 40 25 0%
& AR 4,000,007 R=ZFT—tF+=A
=+—B AEEREMBREENEREER
A R # 4,000,000 7t (48 £ 7 494,820,000 7T )
—E—F: AR®4,00000075 (48 E R
4,508,000/ 7T )) & A R #12,000,0007t ( 18
LR #414,460,00087T) (ZFE—RF : ARK
12,000,000 7T (FA55 7 13,524,000 L)) ° A&
B2 B ARNESEE I TESS o

RAARERESTAAAEEERES K

EEAEBRECERRBRZENLESE

EPNIEGIE
ERENMBENRBLREE - AAEHR
SEMELTEK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hRE BTG RER M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+F+-A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Available-for-sale investment comprise: A] it H & E G IE -
Listed equity securities outside REEAIN E R ATE 2 (R AFE)
Hong Kong, at fair value (note) (Ki5%) 80,253 187,448
Note: B -
At 31 December 2017, the total carrying amount of the investment R-ZZE—+tFE+-_A=+—H ZRELEEELHS
was approximately HK$80,253,000 (2016: HK$187,448,000) with the 80,253,000/ 70 ( —ZF —754F : 187,448,000/ 7T) * AF
change in fair value of approximately HK$107,195,000 debited to (2016: {EEB)#47107,195,000/8 7T (= —754F : 170,573,000/8
HK$170,573,000 credited to) assets revaluation reserve in equity. TLEtA\) B EREESARFHENR -
2017 2016
—ET—tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Raw materials R 518,252 448,608
Work in progress EEE 108,453 55,201
Finished goods UK TR 131,826 233,608
758,531 737,417

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2017



At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—XF—H—H
Additions NE

Exchange differences ERER

At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"FE+=HA=+—H
Additions NE

Exchange differences fEERER

Transfer to properties held for sale EEFENEWE

At 31 December 2017 W_ZE—tF+=-_F=+—H

The properties under development for sale of the Group were
situated in the PRC and located on land use rights under
medium-term leases.

As at 31 December 2016, included in the properties under
development for sale classified as current assets was an
amount of HK$359,130,000 which represented the carrying
value of the properties expected to be completed and sold
within twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

The Group's properties held for sale are all situated in the
PRC. All the properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ire PR RER M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+tF+-A=+—HIFE

HK$'000
TR

227,010
147,999

(15,879)

359,130
192,086
12,108

(563,324)

AEEBERTAOHEEY RN P B REERIZ
R ERFRA R L R AR L - o

RZE—A"F+_A=+—8 DERRBHE
EZERTHIHEEYR 1 —%359,130,000
BILZHIE - ERAFARZERANHERR
BT—EARERREEZYEZIREE

AEEFFEHEMROMNPE - FREREH
EMFRBARA R A BIRFHEZ BIRETIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hRE BTG RER M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HILFE

The normal credit period given on sale of goods relating
to Handsets and IOT terminals business, Wireless
communication modules business and I0T system and
020 business is 0-90 days. A longer period is granted to a
few customers with whom the Group has a good business
relationship and which are in sound financial condition. There
is no credit given to sales of properties.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net
of allowance for bad and doubtful debts, as well as notes
receivables presented based on the invoice dates at the end
of the reporting period, which approximated the revenue
recognition dates:

Trade receivables FEWE Z BRI
0-30 days TE30K
31-60 days 31 E60K
61-90 days 61 290K
91-180 days 91F 180k
Over 180 days i@ 180K

o REHEE

Less: Accumulated allowances

Trade receivables FEUR & SRR

Notes receivables (Note) MR (f1aE)
0-30 days TE30K
61-90 days 61 £ 90K
91-180 days 91 £ 180Kk

Note: Notes receivables represent the promissory notes issued by banks

received from the customers.
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HHE BT R B RRIR RS - BABAIRL
EBRYBERRELCEBERZERZ —
RIEEHAZTEIOR - PEEREEAR R T
BREEMBANBR I EFERRERZEE
B WERNHEMFRGETEESR -

AN B S BR (BRRERA Z B EIRE ) /8
WE 2R (FORR R AR B ) A MBI RIR IR
BHRAMEL ZREDT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FAT
181,821 164,342
55,644 31,917
25,079 26,616
14,633 14,260
47,859 19,163
325,036 256,298
(22,455) (21,821)
302,581 234,477
35,172 23,324
1,514 -
4,941 520
41,627 23,844
344,208 258,321

Biet - BREE AR S WE R RITE 2 AR -



Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed twice a
year. The Group has policy for allowance of bad and doubtful
debts which is based on an evaluation of the collectability and
age analysis of accounts on every individual trade debtor basis
and on management’s judgement including creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$20,512,000 (2016:
HK$15,096,000) which are past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss
because they were either subsequently settled as at the
date of issuance of the consolidated financial statements or
there was no historical default of payments by the respective
customers. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. The average age of these receivables is 149 days
(2016: 139 days).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired

90 £ 180K
181 365K

90-180 days
181-365 days

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of the year FUEER

Exchange differences ERER
Impairment losses recognised FTiERR 2 BB 1E
Impairment losses reversed REEER L
Amount written off as uncollectible Wi AT AKE SR
Balance at end of the year FRERR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+HF1+-A=1+—HIFE

EMEMHEPA - AEESHEEETPH
FEEERZYREEFEFNEERSE - EFRES
FEUEUMA - AEEETERE @ RIESHEER
B 5 RMERE 2 AT EIARE R A K ARk D AT IA
&EﬁZ%UI%(@%%%ff'Zﬁfﬁﬁ&&
BIEEFRE) - RRIBRIELEE -

$EIZEWT%%M ERANEEREAER
20,512,000/ 7T (=& — 784 : 15,096,000/%
7O M EKERSR - RIE B NAC BMmAS
B E LR ER R (EEE - BARFRS R T
BIRAUBBRRAPRNBERELTPIIRE
RN AL - REBEY B SR
EEA R - ZFRUIRZ PRI S 149
R(ZE—RF : 139K) °

BEERBENEKE S RK 2Rk

2017 2016
—E—tfF TE—RHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
14,385 13,779
6,127 1,317
RERBEZEE
2017 2016
—E—+E —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
21,821 31,551
1,488 (1,235)
1,492 5,771
(2,346) (9,095)
- (5,171)
22,455 21,821

RANMKEBERAR —F +FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hRE BTG RER M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HILFE

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of
HK$49,260,000 (2016: HK$34,024,000) are denominated in
United States Dollars (“USD”), which are not denominated in
the functional currency of the respective group entities.

Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and will be
settled within twelve months after the end of reporting period.
Deposits mainly represented trade deposits paid to third
parties.

The following is the breakdown of other receivables, deposits
and prepayments:

VAT recoverable AT BB
Deposits paid to suppliers for EBEGTESIHNT
purchasing inventories HERG IS
Deposits paid to sub-contractors B S
for construction of properties FToREERZIES

Deposits paid for the acquisition

of land use rights for property RBRFAS N 2iEe
development purpose
Prepayments TR IR
Other receivables o fth FEUER R
Entrusted loan interest receivable JEUNE FEE 7R B
Government subsidy receivable JE IR R T 2R B

Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries and an associate

Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayment on
demand.
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FAURE T3 IR X R

RZB—+E+=-A=+—8 " 49,260,000
TT(—F—7X4F : 34,024,000/87T) KEKE 5
BRIRAFETCATHE - WIELAMERAE B EEE A T AL
EHETE -

HAb MR A BT - 8 R EIR
BH—EARNEE REXBR/RXINTE=]
ZEPRE -

AT RBEMEKER RERENKEZS
o

2017 2016
—E—tF TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
101,348 77,487
154,437 109,792
- 26,266
28,920 27,048
12,730 4,875
31,046 22,253
2,772 3,119
326 4,250
331,579 275,090

FEdF A R e — R B R R IR IR R R IR

BRTAREER  REREEREE -



The bank balances and cash of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB, HK$ and USD. The bank balances
receive variable interest at an average rate of 1% (2016: 1%)
per annum. Included in the bank balances and cash and
pledged bank deposits was an amount of HK$398,340,000
(2016: HK$257,861,000) denominated in RMB, which is not
freely convertible into other currencies.

The Group’s bank deposits of HK$30,125,000 (2016:
HK$76,636,000) as at 31 December 2017 were pledged to
secure the short-term general banking facilities granted by
banks and discounted bills. The bank deposits will mature on
clearance of the discounted bills.

At 31 December 2017, bank balances of HK$48,038,000
(2016: HK$67,440,000) are denominated in USD, which are
not denominated in the functional currency of the respective
group entities.

Trade and notes payables, other payables, deposits received
and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purposes and ongoing costs.

Trade and notes payables

Trade and notes payables (other than for the construction
of properties held for sale) principally comprise amounts
outstanding for trade purchases. The normal credit period
taken for trade purchases is 30-90 days.

Payables and accrued expenditure on construction of
properties held for sale comprise construction costs and other
project-related expenses which are payable based on project
progress measured by the Group.
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An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and notes payables
at the end of the reporting period is presented based on the
invoice dates for trade payables or date of issuance for notes

payables is as follows:

0-30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
Over 90 days

Notes payables
0-30 days

TE30K
31 £60K
61 £ 90K
3B 90K

ENRE
TE30K

As at 31 December 2017, included in the trade and notes
payables, HK$83,110,000 (2016: HK$88,161,000) are
denominated in USD, which are not denominated in the
functional currency of the respective group entities.

Other payables, deposits received and accruals
The following is the breakdown of other payables, deposits

received and accruals:

Deferred income (note)

Payables on acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Deposits received from customers
for sales of goods

Deposits received from customers
for pre-sales of properties

Deposit received from disposal of
subsidiaries (note 44)

Accruals

VAT payables

Other payables
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BN (Hr5E)

WEm* - BE R
R FEATRRRK
HEEMAERS
W 2 i
WIEEMEAEF
W 2 i
Bk E L EHE AT
2R (Bt 44)
eI

e ER

H At SRR

AT RRBERRANEE 2 ENESEARE
BRENESRRZEZAPRENRE 2%

B HIE 2 BRER DT -
2017 2016
—ET—tF =T RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
279,846 327,308
9,114 21,918
2,076 9,316
63,551 15,676
354,587 374,218
39,163 =
393,750 374,218

RZB—+TF+ZA=+—H  EBNEZER
KRN BFE A TTATEZ 58 83,110,000 78
JL(ZZF—74F : 88,161,000/87T) * B#EKIE

i VY sl SEN G

st -

Hitb IR - EWIR SR IERT IR
AT AEMERMERR - BEUiRS REFTRIE 2

201
2017 2016
—B—tFf %
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T3t
55,445 57,134
54 564
203,483 162,316
284,185 209,613
62,419 -
14,366 6,866
6,414 11,514
24,597 29,854
650,963 477,861




Note: As at 31 December 2017, other payables included deferred
income on government grants amounting to HK$55,445,000
(2016: HK$57,134,000). Government grants are given to support
the research and development of advanced electronic devices
and technology and used for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment. These grants are released to income to cover actual
expenditure used in research and development activities or
transferred to profit or loss over useful lives of the related assets.
Included in deferred income on government grants amounting to
HK$51,951,000 (2016: HK$53,866,000) represented the income
that is not expected to be realised to profit or loss within 12 months
of the reporting date based on the depreciation rates of the related
assets and therefore has been presented to non-current liabilities.

Other liabilities

At the close of business on 31 December 2017, a
subsidiary of the Company had an arrangement with a
bank in which approximately HK$141,154,000 (2016: Nil)
of notes receivables issued by another group entity (the
“Issuing Subsidiary”) through intra-group transactions were
discounted to a bank without recourse. The notes remained
payable by the Issuing Subsidiary and were classified as other
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2017.

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries

Amounts were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Secured: B

RITER(HaEi)
BRI (Hratii)

Bank loans (note i)
Discounted bills (note ii)
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it . R=Z2—+tF+=—A=1+—0  EtELERE
FEEAFIE B WA Z B A 55,445,000 4 7T (=
T —/4% 57,134,000 7T ) - BUNIEEB WA T)
AR AT FRIEREM 255 - ARKE
ME - BEREE  ZESHDSERERAERE
MEES) 2 EWR A S BRI A EE 2 F F R
- BNERRAZEERATBE—%
51,951,000 47T (ZF— 734 © 53,866,000 47T)
28 BEBEEREEZNESR  BARBTIE
TERHREAE 12ERANMNERREE - AM
2 RFERBDEME -

HihEE
REZ—+tF+_A=+—HEEEBMER
B ARRIMKBARIE —RHRITIIVE
Bt A5 SEER(EENER
A BEEBEARRMR S EHNEREE
49141,154,0003 7T (=B —/14F  #) BT
M B RER IR TRIR F—MERIT - R=ZZ
—tF+-A=1+—8 FREENEFFE
MBARSHM WHEAREEHMALRE -

FEAS B B 2 R E IR IR SRR IE

BREFRAEER  REREEREE -

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT T
84,104 45,080

= 254,911

84,104 299,991

BRANREBERAR —F+FFH

167



168

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hRE BTG RER M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HIFE

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

At the end of the reporting period, the loans include an amount of
HK$62,058,000 (2016: HK$45,080,000) denominated in RMB,
which are the functional currency of the respective group entities
and an amount of HK$22,046,000 (2016: Nil) denominated
in USD. The loans carry variable interest at Loan Prime Rate
(“LPR") plus a spread (2016: variable interest at LPR plus a
spread). All loans are repayable within one year. Pursuant to the
loan agreements, the bank borrowings were secured by investment
properties, property, plant and equipment and land use rights as
disclosed in notes 15, 16 and 17 respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, discounted bills included an amount of
HK$254,911,000 denominated in RMB, which was the functional
currency of respective entities of the Group, and were secured by
notes receivables. The effective interest rates of the discounted bills
ranged from 0.7% to 2.4% per annum. Bills were issued through
intra-group transactions and the relevant group entities discounted
the bills to independent third parties. The bills receivable and
payable issued between group entities were fully eliminated on
consolidation.
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(ii)

RBERR - BRAERBEARREERE I
REEIE ARMESHEZ B5062,058,0004 7T (= F
—7~4F : 45,080,000 7T ) R AR TTEHE 2 FKIE
22,046,000787 (=T — /14 « &) - FRAERIR
B RER AR ([ERERFIR ) 2z 2 2T
K B(ZT—RF  HERERFENEBEZ
FEFRR) c TEEXH AR —FNEE -
BIRER W # - RITEETIARENE - W% -
B 55 Jx AR A R -t {50 FR A {E R4 (49 BI B B 2
15+ 16 % 17 FHFE) »

RZE-—XREF+-A=+—B BREEEHE
NHEEEERZNEERARBSEZEH
254,911,000/ 7 * WA BB RIEMEREIR - Bh
RARBZERFHNENR0TIERE24E - ZER
FRAEEANZZHT  MABREEERKHER
BHEATELE=) - REERRMETZER
RERNSEERERA ARRE 280K



Number Share
of shares capital
BRAEE [
‘000 HK$'000
T 1% FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SRREEO.] Bz EiEMKk
Authorised: SETE
At 1 January 2016, R-ZE—X"F—H—H"
31 December 2016 and “E-RFT-HA=t—BR
31 December 2017 —E—+F+-A=+—H 3,000,000 300,000
Issued: 2217
At 1 January 2016 and RZZ2E—R"F—HA—HK
31 December 2016 —ET-RF+=-A=+—H 2,557,896 255,790
Shares issued upon exercise TR R 1T 2 AR (D
of share options 1,650 165
31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=-_A=+—H 2,559,546 255,955
Details of the exercise of share options are set out in note 36. 1TERBAE 2 B AMIRE36 ©
HK$'000
FAT
Properties revaluation reserve YMEB LS
At 1 January 2016, RNZZE—RNF—F—H - ZF—R~F
31 December 2016 and 2017 ;r_F—+F+-_A=+—H 102,827
HK$'000
FAT
Assets revaluation reserve BEESMHE
At 1 January 2016 RZZT—RF—H—H =
Fair value change on available-for-sale  AJ S & & A F(EE
investment 127,930
At 31 December 2016 R_ZE—"F+-_A=+—H 127,930
Fair value change on available-for-sale Al &S E A FEEH)
investment (80,396)
At 31 December 2017 Rn_ZE—+F+-_A=+—H 47 534
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HILFE

HK$'000
THTT

177,573

Translation reserve BEHE
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—XRFE—HF—H
Exchange differences arising on BMEERY|EEELNERER

translation to presentation
currency

At 31 December 2016
Exchange differences arising on
translation to presentation

R-F—RF+-_A=1t—8H

currency

At 31 December 2017 RZF—tFF+=—A=+—H

The Group as lessee

The Group made minimum lease payments under operating
leases in respect of office premises of approximately
HK$13,245,000 (2016: HK$10,104,000), in which
approximately HK$2,843,000 (2016: HK$4,111,000) were
capitalised in development cost.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

—%R

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years and
rentals are fixed for an average of two years.
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BHES2ERELMETER

F_E=FNF (BEMFEEEN)

(77,145)

100,428

87,522

187,950

AEBEREBA
AREERPAEZMEMBBRLECERET N2 &
RS FIBL) 513,245,0008 7L ( —T—/N4F ¢
10,104,000787T) » EFF#)2,843,000/8 7T (=
T—RF 4,111,000 7)) ERBEERAFE
AL o

MRBERR - AEBRBETIAIRBELEREX
M2 RRFERSKIEAEZBHBENT -

2017 2016
—E—tF T AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TiE7
6,697 8,575
6,364 2,223
13,061 10,798

HEZ POFHRERME - MASEEHF
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The Group as lessor AEBERBHBEA
All of the properties held have committed tenants for 2-10 A2 MERK2E 10FHERTAM -
years.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted RIEHR - AEBEBARE 2 R RKEMA
with tenants for the following future minimum lease SHIEMAT
payments:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —EREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within one year —FR 25,241 25,197
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFRF (BEEMFREEA) 18,591 38,791
After five years A& 72 554
43,904 64,542
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Expenditure in respect of investment B 5T 4{ERR4R A P EHER P
in an associate contracted for but BiE 2 AAN —HEE AT
not provided in the consolidated B (M7 22)
financial statements (note 22) 4,820 4,508
Expenditure in respect of properties BRI ERAGE MISHRER P EE
under development for sale ZERPIHEMERE
contracted for but not provided
in the consolidated financial
statements - 52,920
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The Group operates a MPF Scheme under rules and
regulations of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all its employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of
the Group in Hong Kong are required to join the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ salaries and are charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with
the applicable regulations of the PRC, participate in a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specific percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefits scheme. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

During the year, the total amounts of HK$49,467,000 (2016:
HK$62,197,000) contributed by the Group to the schemes
and cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents contribution payable to the schemes by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
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The Company had two share option schemes, including post-
initial public offering share options scheme (the “Post-IPO
Options”) and new share options scheme (the “New Share
Options”). Post-IPO Options and New Share Options were
adopted on 30 May 2005 and 1 June 2016, respectively. The
major terms and conditions of the two schemes are set out

below:

(A)  Post-IPO Options

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants included any employee or
executive Director and such other persons as the
board of directors may consider appropriate.

On 12 December 2008, a resolution to renew the
10% general limit of the Post-IPO Options was
duly passed by the shareholders of the Company.
The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options might be granted under the Post-
IPO Options must not exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at 12 December 2008 (i.e. 151,749,000
shares, being 5.93% of the issued shares of the
Company as the date of this annual report) and in
any event the total maximum number of shares
which might be issued or issuable upon exercise of
all outstanding options should not exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date of
grant. No consideration is required to be paid by
the grantee for the grant of options.

The exercise price of an option must be the
highest of:

° the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

o the average closing price of the share for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

° the nominal value of the share.
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(A)

Post-1PO Options (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The life of the Post-IPO Options was effective
until 29 May 2015, after which time no further
option will be granted but provisions of the Post-
IPO Options shall remain in full force and effect
in all other respects.

On 19 July 2013, the Company has granted an
aggregate of 63,000,000 share options under the
Post-IPO Options to eligible participants thereof,
including certain employees and business
partners of the Group (“Grantees”). The Options
entitle the Grantees to subscribe for an aggregate
of 63,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each in the share capital of the Company upon
exercise in full.

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any
grantee if the acceptance of those options would
result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his
options during any 12 month period exceeding 1
per cent of the total shares then in issue.

Where any further grant of options to a grantee, if
exercised in full, would result in the total number
of shares already issued or to be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted
to such grantee (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further
grant exceeding one per cent of the total number
of shares in issue, such further grant must be
separately approved by the shareholders in
general meeting with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2017

(A)

BRORBERBRESS (F)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

BRAREERERET S 2 F 5
E-T-AFRAAZTABRARL
—HAR - BT ERHER
- BEXLRBEEERETE
XA R A EDA TR
IRAER -

R-F—=FtHAt+hIB AR
AIRBEERAMEERBIRE
B2 EER2EE (BN
SEETREREREBBH (AR
A D H & 63,000,000 1 B8 A%
1 o BBREN B BETER T
ERANENRBARRBRADE K
63,000,000/ & AXE fE0. 1078 T2
e A o

s AR AT 1248 A B3 Pl R 4%
M FEREMERNITEXS
BRERZEETRETETR
MERBBERDRHITRNDAER
1% - BRIFEERCRN AR A S £ A
EmRAIFr A 2 77 U - B A
EFg T A AE AR AR BER
o

R PMEM A E M BFEFRIMR LB
HE B I 1218 A A R AR AR
B Ao i B (R B 21T ) M
BYRTEDE T REE A
B AZFARRE(RECTE
AR ARITEE) M2 BT MG %
T2 a KBED BITIRIDAAE
1% - RIRZIRBIMNR h B 7R &
BARRABERNBERAE ES17HE
o MBS EEREBEALA

MERZHREER



(B) New Share Options

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants included any employee or
executive Director and such other persons as the
board of directors may consider appropriate.

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options might be granted under the New
Share Options must not exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time and in any event the
total maximum number of shares which might be
issued or issuable upon exercise of all outstanding
options should not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date of
grant. No consideration is required to be paid by
the grantee for the grant of options.

The exercise price of an option must be the
highest of:

o the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

o the average closing price of the share for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

° the nominal value of the share.

The life of the New Share Options was effective
until 1 June 2026, after which time no further
option will be granted but provisions of the New
Share Options shall remain in full force and effect
in all other respects.
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(B) #rRBIR#ESHE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)
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(B)

New Share Options (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any
grantee if the acceptance of those options would
result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his
options during any 12 month period exceeding 1
per cent of the total shares then in issue.

Where any further grant of options to a grantee, if
exercised in full, would result in the total number
of shares already issued or to be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted
to such grantee (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further
grant exceeding one per cent of the total number
of shares in issue, such further grant must be
separately approved by the shareholders in
general meeting with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.

No share options were granted under the New
Share Options during the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.
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The following table disclose details of the options under pre- TR FEARABRE B XA EERBARET
initial public offering share options scheme (the “Pre-IPO Z([BEXRAFEEMBREE]) REXARH
Options”) and Post-IPO Options held by the grantee and BWEGERESZEE 2BIREZFIBENZE
movements in such holdings: Ve EE -
Qutstanding Qutstanding Reallocated Qutstanding
Erercise dt Forfeited Lapsed it uon  Brercised  Forfeited Lapsed it
Name price 1 January during during 31 December change of during during during 31 December
Categoryof participants ~ of scheme Date of grant Evercisable period per share N16  the year the year 016 directorate theyear the year the year 017
H-F-7E H=g-7E Hog-tE
g -B-B tIRET-B EEREM +2Bzt-8
$9EEH iEAR k] kE  AFAE  ERRK ERRN i1 EfAR  EMGE  ERRM  EARN HAE
Hk§ (Notei)
AT (i)
Dirctors
]
Tang Rongong PostIPO Options 283,208 154.2009-273018 069 936,000 - - 93,000 - - - - 936,000
LR ENDFRER  EB)E ZEENEMATRRE
EhE ZRZTAB ZE-NESACfA
PostIPO Options~ 39.2009 1542010-20.009 068 3510000 - - 3510000 - - - - 3510000
BROFRER  CREAE ZR-ZEMATRAZ
EhE:td MA=A Z5-hEnAzR
Chan TatWing Richard ~~ PostiPOOptons 2832008 154.2009-273018 069 187200 - - 1872000 - - - - 1872000
Fik ARRRER 23RN ZEENEMATHRE
EhE =A e 1k
PostIPO Options 1942010-20.09 068 3510000 - - 3510000 - - - - 3510000
BRMRRER “R-TEMARRE
Ehitd Z5-hEnAzR
Liu Hong PostIPO Opfions. 13112007 1420081211017 140 11700 - - 117,000 - - - (107.000)
) EN0FRER  E5tE Z55)\5RA-AE
BEH R E-LE-A
PostIPO Options 283,208 194.2009-273018 069 |10 - - B (3312) - - =
BRMREER ‘ “ERNEMATRRE
Bt = e S
PostIPO Options~ 39.2009 1542010-20.09 068 936,000 - - 936,00 (936,000) = = =
BRARRER %% “E-ZEMATRAZ
EhiEtd “5-hEnAzR
LiuJun PostIPO Options.~~ 39.2009 154201029009 068 936,000 - - 936,000 - - - - 936,000
i BRORRER  C3ENE “5-TERATRRAZ
EhE MA=A ZE-NENAZR
12210120 - - 1220120 (13%9.120) = - (70 10764000
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—Z—+E&+-_A=1+—HLEE

Qutstanding Qutstanding Reallocated Qutstanding
Erercise it Forfeited Lapsed it pon  Brercised  Forfited Lapsed F
Name price 1 January during during 31 December change of during during during 31 December
Categoryof particpants ~ of scheme Date of rant Evercisable period per share 016 the year the year 216 directorate theyear ~the year the year 2017
H=8-7E Hog-7E i e
g8 -A-8 TIREt-R 0 EEAEY +2A=1-A
SEEEH by 4 RinS ks RE  HRGR  EARM  EARN it EfAE  EATR  EARR ERER HAGE
(Notei) HKS (Noteii)
Employeesof the Group~~ Post-IP0 Onfions 1252006 1L2007-115.2016 314 2363400 - 3340 - - - - - -
L BRORRER  CRRNE ZEtE-A-RE
BREE  2AtcA i 5l
PostIPO Opfions 13112007 1420081210017 10 3687 (6360 - 354175 - - (B0 (326690 -
NOFRER  RRME “55)\6RA-AZ
BREM  t-AfZR CE-HE-RECR
PostIPO Options 2832008 1542009-273018 069 12667005  (2AL5%0) = 12415455 1310 - (B8 = 122173%
BRORRER CRENE ZEENEDATRRE
BhErd 3 o 1 1
PostIPO Opfions~ 39.2009 154201029019 068 4037015 (18%9550) - 38487 465 93,000 - (L062949) - 336050
BNIFRER  CRENE “5-TERATRAE
BhEtd 248 -y kh
PostIPO Options~ 197.2013 1542151872023 036 17213000 (300000) = 16913000 - (L650000) = = 15263000
BRORRER R “E-RERATEAZ
BREtd  oital “RCEEATIA
Consufants PostIPO Opfions~ 197.2013 1542015187203 036 45400000 - - 45400000 - - - - 45400000
B BRDRRER  R-cF “E-15RATRRE
BhEtd  oimnA ZE--EHRTR
Toldl 133866315 (25347000 (2363400) 12898215 - (LO0000) (L8605 (33736%) 122064915
)
Evercisatle at the end ofthe year 12898215 122004915
RERTHI
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Notes:

(i)

(i)

In relation to each grantee of the options granted under the Pre-
IPO Options, subject to the vesting period set out below and terms
of the Pre-IPO Options, an option may be exercised by the grantee
at any time during the period of 10 years commending on the date
of grant, 25% of the options will vest during the period from 1 April
2006 to 31 December 2006 and in each of the three calendar years
from 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2009.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 12 May 2006
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of the options will vest in each of the
four calendar years from 1 January 2007.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 13 November
2007 under Post-IPO Options, 25% of the options will vest in each
of the four years from 1 April 2008.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 28 March 2008
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of the four
year from 15 April 2009.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 3 September
2009 under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of
the four year from 15 April 2010.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 19 July 2013
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of the four
year from 15 April 2014.

Liu Hong resigned as a Director with effect from 31 December 2017

and became an employee of the Group since then.

Fair value of share options granted to employees determined
at the date of grant is expensed over the vesting period, with
a corresponding adjustment to the Group’s share option
reserve. For the year ended 31 December 2017, an amount of
share option expense of approximately HK$1,282,000 (2016:
HK$2,904,000) has been recognised with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the Group’s share option reserve.

Bet -

(i)

(i)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
irE PR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+F1+-A=1+—HIFE

HRBEER AR GBS EXBREL
BRARAME - ETXAHRZEBHARERD
RBEABREZ GRRRT - ARATTREHL
B I0FHRABERITEBRE MR-
EREOA—RE_ZETRF+_A=+—HL
HRER -_ZEZLF-A—HE_ZTTNF+=
A=t —RLE=EBFEFKE25% 2 BRE
5 -

MIRBER DR ERBEAET SN —TTRF
AT -—RERBEREZEZEREAME 1=
T2 FE - - HENEEEFSFRHE25%
B e -

HRRBERARBERBRETER _ZTLF
TAT=REREREIEZEREAMNE © &
—ETNFNA - BENNEFESFREE 25%
ZIEIERE -

RIBBEARHREERBREAER_ZTNF
SAZHN\BERBEREZBEEAEAMS
H-ZTNENMATHBAENNEEESESE
25% 2 FEIRIESRIE -

BRBEERAREERBEETEN _TTNF
NAZAERBEREZGZARAMNS =%
—ZFEN A+ A ARNOEFEFFRE25% 2
B ERE -

HBBEEARNHABEERBREFIN _Z—=4F
+tATNBERBREZ BREARAMST - B=
TN A+RBENENEFESFEE25%
ZIBIRIESRE -

BRER —E—tF+-A=+—HEHMETAL
BRAEEZ RS -

R A EFrEE AEB R 2 BRE 2 AT

ERFEMHE  TENAEE 2 BIRERE

VEERE - HE—T—+E+-_A=+—H
LEFE - BRERERES H$3841,282,000
BT (ZZF—784F 2,904,000/ 7T) © WER
RNEE 7 IR SRR R -

RANKERERAR —F +FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hRE BTG RER M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+F+-A=+—HIFE

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management representing the
Directors’ remuneration as disclosed in note 10 during the
year was as follows:

Short-term benefits pSEE
Post-employment benefits BEBR 12 1B T

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the Group’s operating results, responsibilities and
performance of individuals and market trends.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2017

TEEE AR ZHRM
RAEE - ENEI0MEBERREEHEN T
ZEEABMEIT

2017 2016
—g—tE T AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THR
5,059 5,060

295 283

5,354 5,343

EXRIBETBRABZHEAFHERSRKE
BAKEKEESE  EAMAEZEERER
REMGBERETE -



During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group disposed of its 60% equity interest in /&5
EEARIER AR /AT Shanghai Dingxi Internet of
Things Technology Limited (“Shanghai Dingxi”) at
a total consideration of RMB4,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$5,000,000) to the non-
controlling shareholder (“Purchaser”) of Shanghai Dixi
(“Disposal”). The consideration was to be satisfied by
cash, of which (i) the first instalment of RMB 1,200,000
to be settled at the date of the completion of the
Disposal; (ii) the second instalment of RMB600,000
to be settled on the 90th day of the date of the
completion of the Disposal; and (iii) the final instalment
of RMB2,200,000 to be settled at the third anniversary
date of the date of completion of the Disposal. The
settlement date of final instalment of RMB2,200,000
could be delayed to the sixth anniversary date of the
date of completion of the Disposal at the discretion
of the Purchaser. Fair value of the consideration
receivable is estimated by using discounted cash
flow method with imputed interest rate of 7.345%
per annum at initial recognition and subsequently
measured at amortised cost. As at 31 December
2017, the unsettled consideration of RMB2,038,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,456,000)
(2016:RMB2,038,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,297,000)) was recorded as consideration
receivable in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
entered into sale and purchase agreements with a
few independent third parties to dispose of the share
capital of certain subsidiaries held by the Group. The
aggregate considerations were HK$3,447,000 in cash.
The disposals of the subsidiaries were all completed in
the current year.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ire PR RER M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+tHF+-A=+—RALFE

REZE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILHF
B AEER S EYHBEREER
AR EBSEH]) MEERERERTE
FHDHEEER EBRFH60%ME 4
{8 B A R #4,000,0007T (18 & R4
5,000,000 7T) ([HEFE]) - HEARK
BRUBRSEN  BEROEBHARE
1,200,000 7T #§ A & = H X B 81 E
= 5 (ii) 35 = #9 A R 600,000 7T #5 74
EFIF/K A BB EREN : i)
B —H AR 2 200,000 THERHES
HEKAHEN=AFEREMN - BX
A BB 5 1% — B AR 2,200,000 7T HY
ERAMEEEHESEHEER B RN
ANEFER - BRKRENRFETRY
IREREFEARSREMB AR GEER
KRGF 7345 Bt REBIRE K ANGT
E-RZTE—tF+-A=+—H &
REFMHREARY 2,038,000t (HHE
%) 2,456,000 BT0) (ZF—7RF : AR
#: 2,038,000 7T ( #8 & 1A £92,297,000 4
T0)) RERA SRR RS EEIARE -

RBE-_T—tF+_A=+—HLF
B NEEESEBELE= ALFIL
BEEWE HEAEEREZETHE
RAERA o« RFHE /I E3,447,00078
7T o HEMBARZMNAFETTRK
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HILFE

HK$'000
FAET
Aggregate considerations received: ZEEWARE :
Cash received BUIRE 3,447
HK$'000
FAET
Analysis of aggregate assets and KREEHERNRTEERARBEI N
liabilities over which control was
lost:
Property, plant and equipment L E Y 153
Inventories 78 1,967
Trade and other receivables EUE 5 Kk H b FRIE 8,518
Trade and other payables JES B 5 R EMFRIE (6,927)
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RIS 870
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 4,581
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries: HERBATZEE :
Considerations received BURE 3,447
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE (4,581)
Non-controlling interests EISUP 1,252
Gain on disposal 2 WS 118
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEXZBESRAFE
Cash considerations HeRE 3,447
Less: Bank balances and cash B HEZRITEB LIRS
disposed of (870)
2,577
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The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+HF1+-A=1+—HIFE

ATREBFINAEERESHED (BFERE
MERCET) cBE - KESREDZAE
DREERTREE  IHERAEENGE
RERBETOBRRESREBNREA

Amounts due
to non-contolling
shareholders of

Bank subsidiaries Other Dividend
borrowings FEfHEARHE liabilities payable Total
RITEE ERBRENRE HthBfE ERRE Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THEr TER TEx TER
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+&F
—A—H
299,991 35,613 - - 335,604
Financing cash flows MERETE (245,639) (35,613) 141,154 (25,579) (165,677)
Non-cash changes: EREEH
Foreign exchange SN 20,762 = = = 20,762
Interest expenses FEZ 8,990 - - = 8,990
Dividend BB = - - 25,579 25,579
At 31 December 2017 WZE—tF
+=-A=1+—H 84,104 = 141,154 = 225,258

RANKEBERAR —F +FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hRE BTG RaR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HIFE

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the purchase
consideration of property, plant and equipment amounting
to HK$54,000 (2016: HK$564,000) remained unsettled and
included in other payables, deposits received and accruals as
at 31 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group and
certain non-controlling shareholders incorporated certain
non-wholly owned subsidiaries of which capital injection
from non-controlling interests amounting to HK$3,129,000
remained unsettled and included in amounts due from non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries as at 31 December
2017 and 2016.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debts, which include the
bank borrowings and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated profits. The management reviews the capital
structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.
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HE—_ZT-—+H5+-_A=t+—HIFE B=S
Y - HE REERRES H A 54,0008 T
(ZZ—7<F : 564,000/870) REMS - WEFT
AN E—+F+=-A=+—BNEMENE
o BUES RERTFIES -

HE—T—RE+-_A=t+—HIFE K&
B & T IR R A B T IR EHT B
Al HRE IR E R & 3,129,000 %
THALN  WRZE—+ERZE—AF
+=ZA=+—BtABKRHE A R LRI E
FRIEAF o

BEXEBEE
AEBEREAZBNRERB(LEBERZ
T RAKEE TS ERERNEEAS
BEERE  YRBARRERESER - A
SEZEAEBEEER (HBERTEE) R
ARREEE AEEER(BIEEBITHRA - &
wWREDEN)  EREERHELAGEERS
BEARAREZRE AR AR - Bl
AEBRBEBNBE - BITHBRAREITH
EREORAES FEERENREE - NEE
ZBERBERAEENETIE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hrE PR RER M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+HF1+-A=1+—HIFE

Categories of financial instruments T EEG
2017 2016
—E—tE ZE—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET Tt
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables (including B EW R
cash and cash equivalents) (pRBEeMReEEER) 879,008 824,550
Available-for-sale investment AR E 2 IRE 80,253 187,448
Financial liabilities A=A
Amortised cost B 720,444 758,620
Financial risk management objectives and policies B EREENEZEBER

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investment, trade and notes receivables and
payables, other receivables and payables, accruals, entrusted
loan receivables, amounts due from/to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate, consideration
receivable, pledged bank deposits, bank balances, bank
borrowings and other liabilities. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. Approximately 17% (2016: 25%) of the Group’s sales are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the group entity making the sale, whilst almost 60% (2016:
60%) of costs are denominated in the group entity’s functional
currency.

AEB7TZoRMITABEAHEERE &
WK B E SRR RIE - AN & R
R ERER - BRETER - B EMK
— A R R A R IR IR R IR - U
RE  BEMRRITER - RITEH - RITEE
REMEE ZEeMITEZFENE @AM
R o EZE SR T EARR 2 BRI KA
MEZERRZBERENTX - EREEER
ERZERR - AR R AA BIREUEE
B HE ©

BE¥mEE

REEBLZRWBARAINEHEITEE - 8%

| TE P ONEE ey o Zl»‘&.fﬁ’i% BX17% (==
— N 25%) MEEE R TTEEE'] e s

BIAIM EHEFTHE - TAI60% (—F —7R%F -
60%) UK R A EE BT Aé‘éiﬁ*ﬂﬁ
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HIFE

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the major financial assets
and liabilities of the Group denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the respective group entities
are trade receivables, bank balances, trade payables and
bank borrowings and the amounts are disclosed in notes 27,
28, 29 and 30 respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of reporting period are as follows:

usb ET

The management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency expose
should the need arise.
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B EEER B SEEEE (R)

ErmEps ()

RMERER  AEENSEEEEBIEEE
N EEAHENEZESHEERABARER
B~ BITHES  ENESERFIRITE
B HEEESBESBIRMFE27 - 28 - 29 %30
R o

RIMERR - AEREINETHENEREER
ERBEMREERNT

Assets Liabilities
BE =
2017 2016 2017 2016

—E—+tF ZT—RF Bt —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TATT FET TR

97,297 101,464 105,156 88,161

EEESRFINERR  YRERERZREY
HEARINE R -



Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10%
(2016: 10%) increase and decrease in RMB against USD.
10% (2016: 10%) represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 10% (2016:
10%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in post-tax profit where RMB
strengthen 10% against USD for the both years. For a 10%
weakening of RMB against USD, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the post-tax profit and the balances below
would be negative.

Increase in post-tax profit FRAE1& Ja F 3 0
Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding USD
bank balances, receivables, payables and bank borrowings of the

Group at the end of the reporting period.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
notes receivables, other receivables, consideration receivable,
entrusted loan receivables, amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as
at 31 December 2017 and 2016 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+HF1+-A=1+—HIFE

B R EE i B R ()

E¥m ks (1E)
TEREFMAIIEASEENARB L EZTH
B/ B2E10% (ZZT—7 F : 10%) HBRRE °
10% (ZZ—7RF : 10%) AR EIEEFTaHE I
EEXRMREHIRMNASEEZE - IRESITER
FELINESHENREEERIAE - WAEXRH
I 10% (ZZ—7"F | 10% ) B8 E R Hf
KRR ESTIENFAE - LTITHEHERRAR
M 2 TTAE A S FHE 10% FIBR B 1% 04 ) 32
ne tn ARMEHETTHZE 10%  BREZ &A1
ERERABHERNTZE  mEHEIEas -

2017 2016
—E—tE T AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TR
371 1,951

Biet - ERRREAEERREPRAERTTHEZ A E
BIRITHER - BN FIRARRITEE 2R

EEERE

AEENEERRIZXRARKEZRARE
B HtERERER  BRRRE BREFRE
R PR A B K — R A R SRR AR AR R
FIR - BHEIRRITERARRITAEE

RZE—+tFERZT—R"F+ZA=+—8 -
AEBEREF A ARERITEEMAEHEEER
CRMEEFMAAZ 2HANEERR - RZEE
ERRE BB RARZRAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HIFE

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In respect of credit risks arising
from amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries and an associate, in the opinion of the Directors,
no significant credit risks are expected as there is no default
repayment history. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group invested into one
(2016: four) entrusted loan agreements (details are set out in
note 21). Under the entrusted loan agreements, the Group
provided funding to loan borrowers through licensed asset
managers and/or licensed banks, which acted as the assets
managers and trustees respectively. The asset managers and
the trustee banks do not bear the credit risk of the entrusted
loan receivables. Before entering into these agreements, the
Group assesses the credit quality of the loan borrowers and
defines the terms of the loans. The Group has concentration
of risk on the entrusted loan receivables as the loans are
made to one (2016: three) entrusted loan borrowers. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group received
interest income of HK$7,021,000 (2016: HK$8,938,000)
and recognised as other income. In view of the timely interest
repayment, in the opinion of the Directors, the credit risk in
respect to the entrusted loan receivables could be monitored.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2017

B EEER B SEEEE (R)
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s bank balances and cash are deposited with
banks in Hong Kong and the PRC and the Group has limited
the exposure to any single financial institution. In addition, the
Group’s pledged deposits are also deposited with a bank in
the PRC. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

The Group has concentration of credit risks with exposure
limited to certain customers. As at 31 December 2017, five
(2016: five) customers amounting to HK$96,829,000 (2016:
HK$61,792,000) comprised approximately 32% (2016:
26%) of the Group’s trade receivables. These customers are
within the same mobile phone technology industry in the PRC,
Singapore and the United Kingdom. The management closely
monitors the subsequent settlement of the customers. In this
regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of
bank borrowings amounted to HK$84,104,000 (2016:
HK$299,991,000). All such bank borrowings included a
repayment on demand clause exercisable at any time by
the relevant banks and are classified as current liabilities.
In accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows amount to HK$86,057,000 (2016:
HK$300,912,000). However, should the relevant banks
exercise their rights to demand immediate repayment, the
principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounting to
HK$84,104,000 (2016: HK$299,991,000) will be repayable
on demand. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the Directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment.
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B R EE i B R ()

FEmbE ()
REBZRITERNREFERZHEEERDE
ZIRIT » AR BB E - sHE AR
RBRBER o 1o ARE 2 ERFRITFRR
PE—RRT - RBEEZEERRER
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Directors consider that liquidity risk is limited after
considering the future cash flows of the Group in the
foreseeable future, including the repayment schedule of bank
borrowings as discussed above and the short-term liabilities
which are required to be repaid within three months from the
end of the reporting period. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its
entrusted loan receivables.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group is exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
borrowings and bank balances.

The Group currently does not have a cash flow interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management closely monitors
its exposure to future cash flow risk as a result of change on
market interest rate and will consider hedging changes in
market interest rates should the need arise. A 100 basis point
(2016: 100 basis point) change represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of LPR arising from the Group’s variable
interest rate bank borrowings.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure to
future cash flow risk on variable-rate bank balances as a result
of the change of market interest rate is insignificant and thus
variable-rate bank balances are not included in the sensitivity
analysis.

The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. If the interest rate of
bank borrowings had been 100 basis point (2016: 100 basis
point) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2017 would decrease/increase by HK$631,000 (2016:
HK$2,016,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings.

Price risk
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group is exposed to
other price risk through its listed available-for-sale investment.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period. The sensitivity analysis included the available-for-sale
investment carried at fair value. If the price of the respective
available-for-sale investment in listed equity securities had
been 10% higher/lower, assuming all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s other comprehensive income (net
of tax) for the year ended 31 December 2017 would increase/
decrease by HK$6,019,000 (2016: HK$14,059,000).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hrE PR RER M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+HF1+-A=1+—HIFE

B R EE i B R ()

FiE 7 bz (A7)

ERERR  AKBERMSHNEREEHETFER
TRFARZRARBASRARTA - Hitt - 8
REDITA MEIET BIRTTAERR

REFRELSM BB ERSHARNAKER
MEeEMTENBFRAKRMEE - MBTHEEFR
K EFATREI00EZ (=T —/<F : 100
BOMABEMESREIFTE  AEEHEZ
E—+FE+ - A=+ B ILFENBRTHEET
e 18 iN631,000/8 T (—F—7RF :
2,016,00087T) - B BEHNRAERBZER
TE B FIRE R FTE

B m A
RZBE—tFR_FT—"F+A=+—8"
AREBRE AN E FTRE M b ERE
[Z B

B Z ST

NI Z BURE DT TR RS HAR P 4 2 %
RERERETE - MRELSTESEA T ET
ENAHEERE - MR ETRAEHFHER
AHEESRENER LA TE10%  mAT
EHMEHERIE  AEBHE T —+F
TZ AT HALEFENEMEERE (R
1% )84 hn, 426,019,000 7T (= — /N4 ¢
14,059,000 7T) °

RANKEBERAR —F +FFH

191



192

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hRE BTG RaR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+FI+-A=1+—HIFE

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets.

The Group’s available-for-sale investments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating
the fair value, the Group uses market observable data to the
extent it is available.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s available-for-sale
investment is listed equity securities outside Hong Kong
of HK$80,253,000 (2016: HK$187,448,000) which was
classified as Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. The carrying
amount of the investments was measured at fair value based
on the quoted bid price in an active market.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair value of its
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their fair values.
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Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31
December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hrE PR RER M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+HF1+-A=1+—HIFE

RZB—+tFR_F—R"F+_A=+—HX
NAElZMBARFFBOT

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital RARFERATE/ FRER LA
Name of subsidiary AL/ R BRTRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
WEARAE AERHY R/ EHER E# ] IERH
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tE I ZB-tE ZEF
SIM Technology Group (BVI) 13 October 2004 Ordinary shares 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Limited British Virgin Islands US$12,233 RERR
(“BVI") LER1233%
“TEMETAT=H
ZBRAES
Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited 17 December 1999 Ordinary shares - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
REETTEARAR Samoa US$2,002 RERR
“INAMETZATER  ERER2000ET
BEGES
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom? 9 November 1993 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Manufacturing and Handsets and
LEREZRE The PRC RMB200,000,000 |07 terminals business in the PRC
“hAZET-ARR  EftER ERELEFRRIBELAER
G ARE 200,000,0007C
Shanghai Simcom? 5 December 2002 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Design and development of Handsets
LEAER The PRC 15$5,000,000 and 10T terminals business and
“EI-ET-ARR #fER Wireless communication modules
HE 500000057 business in the PRC

Shanghai Suncom Logistics Limited® 23 September 2003 Registered capital -

LEERTHRETARAR! The PRC US$400,000
“EESEAA-TZH  EffER
| 400,000% 7T

EREU SR RS T RR B
REFHREGRARSRES

- 100% 100%  Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
marketing of the Group's products and
provides logistics services in the PRC

EPERE e HEREEAKE
ERRREDRRE

RANKEBERAR —F +FFH
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Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital ARAFBRAEE/RER LA
Name of subsidiary AR/ R EETRAE Directly Indirectly Principal activities
WEAR AR RERMH R/ ERER E# [ IREH
2017 2016 2017 2016
TE-tE ZZF ZB-tE ZEF5F
Simcom International Holdings 2 October 2003 Ordinary share US$L - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited BV ERR1ET RERER
ZEE-FTACA
EBRIES
Suncom International Holdings 12 January 2004 Ordinary share US$1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited Bl LER1%T RERR
ZEIME-AT=A
ZBRAEE
SIM Technology HK Limited 21 April 2004 Ordinary share HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Provision of administrative services in
RAREAEERAR Hong Kong LA Hong Kong
ZEIMEMA=T-A TR ARETIRS
&

Shanghai Speedcomm Technology 16 November 2005 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Design and development of Handsets
Limited® The PRC RMB7,500,000 and [0T terminals business and
LERIEEARGERAR —TERET-AtAE AR Wireless communication modules

] AE%7500,0007C business in the PRC
EPE SR RARF R RES
RnE B RSB ERER
Max Vision Limited 17 September 2003 Ordinary shares HK$2 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
AEERAT Hong Kong LRR2AT RERR
“EE-ENATHA
&
Max Vision (Shanghai) Limited" 8 December 2003 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
RAAST (LR BRAR! The PRC 1S$200,000 marketing of the Group's products and
ZERSESCANE EfER provides logistics services in the PRC
hE 200000% 7 ERERE M HERERASE
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Name of subsidiary

i) PG

Simeom Wireless!
iR

Shanghai SIM Technology Limited"
Rt (L8 ARAA!

Shanghai Simcom Electronic
Limited"
FEERETERAR)

Shenyang SIM Technology Limited?
RARE(15) BRAR?

Shenyang SIM Real Estate Limited
(“SYRE"?
RAEE (15)ARAR’

Shenyang SIM Simcom*
MERAZER!

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
AL/ R
RERES

31 October 2006

The PRC
“2%51A=1-H
e

2 August 2006

The PRC
Z25ENAZR
e

21 November 2006

The PRC
Z2EAE-Azt-A
e

25 October 2007

The PRC
ZERYETAZTEA
e

8 November 2007

The PRC
ZE3tET-ANA
il

24 July 2008

The PRC
Z2T)\FLAZ TR
GilE]

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BEGHE

R4 /SRER

Registered capital
US$1,000,000

&R
1,000,000% 7

Registered capital
RMB40,000,000
AR
AR 40,000,0007C

Registered capital
US$200,000

&R
200000% 7

Registered capital
US$10,000,000

Ry
10,000,000%7

Registered capital
US$20,000,000

HHER
20,000,000%

Registered capital
RMB30,000,000
AR
AR 30,000,0007C

ZE-tE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital

e WIS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
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held by the Company
ADRFERARE/SREA LA
Directly Indirectly
EE ]

2017 2016 2017 2016
ZZF 2Bt ZE5%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 60% 60%
- - 100% 100%

Principal activities

IBER

Design and development of Wireless
communication modules business
in the PRC

BRI SR AL ERENRA
£

Investment holding of land use rights in
the PRC
EHE THERE RERK

Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
marketing of the Group's products and
provides logistics services in the PRC

EPERE e HEREEALE
ERRREDRRE

Investment holding of land use rights in
the PRC
TpE tRRE RERR

Properties development in PRC

il EEST

Design and development of handsets
and Wireless communication modules
business in the PRC

EPERER T RR TR RERER
BRzE
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Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capitall registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital ARAFBERAEE/RER LA
Name of subsidiary AR/ R EETRAE Directly Indirectly Principal activities
WEAR AR RERMH R/ ERER E# [ IREH
2017 2016 2017 2016
TE-tE ZZF ZB-tE ZE5F
Shenzhen Simcom Technology 28 August 2008 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Design and development of Wireless
Limited* The PRC RMB5,000,000 communication modules business
MIERERRERAT ZEEN\ENAZTNR AR inthe PRC
i ABRH5,0000007 ERERS R R EREARR
3
Simcom Holdings HK Limited 22 September 2008 Ordinary share - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
REREEERAT Hong Kong HKG1 RERR
“ER)\ENACT-R ERERIET
&
Shanghai iLove Limited” 27 February 2009 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
DENE#ESRIARAT"  ThePRC US$3,000,000 RERR
I Ky = 2177
G 3,000000% 7
Shanghai Xinkang Electronic 5 January 2009 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Design and development of Wireless
Technology Limited The PRC RMB20,000,000 communication modules business
HESRETHEERAR  ZZENE-ARA iHER inthe PRC
il AR 20,0000007 BN R RAE R ERNRR
%
Goldsey Limited 31 January 2008 Ordinary shares - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
BtARAR Hong Kong HK$18,000,000 RERR
“FT\E-A=+-H  LE%18000000ET
B
Smartwireless Technology Limited" 13 February 2007 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Design and development of Handsets
HRERRENHARAR! The PRC RMB20,500,000 and [0T terminals business in the PRC
“TELF-ATER AR B et KRR TR RSB
] AR 20,500,000 £
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Name of subsidiary

i) PG

Shanghai Mabile Phone Public
Testing Platform Co., Ltd.*
HEFRAEDARBTEER

G

Taizhou SIM Real Estate Limited®

FNRAEZARAR

Jiangsu Chenri Investment Limited®

TERARABRAR

Jiangsu Yunmao Internet of Things

Technology Limited*

THEZENBENBERAR

Shanghai Wide-Top Financial

Leasing Co., Ltd.!

HERRMAREARAR)!

Jiangsu Hangjin Electronic
Technology Limited®

THRBETHRERAR

Alpha Apex Limited

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
AL/ R
RERES

21 December 2009
The PRC

“EENET-A-1-R

hE

7 March 2013

The PRC
“T--E-A+A
e

24 April 2013

The PRC
“F-=FMAZTEA
e

7June 2013

The PRC
“5-ZE5AtA
e

17 July 2013

The PRC
“E-ZFLA+A
e

9 July 2013

The PRC
“E-=ErANA
i

26 October 2012

Samoa
Z2-TEtA1A
EEDHE
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Proportion of nominal value of

Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital

share capital/ held by the Company
registered capital ALAMERAERE/ ARERZ LA
EERAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
R4 /SRER EE 3 IREH
2017 2016 2017 2016
TE-tE ZZE ZB-tE ZE5F
Registered capital - 87.5% 87.5%  Design and development of Handsets
RMB20,000,000 and 10T terminals business in the PRC
HMER RERG R TR R
AR 20,000,0007C £
Registered capital - 100% 100%  Properties development in the PRC
RMB120,000,000 Il EnEER
Hhax
AK%120,000,00070
Registered capital - 100% 100%  Investment holding
RMB50,000,000 RARR
iER
AR 50,000,0007C
Registered capital - 100% 100%  Development of internet of things system
RMB10,000,000 and online to onling equipment in the
AR PRC
AR%10,000,0007C ErEREIBEZIREESR
Registered capital - 100% 100%  Finance lease service in the PRC
US$17,000,000 ERER{EHERERE
AR
17,000,000
Registered capital - 100% 100%  Development of internet of things system
RMB30,000,000 and online-to-offline equipment in the
R0 PRC
ARE30,0000007C EREREIREATREE R
Registered capital - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Uss1 RERR
HER1ET
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BE-Z—+F+-A=+—HIFE

Name of subsidiary

HEAFER

Shanhgai Boshen Vending Machine

Limiteg"
LERRERERRARAA

Shanghai Yunhao Trading Limited*

HEERRAARAR)

Shanghai Yunmao 0T Limited”
LREEMBENEARAT

Shenyang Zhonghong Intel-Tech
Limited*
PIGLER A

Shanghai Simcom System Limited

AERERARER(LE)
BRAR!

Shenzhen Zhouxunda Technology
Development Co., Limited*®

MImERENRERARAT

Hangzhou Kawo Automation
Technology Co., Limited*
MFRERIMEERAR

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
AL/ 2R
RERMH

5 August 2011

The PRC
“T—%/\RLA
il

28 August 2014

The PRC
“Z-mENAZT/R
hE

11 October 2014

The PRC
“E-METAT-H
hE

28 October 2014

The PRC
ZE-WETAZTR
hE

17 March 2014
The PRC
ZF-RE-AttH
E

4 January 2015

The PRC
“Z-HE-AEA
hE

13 February 2015

The PRC
“Z-Rf-A+=H
hE

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2017

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BECGE

R4 /SER

Registered capital
RMB5,000,000
iHiER
AR 5,0000007C

Registered capital
RMB38,500,000
A
AR 38,500,0007C

Registered capital
RMB10,000,000

Hhan
AK10,000,00070

Registered capital
RMB30,000,000
AR
AR 30,000,0007C

Registered capital
RMB20,000,000
HMER
AR 20,000,0007C

Registered and contributed
capital RMB7,000,000

HRREAER
AEE7,000,0007C

Registered capital
RMB6,000,000

Hhan
ARE6,00000070

—g-tf

Proportion of nominal value of
share capitall registered capital

held by the Company
AARFERARE/SREAZILA
Directly Indirectly
E# £

2017 2016 2017 2016
2 ZB-tE 3%
- - 100% 100%
- - 98.7% 987%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 75%
- - 100% 100%
- - - 8%
- - 80% 80%

Principal activities

IBER

Finance lease service and trading of
snacks in the PRC

EPERHEERERE R
t=3RE7

Procurement and trading of snacks in the
PRC

EREIETRRERES

Trading of snacks in the PRC
EREEERES

Development of internet of things system
and online-to-offline equipment in the
PRC

ErEREIBRRZIRES R

Building design and construction of
smart home in the PRC
AR RRERI AR

Development of automated test
equipment and software in the PRC

ErERRABRARBREN

Development of automated test
equipment in the PRC
EPERZE D RERE



Name of subsidiary

o) P

(Guandong Chentuo Robot
Technology Co., Limited*
ERREMEANZERAD!

Dongguan Xinlubiao Automation

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
AL/ R
AERLH

11 March 2015

The PRC
“Z-1F=A+-A
Gl

11 May 2012

Equipment Technology Co., Limited* The PRC

REMHAREBILRER
BRAR

Shenyang Jingxingcheng Automation

Technology Co., Limited®

ABREHEDRIEBRAA

Hefei Yunhao Trade Co., Limited*
AREREZARA!

Hangzhou Yunyou Trade Co.,
Limited*
WNEEEHERAR!

Shenzhen Yunding Vending
Operators Co., Limited*

MIMELEHEERELER
AN

Shanghai Bachen Inteligent
Technology Co., Limited*
HEERERRITARAR

“E-"#7A+-H
e

24 August 2015

The PRC
“2-RF\AZTHA
Gl

19 December 2014

The PRC
ZE-MEFZATAR
e

3 November 2015

The PRC
“E-REt-A=H
e

16 January 2015

The PRC
ZZ-RE-AtA
HE

14 October 2015

The PRC
“Z-n%+A+EA
e
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Proportion of nominal value of

Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital

share capital/ held by the Company
registered capital RARFERATE/ FRER LA
ERTREAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
R/ ERER E# B IEXH
2017 216 2017 2016
I2-tE TF ZE-tfE %
Registered capital - - 100% 80%  Development of automated test
RMB10,000,000 equipment in the PRC
iER ErEREEDRERE
AK%10,000,000 70
Registered capital - - 63.6% 70%  Development of automated test
RMB15,000,000 equipment in the PRC
a2 ERERE SRR
AR 15,000,0007C
Registered capital - - 60% 60%  Development of automated test
RMB10,000,000 equipment in the PRC
AR ERERE B NRE
ARE10,000,0007C
Registered capital - - 51% 51%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
RMB1,500,000 EPEitETRES
HMER
AR 1,500,007
Registered capital - - 51% 51%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
RMB2,000,000 ERENETRES
Ry
AR 20000007
Registered capital - - 70% 70%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
RVB7,000,000 ErEtsTRE5
a2y
ARE7,000,0007C
Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
RMB5,500,000 P ETRES
AR
ARE5,500,0007

BRANREBERAR —F+FFH
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Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capitall registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital FARFERAEE/ FRER LA
Name of subsidiary HRAL/ R ERTRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
WEAR AR RERMS A/ ERER E# B IEEH
2017 2016 2017 216
ZE-tE ZEE ZE-tE CEF
Shanghai Jizhi Automation 29 September 2014 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Development ofinternet of tings system
Technology Co., Limited* The PRC RMB20,000,000 and onling-to-offline equipment in the
LERBRBIMEERATY —F-BEAA-TAR ifER PRC
hE AR 20,0000007 ErEREIBEZTRES R
Shanghai Pami Intelligent 14 March 2016 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Development of automated test
Technology Co., Limited* The PRC RMB10,000,000 equipment in the PRC
HEERESHEERAR ZENEZRTER AR ERERE B RARE
hE AR 10,000,000
Guangdong Chengshida Automation 21 April 2016 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Development of automated test
Technology Co., Limited* The PRC RMB10,000,000 equipment in the PRC
ERRIEZABIARARAA —F-AFRA-t-B #fEK ERERE B NRE
E AR 10,000,007
Wuhan Yunbang Supply Chain 30 June 2016 Registered capital - - 51% 51% Trading of snacks in the PRC
Management Co, Limited* ~ The PRC RVB2,000,000 Rl )
RESAUEREEERAG T & A=A AR
] AR 2,000,0007
Ningbo Yunjing Supply Chain 24 June 2016 Registered capital - - 51% 51% Trading of snacks in the PRC
Management Co, Limited* ~ The PRC RVB2,000,000 EPEfETRE
BRESMEREEARARY  —E-AEAA-TEA AR
] AR¥ 2,000,007
Fujiansheng Yunxiang Supply Chain - 3 August 2016 Registered capital - - 51% 51%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
Management Co, Limited ~ The PRC RVB10,000,000 ErEitETRE5
BREEARERERARAR —5-E/\RZA AR
] AR 10,000,0007C
Shijiazhang Yunhao Supply Chain 30 August 2016 Registered and contributed - - - 51%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
Management Co., Limited® ~ The PRC capital RMB2,000,000 EHEREZRES
RFHERMERERARARY 3 \A=TR  #fRESEL
HEl AR 20000007
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L Wholly foreign owned enterprises (“WFOE”) registered in the PRC.

2 Sino-foreign equity joint venture registered in the PRC.
8 Re-investment in WFOE registered in the PRC.

. Domestic Company registered in the PRC.

o The company was disposed at 31 May 2017.

< The company was disposed at 28 September 2017.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

A majority of these subsidiaries operate in Handsets and
|IOT terminals business, Wireless communication modules
business, Property development, I0OT system and 020
business and Intelligent manufacturing business. The
principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as
follows:

Principal place of

Principal activities of business
FEEK FTEEEME
Handset and 10T terminals business PRC

F e R B A AR TS H
Wireless communication modules business PRC
BEARRARIRET HEY
Property development PRC
YISER R

|OT system and 020 business PRC

VIR A R BB T H
Intelligent manufacturing business PRC
BReBIEET A EY

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that has material non-controlling
interests:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hrE PR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+F+-A=+—HIFE

! FEREEMZIEBE RS -

2 FEHEFEMzhIMaERE -

3 ENRENETEEM I EBEDRE -
4 FEHEEMz2RERE -

° ZRRR—E—LFAA=+—HEE -
e ZRRRZE—EFAATNAHE -

I EAEAAT P B R BN A F E R AEFE R
A R AR B E S o

ZEMB ARSI ZHEFH R AR
IMER - MGRAERER  MELRR - W
PRGREBEBEEE R D BAEET - Z5H B
NRIZEZZEBHINAT

Number of subsidiaries

MENERE
2017 2016
ZB—+tF TEREF
8 7
4 3
2 2
12 14
8 10

TEREIAEENE T A EAI RIS
FEREMBRA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RaR TR
For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-Z—+F+-A=+—HIFE

Name of subsidiaries

HEAFER

SYRE

REF

Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests

BEFEREL BRI EANEAR

Summarised financial information for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016 in respect of the Group’s
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is
set out below. The summarised financial information below

Place of Proportion of
incorporation ownership interests
and principal and voting rights held by
place of business non-controlling interests
FERER
HMATREEEERY RERERRAFRELY
2017 2016

e R

PRC 40% 40%
R

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2017

Profit (loss)
allocated to
non-controlling interests
IREFERER
A (68)

2017
8-tE
HK$'000
TiEn

474

—E—tFRT—

016
3
HK$ 1000
TEm

(2697)

Accumulated non-
controlling interests

it ERER
2017 2016
Bt F
HK$'000 HK$ 000
TERn TAL
75,040 69,724
26,441 36,077

101,481 105,801

NEBMBEBENFERESZHBEBRARREE
NE+T-A=+—HItE
EZHEERBENT - T XFrEz g Er
BME AR EERN QTR o



Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

Total equity

Revenue
Expenses

Profit (loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
(expense) for the year

Total comprehensive income
(expense) for the year

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to

— the owner of SYRE

— non-controlling interests of SYRE

Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

(expense) for the year attributable to

— the owner of SYRE

— non-controlling interests of SYRE

Other comprehensive

income (expense) for the year

Total comprehensive income (expense)

for the year attributable to
— the owner of SYRE

— non-controlling interests of SYRE

Total comprehensive income (expense)

for the year

Net cash outflow used in operating

activities
Net cash inflow from
from investing activities

Net cash outflow used in financing

activities

Net cash outflow

FRBEE
mBEE
mBAE

R ARRR

WA
R

AEREH (ER)
AEEEMbEERE (FX)

AEEEENE (FRx) B8

- RAEEZEBA

- RAE X 2 IR
AEREH (E51R)
TORIREE AN FE A

2 (F)

-RAERZHEEA

- RAE R 2 FRER R
REEHMEE WSS (F%)
T RBEEAFERH

Wz (RIS ) 4888

-RAEXRZHEEA

- RAE R 2 IR

REE R ()88

RETEERE ML FE
REEBHHRSMAFE

BB EERE AL FE

BRemh s

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MIEHMARME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+HF1+-A=1+—HIFE

SYRE

RAEX
2017 2016
—ET—+tF =T\
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
201 216
274,020 295,614
(86,622) (121,520)
187,599 174,310
77,209 93,123
(76,023) (99,865)
1,186 (6,742)
12,105 (9,673)
13,291 (16,415)
712 (4,045)
474 (2,697)
1,186 (6,742)
7,263 (5,804)
4,842 (3,869)
12,105 (9,673)
7,975 (9,849)
5,316 (6,566)
13,291 (16,415)
(22,272) (12,260)
= 38
= (6,886)
(22,272) (19,108)

RANMKEBERAR —F +FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
hRE BTG RER M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+F+-A=+—HIFE

Non-current assets
Investment in a subsidiary
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets
Other receivables
Bank balances

Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Other payables and accruals

Net current liabilities
Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2017

FRBEE
R—HMBRARZRE
LB X R RIR

RBEE
H it fEH IR
RITHEER

nRBAE
FEAST BB X AR
H At B AR R T 50R

REBEEFE
HEERRBAE
BRK R

N

G

AR

2017 2016
—ET—tF —FRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
179,803 118,401
1,038,477 1,101,519
1,218,280 1,219,920
618 614
11,627 393
12,245 1,007
11,806 106
3,288 1,751
15,094 1,857
(2,849) (850)
1,215,431 1,219,070
255,955 255,790
959,476 963,280
1,215,431 1,219,070




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ire PR RER M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+tHF+-A=+—RALFE

Movement in the Company’s reserves RATREERE
Capital Share
Share  redemption option Special  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
RiVEE EXBEGE BRERE IRk ZiER b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Tir Tix Thx THx Thx
At 1 January 2016 RIB—RE
—-A—H 831,363 2,282 30,888 193,848 (122,008) 936,373
Profit and total comprehensive ~ AEEHHR2E
income for the year hearar - - - - 24,003 24,003
Share options lapsed BREAN - - (4,280) - 4,280 =
Recognition of equity-settled RARELEE L
share-based payments RIGRR - - 2,904 - = 2,904
At 31 December 2016 RIE—RE
+-A=t-H 831,363 2,282 29,512 193,848 (93,725) 963,280
Profit and total comprehensive  AEERF|R
income for the year 2ENELE = = = - 20,087 20,087
Transfer upon exercise of TR ER
share options g5 297 = (297) - - -
Issue of new shares upon TR ER
exercise of share options B 406 = = = = 406
Dividend paid BARE - - - = (25,579) (25,579)
Share options lapsed BRERN = = (751) = 751 -
Recognition of equity-settled ERARELEE
share-based payments BIES = = 1,282 - - 1,282
At 31 December 2017 RZB—tF
+-A=t-H 832,066 2,282 29,746 193,848 (98,466) 959,476

On 21 December 2017, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party under
which the Group has conditionally agreed to dispose of
technology and assets in relation to wireless communication
modules business at a total consideration of approximately
RMB608,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$717,400,000) (the “Disposal”). The Group has received
a deposit of approximately RMB51,800,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$62,419,000). Subsequent to 31
December 2017, the Disposal has been completed and the
Group is in the process of assessing the relevant financial
impact of the Disposal.

RZE—+FE+-A=-+—H AEFHE—F
BUYF=FFIVEBEHZE Bt A5EH
BHERELEEFAESBNERNOTMRE
E - AREH AR 608,000,000 7t (FHE R
717,400,000 7T) ([HE]) - XEBEWIZS
#) AR ¥ 51,800,000 7T (18 & 7 4962,419,000
BIL) c RZE—+tF+A=1+—H% " %
HEB TN - AEEIB EF G ESiERE
TERE o

BRANREBERAR —F+FFH
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Financial Summary

MG E

RESULTS
Revenue

(Loss) profit before taxation
Tax credit (charge)

(Loss) profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

£ |
WA

BT (B48) A
BIRGTA (F1BR)

AER (BR)EM

AT LS :
KREFEAA
SRR

EERAHE
REE

wafE

ARAEEA
iy Fe
IR
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For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-BLEFE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—E-=F —E-mE “E-1fF “E-RE —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL THL THT THRT
1,716,079 2,352,353 3,197,289 2,724,390 3,258,517
(266,178) 50,175 89,650 96,500 138,796
13,797 (16,029) (19,775) (22,067) (36,190)
(252,381) 34,146 69,875 74,433 102,606
(239,198) 23,967 64,645 77,278 111,651
(13,183) 10,179 5,230 (2,845) (9,045)
(252,381) 34,146 69,875 74,433 102,606
As at 31 December
W+=ZA=+-H

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—2-=F —F-mE —F-nf —EF ZE2-tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT T THL TExT
2,858,620 3,074,583 3,396,089 3,479,800 3,630,405
(899,572) (1,076,129) (1,397,705) (1,347,253) (1,407,114)
1,959,048 1,998,454 1,998,384 2,132,547 2,223,291
1,880,947 1,912,011 1,895,779 2,026,746 2,121,810
78,101 86,443 102,605 105,801 101,481
1,959,048 1,998,454 1,998,384 2,132,547 2,223,291
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Mr WONG Cho Tung (President)
Ms TANG Rongrong
Mr CHAN Tat Wing, Richard
Mr LIU Hong
(resigned as Executive Director
with effect from
31 December 2017)
Mr LIU Jun (Chief executive officer)

Independent
non-executive Directors

Mr LIU Hing Hung
Mr XIE Linzhen
(resigned as Independent
non-executive Director with
effect from 18 April 2017)
Mr DONG Yunting
(resigned as Independent
non-executive Director with
effect from 18 April 2017)
Mr WANG Tianmiao
(appointed as Independent
non-executive Director with
effect from 18 April 2017)
Mr WU Zhe
(appointed as Independent
non-executive Director with
effect from 18 April 2017)

Mr LIU Hing Hung (Chairman)

Mr XIE Linzhen
(resigned as a member of
Audit Committee with effect
from 18 April 2017)

Mr DONG Yunting
(resigned as a member of
Audit Committee with effect
from 18 April 2017)

Mr WANG Tianmiao
(appointed as a member of
Audit Committee with effect
from 18 April 2017)

Mr WU Zhe
(appointed as a member of
Audit Committee with effect
from 18 April 2017)

Mr LIU Hing Hung (Chairman)

Mr XIE Linzhen
(resigned as a member of
Remuneration Committee with
effect from 18 April 2017)

Mr DONG Yunting
(resigned as a member of
Remuneration Committee with
effect from 18 April 2017)

Mr WANG Tianmiao
(appointed as a member of
Remuneration Committee with
effect from 18 April 2017)

Mr WU Zhe
(appointed as a member of
Remuneration Committee with
effect from 18 April 2017)

Mr WONG Cho Tung

Ms WONG Tik
(resigned as Company Secretary
with effect from 28 June 2017)

Ms CHAN Chi Yin
(appointed as Company Secretary
with effect from 28 June 2017)

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

LEUNG & LAU

Hang Seng Bank Limited
Bank of Communications
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

Corporate Information

HITES

BB+ (E/E)

FAERILLE (#E3)

ERtmzt

FRIELR

BBhSeE
(R=F—+%F
+=A=+—H
FHERTESE)

Bk (EEHITE)

BYFITES

FBEIR A
(R=F—+F
798+ H BFHF
B TTESE)
(R=F—+4F
744 +/\AgHT
BUHHTTESE)

THEXE
(R=F—+%F
mA+N\AEES
BV TTESE)

RELLE
(R=F—+F
mA+/NAZEEA
B TTESE)

BB ()
Eal St
(R=F—+%F
748 +/\AEHT
FERZTEEZE)
EERERE
(R=F—+F
798+ H BFHE
FEREEEZE)
THELE
(R=F—+%F
A +NHZEES
ERZEEEZH)
RELE
(R=F—+%F
A+ \AZELA
ERZTEEZE)

NCIR- e

BELE ()
HBHR L
(R=F—+F
74+ AEHE
FNEESZE)
(R=F—+%F
798 +/\ A EHT
FNEEEZE)
THELLE
(R=F—+%F
AA+NAZEEE
REXE
(R=F—+4F
AA+NAZEE
FNEESZE)
FHREE

/e
(R=F—+%F
NAZFVHEHTE
REJHE)

PRAEEIF 2+
(R=ZF—+4F
NAZFNHZEFA
R ElE)

2% o FEMRT GRTEITT

REFDERETT

BARITERAR
RIBIRTT
EERRERRTT

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

RANKEBERAR —F +FFH

207



208

Corporate Information

N R)E

Unit 2908, 29th Floor,
248 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

Butterfield Fund Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke

Bermuda

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

http://www.sim.com
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Butterfield Fund Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke

Bermuda

ERRREFBLARADA

EfF
SRAER 183 5
AR

17 #1712-1716 =

http://www.sim.com

2000

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2017



Jiene

SIM Technology .
EANEEEGRAR"
SIM Technology Group Limited



	封面
	目錄
	2017 年度大事紀
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	晨訊科技的發展理念
	關注我們的未來
	董事及高級管理人員
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務摘要
	公司資料
	封底



